AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
Meeting Room and Office — 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach
Telephone (805) 595-2664 FAX (805) 595-7623
E-mail: avilacsd@gmail.com

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
1:00 P.M. (Pacific Time) Tuesday, August 10th, 2021

CALL TO ORDER: 1:00 P.M.

ROLL CALL: Board Members:
Pete Kelley, President
Lynn Helenius, Vice President
Ara Najarian, Director
Kristin Berry, Director
Howie Kennett, Director
PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public wishing to comment or bring forward any items concerning District operations
which do not appear on today's agenda may address the Board now. Please state name and address
before addressing the Board and limit presentations to 3 minutes. State law does not allow Board action
on items not appearing on the agenda.

INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
Items of District interest which may be placed on later agendas, or where staff needs to
inform Board.

A. County Reports
1. SLO County Sheriff Department
2. CalFire/County Fire Department

B. Reports on Attended Conferences, Meetings, and General Communications of
District Interest

CONSENT ITEMS:
These items are approved with one motion. Directors may briefly discuss any item, or
may pull any item, which is then added to the business agenda.

June Board Meeting Minutes

Monthly Financial Reviews for June and July

General Manager and District Engineer Report

Water and Wastewater Superintendent Reports for June and July

oowp

DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS
At this time, items pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda, if any, will be heard.



8.

BUSINESS ITEMS: Items where Board action is called for.

Consider Approving a Contract Amendment for Wallace Group for Engineering Services

for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Redundancy Project
(Action Required: Consider Awarding a Contract Amendment for Professional Engineering Services for
the WWTP Improvement Project)

Review and Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2021-04 approving a District Debt

Management Policy in accordance with SB 1029
(Action Required: Approve Resolution No. 2021-04 approving a District Debt Management Policy)

Review and Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2021-05 approving a Private
Placement with Municipal Finance Corporation and the Associated Lease Agreements for

the District’s Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project.
(Action Required: Approve Resolution No. 2021-05 and Associated Financing and Lease Agreements)

Consider Request from Avila Valley Advisory Committee (AVAC) to use the District

Office Board Room for Committee and Regular Monthly Meetings
(Action Required: Receive Staff Report and Consider the Terms and Conditions for Allowing the AVAC to
use the District Board Room for their Committee and Monthly Meetings)

Comments on the Avila Community Plan
(Action Required: Receive Staff Report and direct staff to submit approved District comments on the Avila
Community Plan to the County Planning Department or provide other Direction)

Preliminary Will Serve for Gardner Project at 490 - 498 Front Street, APNs 076-216-014

and 076-216-021
(Action Required: Receive Staff Report and Consider Approval of the Preliminary Will Serve Application
or Provide Other Direction to Staff)

Consider Nominating a Director to fill the vacant CSD alternate position to serve on the

Integrated Waste Management Authority (IWMA) Board of Directors.
(Action Required: If a Director is willing to serve on the IWMA Board, then Nominate Willing Director to
Serve or Provide Other Direction to Staff)

COMMUNICATIONS/ COORESPONDENCE
At this time, any Director or Staff, may ask questions for clarification, make any

announcements, or report briefly on any activities or suggest items for future agendas.

9.

Adjourn to next regularly scheduled meeting on September 14th, 2021.

Any writing or document pertaining to an open session item on this agenda which is distributed to a majority of the Board after
the posting of this agenda will be available for public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed. The
writing or document will be available for public review in the District Administration Office, 100 San Luis Strect, Avila Beach,
CA during normal business hours. Consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act and California Government Code Section
54954.2 requests for disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a
person with a disability who requires the modification or accommodation in order to participate at the above referenced public
meeting by contacting the District at 805-593-2664.



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
Avila Beach Community Services District

Tuesday, June 8th, 2021

1:00 P.M.

PURSUANT TO THE GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, STAFF AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATED IN THIS MEETING VIA
TELECONTERENCE AND/OR ELECTRONICALLY.

ZOOM MEETING: 411 178 7571

Meeting ID: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571

BY PHONE: 1-669-900-91238

1. CALL TO ORDER

President Kelley called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community
Services District, to order at 1:00 P.M. on the above date, in the Avila Beach Community Services
District Building, 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach, California.

2. ROLL CALL

Board Members Present via Zoom:

Board Members Present in Person:

Staff Present:

Ara Najarian

Pete Kelley

Lynn Helenius

Kristin Berry

Howie Kennett

Brad Hagemann, General Manager and District Engineer
Kristi Dibbern, Accounting

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS - No Public Comments.

4. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. County Reports
Sheriff’s Report: No Report
Cal Fire: No Report

B. Conferences, Meetings and General Communications.

5. CONSENT ITEMS




Director Najarian made a motion to approve the Consent Items. The motion was seconded by
Director Helenius and passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Ara Najarian
Lynn Helenius
Kristin Berry
Pete Kelley
Howie Kennett

NOES: None
ABSENT: None

6. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS: None

7. BUSINESS ITEMS:

A. FY 2021/22 Appropriations Limitations Resolution No. 2021-02 & Fiscal Year Budget
2021-22 Resolution No. 2021-03

Each year the district prepares and adopts an operating and capital projects budget for the coming
Fiscal Year. GM Hagemann summarized the Staff Report and presented a series of slides that
estimated year-end FY 2020/21 Revenue and Expenses: the proposed FY 21/22 budget revenue
and expenses.

The Board members briefly discussed the Preliminary Budget.
President Kelley opened the Public Hearing.

No public was present to respond.

President Kelley closed the Public Hearing.

Director Najarian made the motion to adopt both Resolution No. 2021-02 Appropriations
Limitations & Resolution 2021-03 Final Fiscal Year Budget 2021/22. It was seconded by Director
Berry and passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Ara Najarian
Kristin Berry
Pete Kelley
Lynn Helenius
Howie Kennett

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

B. Draft Avila Community Plan Staff was directed to miake copies of the Draft Avila Plan.
Directors may pick up a copy of the Plan for review and submit comments to staff. Staff will



compile comments to be submitted to the San Luis Obispo County Planning Department prior to
August 13%, 2021.

COMMUNICATIONS/CORRESPONDENCE.
The Board agreed to cancel the July meeting.

ADJOURNMENT': The meeting was adjourned at 2:30 P.M.

The next regular meeting of the Avila Beach Community Services District is scheduled for
Tuesday, August 10th, 2021, at 1:00 PM at 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach.

These minutes are not official nor a permanent part of the records until approved by the Board of
Directors at their next meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Brad Hagemann, PE
General Manager






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manag@
DATE: August 10%, 2021

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Review for June & July

Recommendation:
Receive and file report.

Overall Monthlyv Summary

During the month of June, the District deposited $96,454.20 and incurred $71,124.37 in
expenses (cash basis). Income included $4,953.40 in County tax income and $88,255.37 in
monthly water and sewer fees.

During the month of July, the District deposited $98,910.15 and incurred $488,677.33 in
expenses (cash basis). Expenses included our yearly PERS unfunded liability payment. CAL
Fire was also compensated for fire protection for FY 2021-22 in the amount of $233,822.00.
Also, Lopez and state water purchases are due in July totaling $95,597.35. Income included
$11,063.01 in County Taxes and $113,954.21 in monthly water and sewer fees.

Detailed financial reports including a Balance Sheets, Deposits by Fund, Checks by Fund and
Profit and Loss Sheets are provided for your information for the month of June & July.

Utility Service Billing

The District billed approximately $88,255.37 in water and sewer service charges in June.
Customer Rate Assistance reduced billing charges to the District in the amount of $884.03.

In July, the District billed $112,974.62 in water and sewer service charges. Customer Rate
Assistance reduced billing charges in the amount of $979.59.

Operation and Maintenance

The June statement for FRM (Fluid Resource Management) is attached. The July statement was
not available at the time of the board packet production.



10:34 AM Avila Beach Community Services District

07/14/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2021
Jun 30, 2‘1
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash 205.00
1008 - Petty Cash 82.83
1010 - Pacific Premier Checking 821,996.08
1050 - LAIF 3,878,008.56
Total 1000 - Cash Summary 4,700,292.47
Total Checking/Savings 4,700,292.47
Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable 32,096_.00
Total Accounts Receivable 32,096.00
Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable 11,317.42
1270 - Taxes Receivable 23,892.61
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings - 117,277.06
Total 1250 - Receivables 152,487&9
Total Other Current Assets 152,487.09
Total Current Assets 4,884,875.56
Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012 8,233.58
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr -8,233.58
Total 1605 - Office Equipment 0.00
1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost 4,526.21
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep. -4,526.21
Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Ad... 0.00
1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land 60,314.10

Page 1



10:34 AM

07/14/21
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 : Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1634 - Other Equipment
1634a - Other Equipment Cost

Total 1634 - Other Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum D...

1642 - Treatment Equipment - Oth...

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr
1652 - Equipment - Other

Total 1652 - Equipment

1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr

Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water

Jun 30, 21

1,318,875.26
-545,463.32

773,411.94

611,174.66
-376,478.88

234,695.78

6,973.40
6,973.40

105,000.00
2,049,098.30
-1,248,125.98

905,972.32

1,087,410.54
-704,848.55
205,485.61

588,047.60
2,569,415.14

21,136.28
-21,136.28
74.79

74.79

1,263,996.77
-690,947.00

573,040.77
573,124.56

Page 2



10:34 AM Avila Beach Community Services District

07/114/21 Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2021

Accrual Basis

1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset

1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA

1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep

Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset

1690 - Construction in Progress

Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets

1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2201 - Accrued Payroll
2260 - Vacation Payable
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued
2250 - PERS Liability

Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities

2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held

Total 2300 - Deposits Held
Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Jun 30, 21
82,207.29
 -46,485.99
35,721.30
248,213.98
3,426,474.98
3,426,474.98

24,772.00
24,772.00

8,336,122.54

69,461.88
69,461.88

2,095.00
1,509.41
787.39
204.88

4,596.68

4,610.00
4,610.00
9,206.68

78,668.56

Page 3



10:34 AM Avila Beach Community Services District

07/14/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2021

Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity

3000 - Opening Bal Equity

3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Jun 30, 21

131,246.00
7,928.00

139,174.00

217,842.56

85,498.07
7,669,835.26
362,946.65

8,118,279.98

8,336,122.54

Page 4



| afied

G9'09¢‘p- 000 “Uisiweid oyioed - 0L0L Z4y0  1202/60/90 wsodeQ
G9'00€ ¥~ 000 Trdsjwald duylded - 0LOL L U0 1202/60/90 MHsode(
G9'99¢E'v- 98'G “lelwald oiloed - 010} souelsissy ajey  1202/60/90 NsodaQ
LGTLE Y- 00'8LL- rlslweld olded - 010} o9y lues  1g0Z/60/90 NsodaQg
LG'¥6S ¢- L0°8- risiwsld Jiloed - 010) 248410  1202/80/90 NsodeQ
¥'986°¢- 000 islwlld oyloed - 0LOL L JBYO  1202/80/90 NsodaQg
vPo8G'e- £r' oSt aslwald oioed - 0L0L aduejsissy ajey 1202/80/90 YsodaQg
18'98l'¢- €C0LL L- “islwsld duided - 0L0L o9y lues  120Z/80/90 YsodeQ
¥9'995°¢- gae6l Trielsld oyioed - 0LOL ZYOo 1202/.0/90 ¥sodeQg
686S.C- 000 “rislwald duided - 0L0I LBYO  1202/.0/90 MsodeQg
68'65.°C- 9e'€es “lsjwald duided - 0101 aoue)sissy ajey  1202/.0/90 Nsode(
seelLee ¢.°698- “rdalald oyided - 0101 29y lueS  1Z0eg/.0/90 ¥sodeQ
€5EV6'L- 000 islwald oyloed - 0L0O| Z48ylo  1202/50/90 ¥sodeq
€G°EV6°L- 000 islald ouloed - 0101 LBYO  1202/S0/90 MsodeQ
€SEY6’|L- 000 Tslweld oilded - 0101 aouejsissy aley  1g0z/50/90 Hsode(
€GEV6'L- LLv8L- “isjweld oyioed - 0101 o9y lueg  1z0z/S0/90 Hsoda(
ZyesL L- 000 rislweld oiioed - 0LOL ZYI0  1202/20/90 MsodaQ
yesL'L- 000 “rlelwald Jloed - 010} Ld8Yl0  1202/€0/90 ¥sodaQ
rAd T gg'Le Trialwsid dyided - 0101 aduelsIssy ajey 120Z/€0/90 usodeQ
L2°184°)- 8.°6£9- rlslwsld dyioed - 0LOL 09y lUBS  1202/€0/90 ¥sodaQ
6 LyLL- 68'7.L Iolwald oyioed - 0L0L ZIYO  1202/20/90 ¥sodaQg
geale’L- 000 “rdelliald ouioed - 0101 L BYO  1202/20/90 YsodaQg
8e9Lz)- S0've aelwsld dylded - 0101 90UE]SISSY 3leYy 1202/20/90 ¥sodaQg
AT 0L'v20°L- lelwald ouided - 0101 o9y lueg  1g0z/c0/90 Hsoda(Q
€e9LL- o' ¥82 ielweld dyided - 0L0I YO  1202/L0/90 ksodegQ
6.'09%- 000 “lsllald olioed - 0LOL L BYI0  120Z/10/90 WsodeQ
6.°09%- 124514 TislwRld dyded - 0101 souelsissy ajey  1g0z/1L0/90 ¥sode(
€2°06t- €2°06V- lelwald oyloed - 0101 o9y lueg  1z0Z/1L0/90 usoda(

Aejueg

9Z'vel- 9C'velL- sjybI [eloL
9z vel- 6£°G8- “rIelwald dloed - 0L0L T SIYBIN ‘G SRk M 0L T UD - | # NI HOVAE VIAY - 0920:V §680:'4  120Z/L2/90 ¥sodsg
19'9¢- 18°8¢- “Islwald oioed - 0101 GO' SWBIT ‘GZ 40k M ‘0L " UBD - | # ¥dINI - 3N AVIN L2 Ad 401 120Z/¥1/90 u_mm%o

sIybI

00'628°C- 00'628°C- ulwpy / [elsusg [ejo]
00'628°Z- 8¢'G61L |- “rIslwald oyioed - 0L0L T SIUBI ‘GZT Jejep ‘0L " URD - | # dINI HOVY3d VTIAY - 09£0°V §680:d 1202/12/90 usodaq
29ee9’l- LE PirG- isiuald ojloed - 0LOL GO SIUBIT ‘Gz JeleM ‘0L " U9D - | # HdI - IN AVIN LZ A4 401 1202/7Li90  Hsodeg
LE'680° |- 1€'680'L- Trislwald oyioed - 0L0L S9JIAI9G 10BJUOD QoUBINqWY TS 120Z/80/90 lisodaq

UWIpy / [eI9U35)

aouejeg junowy ydg owa ayeq adA)

LZog sung

pung Aq sjisodaq 12ivLIL0

JoUIS1q SIDIAIRG AJIUNWWOY Ydeag BJIAY



Z obed

80°006°G¢e- oL'o “Uialwald dljided - 0LoL L YO 2/1 1202/12/90 usodag
81°006°Ge- 000 slwald oyoed - 0L0L aouejsissy ajey  1z0z/12/90 YsodeQ
81°006'Ge- LL'EZL0L- Tielwald dyioed - 0LOL o9y lueg  1202/12/90 ¥sode(
LV9LL'G)L- 000 riglweid oulded - 0101 ZOYO  1202/61/190 sode(Q
L¥'9LL°GL- 000 rislWald Joioed - 0L0L LJayl0  1202/61/90 ¥sodeq
L¥'9.1°GL- 1181 “lslWeld oyioed - 0LOL aoue)sissy djey  L202/61/90 Hsode(Q
$2°66.°GL- 66891~ Trisiweld oyoed - gLOL o3y Iues  1g0z/6L/90 ¥sodag
§2'929'GlL- 000 “rlalweld diided - 0101 ZPYo  120z/8L/90 Ysodag
S2'929'GlL- 000 isiwRlg dyided - 0101 LBYIO  1202/8L/90 Ysodag
STATA R 9e'slL Trisjwslg dyloed - 0LoL souejsissy ajey  120Z/81/90 MHsodeQ
L9 L¥9'SL- 6LLLLE Trislwelg ouoed - 0LoL o9y lues  1g0zZ/8L/90 Nsodaq
Zyroes'el- 00'0¢€8- lslweld Jiioed - 0LOL 1 2/82/S - 8Z/F Swoossay died Ayunwwod  1Z0z/L1/90 Hsodeqg
Zr'ooLcL- 000 TrlslwBld Jioed - 0101 Z2HUI0  1202Z/LL/90 NsodaqQ
Zr'00LClL- 000 risiwald diided - 0L0L LBYO  120Z/L1L/90 ¥sodsQg
Zy00LCL- FASR 4! lelwsid ouided - 0LOL aouejsissy 8jey  120z/L1/90 NsodaQg
66'vLLCL- 2'G10°1L- ielWald ouioed - 0LoL o9y lues  120Z/LL/90 ¥sodaQ
S1°669°'L - 666L1- rielwald dyoed - 0L0L Z4Yo  1202/5L/90 ¥sodeQ
91645V L- 000 rislwBid dded - 0101 LBYO  1202/51/90 NsodeQ
91645 L1~ (FA7] risiWsld Juided - 0L0L aoue)sissy ey 1202/51/90 Nsode(Q
LEPSOLL- 16'¥00°9- risiald oyoed - 0L0L o9y lues  1Z0eg/SL/90 Hsodeq
ov'6¥9°G- €9°¢LL- rislweld Jiided - 0104 a)seM - N AVIN LZ Ad 401 1202/71/90  ¥sodag
£€8°9.8'v- 000 i9lWRid oljided - 0L0L ZJoyl0  120zZ/vl/90  Ysodaq
£€8°9/8t- 000 Trisiald diided - 0L0L LBYIO  120Z/vL/90  HsodeQ
£€8°9.8'v- 000 Trislweld Jlided - 0LOL douelsissy 8jey  1z0z/vL/90  Wsoda(Q
£€8'9.8'v- 96'¢c- TrislwRld Jided - 0101 o9y lues  1zZ0Z/L/90 ¥sodaqQ
18°€58'Y- 000 Trislweld Jiioed - 0101 ZBYO  120z/eL/90 Wsodeqg
19°€58'V- 000 islwald ouloed - 0LOL L BYO  120Z/cL/90 ¥usodaQ
18°€88'p- 000 islwald oiided - OLOL aouejsissy ojey  Lz0Z/c1/90 NsodeQ
18°€S8'Y- e'€9- rIslWield ouded - 0L0L o9y lueS  1Z0Z/cL/90 ¥sodeQ
€5°06. V- 000 risiwaeld olided - 0L01 YO  1202/2L/90  Ysodeq
€5°06. V- 000 lelWeid oided - 0L0L L J8YI0  120Z/2L/90 ¥sodeq
€5°06.'t- 000 risiwald ouioed - 0L0L soue)sissy dleY  1202/21/90 Nsode(
€5°06.t- 92'06- "rigiweld Juided - 0101 o9y lues  1Z0z/zL/90  NsodeQ
L2°00L'Y- SLvve slwsld dyioed - 001 Zyo  1202/L1/90 usodag
Zr e 000 Trlelwsld diided - 0L0L L48WpO  1202/L1/90 usodeQ
Y vre'v- 000 Trislweld JIided - 0L0L aouelsissy aley  120g/LL/90  WsodeQ
A4 N ¥6'9l¢- Trlslwald oiioed - 0101 ooy lueg  1z0z/L1/90 ¥sode(
8bL2.L Y- 000 “risiwsld dijioed - 0101 ZJ4Y0  1202/0L/90 NsodeQ
8y’ L2Ll'v- 000 “rlielwaid diided - 0LOL L SO 1202/01/90 ¥sodsQ
8y’ L2V 000 “rielwiald dyided - 0L0L aouejsissy aley  1.202/01/90 sodeQ
8y’ L2V £8°09¢- islWsld oyided - 0LOL o9y lueg  1zZ0Z/0L/90 ¥sodsQ
aosuejeg junowy yds owa ajeq adA]
120z aunr
pun4 Aq syisodaq b2ivLILO

J01ISIg SITIAIRG AUNWIWOY yoeag eIy



¢ abed

r0'951C- 0951 2- 9)SEM PlI0S [e101
y0'9SL¢- ¥0'9G1°C- TslwRld ouided - 0L01 MS 9984 asiyduel4 suojjosuuo) ajsepy  1202/62/90 Nsode(

9)SBM plloS

Lv¥'668°6¢- L7'668'6¢E- Ateyueg [ejo |
L¥'668'6¢~ 000 risjwald oiioed - 0LOL ZWo  1202/0€/90 WsodeQ
1¥'668'6¢- 000 slweld Jiidoed - 0LOL LJ9WI0  120z/0€/90 WsodeQ
L¥'668'6¢- 000 Trisiweid Jiioed - 0101 douejsissy 8jey  1Z0z/0€/90 ¥sode(
L¥'668'6¢- ¥.'28%- lsiwsld Jljoed - 010} o8y lues  1z0z/0€/90 usodaQ
gL9le'6e- 06°8- islwaeld ouloed - 0L01 ZIBY0  1202/62/90 WsodseQ
£8'20€'6¢- 00'.¢ risjwald olloed - 0L01 L BYO  1202/62/90 NsodeQ
£8'vre'6e- S0'6S rlsiWeid duided - 0L0L aouejsissy ajey  120¢/62/90 Nsoda(Q
88'¢0v'6¢- 89116~ lslwald olioed - 0LO1 o9y lUeS  120Z/62/90 ¥sode(Q
0Z'zevee- 000 TrlslWeld sioed - L0 Z4WOo  1202/52/90 ¥sodag
0Z'zer‘ee- ¢.919 risiweld dulded - 0101 L BUIO  1202/52/90 Wsode(
26'8v0°'6¢- 0S'vv IslRld dlided - 010} souelsissy aley  1202/sg/90  Msodeg
v €60°'6¢- 8.°€€G'0L- lelllald olioed - 0Lol o9y lueg  1g0z/52/90 usode(Q
¥9'655'8C- 000 lslwald oljioed - 0LOL ZUo  120z/be/90  NisodeQ
¥9'655'8C- 000 isiweld Jyioed - 0LOL LU0 1202/v2/90 WsodaQ
¥9'655'8¢- ce'Le “risiweld oljioed - 0LOL aouejsissy 8jey  1Z0Z/pe/90  Msode(Q
oy’ 16G'8¢- 20'60¢- rlsjsid dlided - 0LOL o9y lues  Lz0z/¥2/90 Nsode(Q
vv'z8e'ee- 000 rslweld oyoed - L0 ZMUI0  1202/£2/90 usode(
vy'z8c'ee- 000 rielwald ouoed - QL0 LU0 1202/€2/90 NsodeQ
vy'zeeae- 000 leleid duioed - 010} aouejsissy ajey  1Z0Z/€2/90 NsodeQ
vy z8eee- 0S'6- risweid dliided - 010} o8y lueS  1202/€2/90 ¥sodaQ
¥6°C.E'8C- 916" “relwsid diided - 0101 Z48Ylo  1202/22/90 ¥sodeQ
8/°€62'8¢- 000 Trislwnld diloed - 0LOL L Y0 1202/22/90 WUsode(Q
8.°€62'8¢- 000 asilald onided - 0LOL souejsissy e 1¢0e/¢e/90  Hsoda(
8.°€62'82- 620" L- rlslwaid dlioed - L0l o9y lues  1z0z/2e/90  NsodaQg
6v'€28'9¢e- 05'669°L- lslwald oiided - 0L01L XVL A34N03S ¥HND - 090'Y §680:4  1202/12/90 MNsodag
66°221'Se- 00°0€e islwald oiided - 0LOL  LZ/8Z/S - 82/p Swoonsay Yied Alunwwog Ajgiesedag Lz/21/9 payoog  120z/LZ/90 Wisodaq
66°.56'GZ- 16°4G- Trislwald oiioed - 0101 ZYlozZ/L  120Z/12/90 WsodeQ

aosuejeg junowy Hids JHETT] ajeq adA)

L20Z sung

pung Aq sysodag L2ivLiLo

JoUISIg Se21AL8S AJlUnwiwoy) yoeag ejIAy



p abed

€2°0LY'9- 000 lelusld dyided - 0LOL ¢ 1#¥4y10 1202/21/90 NsodaQ
€C0LY'9- 000 ielwlald suided - 0101 L48UI0  1202/Z1/90 Nsodeq
€T oLy 9- 000 “lslwald doed - 0L0L souejsissy aley  1g02/21/90 Hsoda(
€C0LY'9- 08'6.- isiweld oyioed - 0LOL o9y JoleM 1202/2L/90  usode(
€r'0ec'9- 000 lslwald olioed - 010l ZJ4Yyio  120z/L1/90  Ysodeg
£V 0e€'9- 000 lelWald oyoed - 0101 L BYO  1202/1L1/90 UsodeQ
€P°0ec'9- 000 lelweld dljioed - 010l souelsissy ajey  1Z0Z/LL/90 Hsoda(
€v'0ee'9- 148415 risjwald oiloed - 0LOL o9y 1BIBM  L20Z/L1/90  HsodaQg
62 9rL'9- 000 rislweld olloed - 010) Z2PYo  1202/0L/90 Nsodeq
629719 000 “risiwsld Jloed - 0L0L L BPBO  1202/01/90 ¥sode(
62°9v1L'9- 000 Tsjwsld alloed - 0L0L aouejsissy ajey  1202/0L/90 ¥Hsode(
629719 LLGLy- risjwald ouloed - 0L0L o9y J9leM  1202/0L/90 Nisodeq
85°0.9'G- 000 risjwald olloed - 0L0Ol Z1Yl0  1202/60/90 Msodeq
85°0.9°G- 000 “lalWald oiioed - 0L0L LJ8YI0  1202/60/90 ¥sodaQ
86°0.9°G- €L'e lelwald oljioed - 0LOL aouejsissy aley  1.202/60/90 Ysode(
LE'¥29°G- €9°6.LL- “rlslulald oiioed - 0101 ooy JoleM  1202/60/90 NsodeQg
89'¥68't- 000 “lslald ouoed - 010l ZJoYyl0  1202/80/90 Msodaq
89768 v- 000 isiwald ouioed - 0101 L BYIO  1202/80/90 ¥sodaQ
89°'v68'1- 6681 lslwald ouioed - 0101 aoue)sissy ajey  1202/80/90 Jisodag
19'€20G- z6'eee’L- lsiweld oyloed - 0101 o9y 19l 1202/80/90 usodaQ
GL6el'e- 000 risjwield oioed - 010l ZUI0  1202/L0/90 ¥sodaQ
gL eel'e- 000 isjweld Jijioed - 0L0L LYo 1202/L0/90 MsodeQ
GLeeL'e- G9'9S rlsiweld Juoed - 010} soue)sissy ajed  ,202/.0/90 NisodeQ
0v'96.°¢- S¥°'920°L- llajlald olided - 0L0L o8y JaleM  1202/20/90 WisodaQ
G6'69.'C- 000 lelulald doiioed - 0L0L ZJUl0  1202/50/90 Ysodeq
G6'69.°C- 000 isiwald olioed - 0LOL L BYO  1202/50/90 ¥sodeQg
G6'69.°C- 000 lalwald Jlioed - QLOL aouejsissy 8y  1Z02/50/90 ¥sodeQg
G6'69.°C- L0°9¢€C- lelwald ouioed - 0L01 o9y JoleM  1202/50/90 WsodeQ
88'€€SC- 000 Trlelweld ouioed - 0L01 ZJYI0  1202/20/90 ¥sodeq
88'€€SC- 000 “lsiald dulded - 0L0L LBYIO  1202/€0/90 HsodaQ
88°€€52- 09°€e Isllald oljioed - 0LOL aouejsissy ejey  1g0z/c0/90 Hsoda(Q
8v°29G°C- 96°999- lslweld ouioed - 0101 o9y JeleM  1202/€0/90 ¥sodaq
25'006°L- 000 lsiweld oyioed - 0101 ZJUyl0  1202/20/90 ¥ysodaq
25°006°'L- 000 “lslwald ailoed - 0101 L YO  1202/20/90 wsodaQg
25'006'L- e€L'oe “lelweld Jllided - 0LOL aouelsissy ajey  1202/20/90 Wsoda(
S9°0€6°L- 6€v2e’L- “rleluald Jijioed - 0101 o9y J9leM  1202/20/90 Wsodaq
92'909- 000 “risjwald olioed - 0101 ZoYl0  1202/10/90 ¥sodaQ
92'909- 000 rislwald Jlded - 0L0L L BUYIO  1202/10/90 ¥sodsQg
9¢'909- 26'LL Trlslwald olided - 0L0} aouejsissy ejeY  1202/10/90 lsodeQ
81'829- 81'8.9- Tislwsld ouioed - 0LOI o9y JeleM  1202/L0/90 Nsodeq
Jolep
aouejeg junowy Nds owa ajeq adA]
Lcog aunp
pun4 Aq sjisodaq 2ivLiL0

1oISIQ S99IAISG ANUNWILIOY Yorag BlIAY



G abed

€6°'.¥.L12- 86'9¢- Trislwld diived - 0LOL 089y 4B 120zZ/£2/90 wsodaq
ge'LelL'le 000 Trlelweld Jiioed - 0LOL ZJ8UlI0  120zZ/22/90 ysodaq
Sevel'le- 000 rislweld oiided - 0LOL L BYIO  1202/22/90 usodaQ
Selel'le- 000 Trislweld oyided - 0101 aouelsissy dley  |20¢/¢g/90  Wsoda(Q
Selel'le- £€6°092°L- Trislwield oided - 0101 09y Jolep  1202/22/90 Wsodag
09y 9e- 26°'9¢Y- “rIelWald dyloed - 0L0L T SIUBIT ‘GE 9B M ‘0L T UBD - | # dINI HOVIE VIAY - 0920'V 6680:4  1202/12/90 WsodsQ
06°€€0'9¢- G0'888°L rislweld olioed - 0L0L 12/82/S - 82/ Med uenr ueg Ajpjeledes |z//L/9 peyoog  1LZ0gZ/LZ/90 Wisodeq
§51'226'Le- 05°¢og’l lelwald oyloed - 0LOL 12/82/S - 82/¥ 1S Wuoi] Ajpjeledag |g/2L/9 payoog  L20Z/Lg/90 Nsodeq
59'68Z'62- 82°€6S “raslwRid dloed - 0L0L  12/82/S - 82/Y SWooLsay led Aunuwiwog Ajejeledag Lg/21/9 paxoog  L20Z/Le/90  kisodeq
£6'8.8°62- 000 TIslwald olioed - 0L0L ZRWO /L LzZoz/Le/e0  wsodeq
£6'8.8'62- 000 isisld oioed - 0LOL L8O Z/L  1202/12/90 ¥sodaQg
£6'8.862- 000 rislllald Jyided - 0101 |ouelsissy aley  1202/12/90 ¥isodeqg
£6'8.86¢- 92'659'8- rislwBld Jiided - 0L01L o9y Jalep  1Z0e/Lg/90  ¥sodeQ
L96Le2°Le- 000 risiuRld oyioed - L0l Z4Ylo  1202/6L/90 YsodeQ
L9612°Le- 000 Trislald oyioed - 0LOL LJ8Yl0  1202/61/90 ¥sodag
loelele- 6.¢e rlolWald dljided - 0L0L souelsissy djey  120Z/61/90 WisodeQ
oresele- 16'1¢¢- risiweld Jlided - 0L0L o9y J8lep LZ0Z/6L/90  WsodaQ
6v'v2o’Le- 000 TrislwBlg JYoed - 0LOL ZJYi0  1202/8L/90 JisodeQ
6v'vzo'ie- 000 TrislwBld Jljioed - 0101 L48Yl0  1202/8L/90 Msodeq
6v'v20‘le- €9°El rislBld dljloed - 0101 aoue)sissy sjey  |20Z/81/90 NsodeQ
Z18e0’Le- 60°188°L- islwedd oiided - 0LOL o9y JolepM  L20Z/8L/90 Wisodeq
€0°LS1L'6L- 8C°€6S- rIslwald Jyided - OLOL 1 2/82/S - 82/y swoonsay died Ayunwwod  1Z0z/.1L/90 Ysodeqg
G1'€95°81- 05€9€1- rislWsdd Jiided - 0LOL 12/82/S - 82/p uoneblij yeang Juoly  L20Z/LL/90 Nsodeq
STAV AR G9'888°L- rislusld oided - 0L0L 12/82/S - 82/¥ uonebul| uenr ueg  Lg0g/ZL/90 ¥sode(
09'LLEGL- 000 rIsleld Jiided - 0LOL 20 1202/L1/190 lsode(
09'LLEGL- 000 Trislwald ayioed - 0LOL LYo  120Z/21L/90 MsodaQ
09'L1EGL- ov'ee risllald oided - 0101 aouelsissy ajey  120Z/.1/90 yisodag
00¥€e'SlL- LELBE L~ lslald Jiided - 0LOL o9y JolepM  LZ0Z/L1/90 Hsodaq
69°Z¥6°CL- 000 risiwald oiioed - 0L0L ZUlo  1202/9L/90 Msodaq
69°Cy6'cl- 000 isiweld aioed - 0LOL LU0 120Z/GL/90 ¥sode(
69Cr6°Cl- (NS TraslwBld Jllided - 0LOL aouelsissy ajey  120z/GL/90 NsodaQ
066201~ 92°60¢".- “rislweld Jiloed - 0L0L o9y 19lepM  LZ02/S1/90  Hsodeq
¥9'02L'9- or'v61L- Tri9lwBid Jijloed - 0L0L GO' SWBIN ‘G2 JoYeM ‘0L " USD - | # HdWI - AN AVIN LZ A4 401 1202/v1L/90  usodeq
¥2°925'9- 000 risiwald Jljioed - 0LOL ZJYio  120Z/vL/90  Wsodeq
¥C'92¢5'9- 000 Trislwsld Jyided - 0LOL L BYO  120Z/71/90 ¥NsodeQg
ZAC T4 000 rIslusld oyided - 0L0L aouelsissy ey LZ0Z/rL/90 ¥sodeQ
v2'925°'9- €6'16- Trislald ayloed - 0L0L o9y JoleM  120Z/vL/90  Wsode(
LevLv'O- 000 Trielueld ayioed - 0L01L ZJ4oYyio  1202/€L/90 ¥sodeQ
LE'vLv'O- 000 Truslwald oyioed - 0LOL LJ8Yl0  1202/€1/90 ¥sodeq
LEviv'O- 000 risiald oided - 0101 aouelsissy ajey  120Z/c1/90 Yisodeg
VeVLiV'O- 80'v9- risiwedd Jiided - 0LOL 09y JelepM  1L20Z/EL/90  Msoda(
aosueleg junowy aidg OWId N aeq adA)
iz0e aunp
pun4 Aq s)isodaq LZIvLiL0

JoUISIQ S821AIaG AJUNWoY yoeag ey



g abed

1€9Z1 ‘98- 1£9ZL 98- Tviol
vS LV Y- pSLLL L Jaje [ejoL
YSLLL L 000 “Islwdld dioed - 0401 ZJ4WOo  120z2/0£/90 NsodaQ
vSLLL M- 000 "rIdlWeid dyided - 0101 LIBUI0  1202/0€/90 Wsode(Q
vSLLL VY- 000 "isiwald olloed - 0LOL soue)sissy 9By LZ02/0€/90 Wsode(Q
vGLLL LY zLees- “IRlwald duIoed - 0LOL o9y JleleM  L20Z/0€/90 Wsodeg
cy'e8y'ov- 000 Trielwsld duyoed - 0L0L ZPYo  120z/62/90 NsodaQ
radiidiig 000 “Tielwsld duIoed - 0101 L49Yl0  1202/62/90 Vsode(Q
Zya8y ov- €808 “ielwsid Oioed - 0L0L souejsissy @jey  1g02/6¢/90 NsodaQ
6299501~ €eeL8l- “rislweld duyioed - 0LoL o9y JojleM  1202/62/90 WsodeQ
T62S8L°8¢E- 00'0 "islwald oyioed - 0101 ZBYI0  1202/52/90 ¥sodaQ
26'2S.'¢- 000 rislweld duIoed - 0101 LBYI0  1202/52/90 WsodeQ
26'252°8¢- Ev'8S "rislwald olioed - 0101 soue)sissy 9y 1g0¢/Se/90  Nisodag
GE'118'8E- ¥6'028'0L- “islweld dyloed - 0LOL o9y JAleM  1202/S2/90  Nsodag
L¥'066'.2- 000 “rIslwald dlioed - 0101 ZBWo  Leoz/ve/90  wsodeQg
L¥'066'L2- 000 "Islwald dYioed - 0101 LI9YI0  L2oe/pe/o0  WsodeQ
L¥'066°LC- L9'Sy “risiwald Jloed - 0L0L Jouelsissy 9By  L20gZ/¥2/90 Nsodag
20'9€0'82- 60°'88¢- “rlalwaid Jyded - 0L0L 09y J9)eM  LZ0Z/P2/90  Wsode(Q
€6'Lv.'22- 000 “aelwald oyloed - 0LOL Z4Yl0  1zog/ez/90  usode(Q
€6°LYL L2 000 “Ielwald oyoed - 0101 LJ4OYI0  120z/ez/90 usodeQ
€6'L¥.L'L2- 000 “Ielwald dyoed - 0101 souesissy a1y L202/€2/90 NsodaQ
aouejeg junowy Jds OWAN ajeq adA)
120g aunp
pun4 Aq syisodaqg LZivLiLo

JoUISIA S99IAIRG AJlunwilo) yoeag elIAyY



| bed

06'8.G°9 06'825'9 uwpy / [eauas) [ejo )
06'8.5'0 €0°2G yosjuswiAed aseyd - 0ZLS $99) 29 Jueydew yosjuewAhed 1202/0£/90 398UD
181259 G6'v2e 1owslu| / suoydaje] - G8S9 1 2GE€00860015¥Z8 # 100V wnoadg 143 1202/52/90 pral-llle)
76'962°9 Nt saiN - 0659 ‘IS sIn7 ues O01 399d 143 1202/t2/90 %o8y9
6¥'2G61°9 1566 8oYQ ‘selddng - €19 U090 8belols L08LYZ0-Z0LL0SL-L L) #48PIO uozewy 120Z/€2/90 ptlifg}
76°250'9 ¥S 0L yosjuswihed aseyy - 0Z1S $09} 00 JuBYDISL yosjuswied 1202/£2/90 plak:lile}
8£'2r0'9 09'LL 200 ‘seyddng - €119 slepuig ££S90GEE86 # 19PIO so|de)g 120Z/£2/90 %o8yD
81°016'S 1221 yosjuawAed eseyy - 0Z1S S99} 00 JUBYIIOW yosjuswAed 120Z/81/90 3o8yD
15'8G6'S 00'Sve [ebe - €19 LZ/8/9 298l AUl D71 Buled ¥ [81S0d ‘9oUd 1862  1Z0Z/L1/90 398yD
IGELO'S 00°'058 g atemyos Bulpg - Z119  PNOID ©) siemyog opesoq {3 L2/2/9 80¥9 AUl 'ou| ‘selbojouyos| aABeld 0962  LZ0Z/L1/90 %98uD
1G°€9L'p 87’191 Buiddiys g ebejsod - z¢19 12/2/9 @jeq uny L/v9 "Auj 'ouj ‘salfojouyos | aAneal) 0862  LZ0Z/LL/90 %08yD
£2°209'F LE6Y1 Buiddiyg @ ebeisod - Z¥Lg U equINN JBWOISND |LZ/L/y 81eQ Uny $9€9 "Auj "ou| ‘seibojouyoe] eAneel)  086Z  1202/LL/90 398y
Z6'25h'y SS'v. SBONON |aNd - G¥LY " GEOLE "AU| SSIRON 2Nqnd sunqu) weibaje | 277 ‘Auedwiod AUoIeIDON 6262 L202/21/90 pial=1ite)
1£°8.E'Y 00°08¥ Bununoooy - ZoLY 12/6/9 9812 "Au| Buidesxpoog o|6ul BPIN 2262 L20Z/LL/90 3o8yd
1£'868°¢ LILE BSUY Pd 0D SY3d - 9628 LZ/SL/9 - /9 nsuy  “AG Juswainsy seaAojdwig oligngd 143 1L202/9L/90 398yD
09'998°¢ 91'¥61 Annger syad - 0522 LZ/SLI9 - L/g NsUY " AS Jswalgey seskoldw3 dlgnd 143 1202/91/90 %9849
¥r'2L9'E rA: WA NS Pd 00 SH3d - 952G LZ/LES - oLig sy ~Ag Juswsinay seafoldwg dlgnd 143 1202/91/90 3o8y)d
Z9°p£9'e 0Z'2€2 Ayjiger sY3d - 0522 LZ/LES - 9L/ NSy~ Ag Juswaley seakojdws oignd 143 120Z/91/90 piatlite}
Zr'eov's 0069 aouBUBIUIBNY - Z¥SO 1s9d uepzaig 143 1202/94/90 %09y
v l1ee'e £5°9 8oljQ ‘salddng . €719 "6'9 ¢ suad £EY6.LPY-0¥S600L-LL L # HIAHO uozewy 1202171190 plal:llle}
68'0€'S €2°91 yosjuswAed sseyd - 0ZLS S99} 20 JueydISLW yosjuswAed 1202/1 1190 pkllle}
91'vIE'E 00°0F “uley g "dey "dib3 - $759 suredal Jeindwod signdwo) 98] 8D 143 1202/60/90 PRl g)
91'v.2'E oyl pNnoj) 8210AL] - OF1LS $99} JUBYDISW PNO|D 810AU| pnojDaoioAu| 1202/60/90 o8y)H
0.°098'2 69'LL yosjuswAed sseyy - 0ZLS $99} 99 JuBYDIOW yosiuswAed 1202/60/90 3o8u)
LO'6V8'2 66'7L soQ ‘solddng - g¥19 g9 $ suad €E¥6.yP-0¥S600L-LLL # HIAHO uozewy 1202/60/90 %98yD
20'v£8'2 0,82 2040 ‘salddnsg - ¢p19 85409 uozewy 1202/60/90 %o8yD
7£°608°2 £0°0¢ 800 ‘salddng - €719 anssy ‘suad uozeuwy 1202/60/90 Pt}
62°621'2 00°G65'L WD JOgeT 10eljU0) - 9069 BT I0BJUOD LZOZ ‘G SuUNr - €2 AB 9pL L AUl sojelnossy R uuewebeH €762  1202/80/90 %o8yD
62°081°L S8Vl Xouwy - 0L1§ xewy Noosiq ssaidx3 uesuswy L20Z/L0/90 o8yo
SOl L 6671 “duosqng g seng - 0Z19 woo'aqopy 143 1202/50/90 pieE=1iTg)
SF0SLL 0202 yosjuswAed eseyy - 0Z1LS §98} 00 Jueyosoul yosjuswAed 1Z0Z/£0/90 %o8yo
GZ'0EL) ¥6°€lL yosjuawdhed aseyy - 0Z1LS $99} 99 JuBYdIBW yosjuawAed 120Z/£0/90 3o8yn
LeoLL'L 06671 pduosqng @ seng - 0ZL9 wooz 1Z20Z/€0/90 38y
L¥'996 00°€t Buiddiyg % ebersod - zv19 spd preoq 801M98 [e1sod "SN 1202/20/90 pe:llg)
LY’ €56 00°00Z 8)ISAaM - 0419 auljwealns Asogy Aluuow  idaq feybiq s wooraulweanglen 143 1202/20/90 %o8y9
LWess 00°0¥S Bununoooy - z01L9 V2I92/S v212 M| Buideaxyood a|bug PPN 8962  1202/20/90 %o8yD
LWeELe 88°6.1 duosqang g senq - 0219 woo'aqopy 1202/L0/90 %98y
£5°€e €5°ee 2o ‘salddng - £419 3ul "dio) yosy) leudbiag 1202/10/90 p k1l g)

uiupy / jelauan

aouejeg junowy Junoosoy TITETT] awenN wnN Ieq adAL

lzoz sunp

SUNO2IY/M pun4 Aq s)o9y) LZivLILO

I2UISIg S92IAIDS AJIUNWILLIOY Yoeag BlIAY



Z abeyq

LEeVeL 1L LEYZLLL aviol

08°0rZ'L 08 0vz'L lo1ep [ejoL
08'0vz'L €519 lig Jameg g Jajem, - 0821 $00 rav IONvIvd 00 ININLSNrdy IONVIvd rav  120z/0€/90 30940
126299 Gl 68l sapnn - 0659 'pd Buipuey ered /121 399d 143 1202/+2/90 3}o3Yyo
25'6er'9 0992 sfeawsyy - €059 sjesiuayd €202y "ou| Yuswebeuely 82inossy pinj4 S.6Z  120Z/80/90 93YD
Z6'ZLY'9 26'er0's "t Q 10geT oejuo) - G059 218024 "AuL19jep 'sdO LZ0Z AeW -ou| luswsbeuely aounosay pinj4 G162 120Z/80/90 %094D
00°0.¢€4 00°G0€'} 10 JogeT Joenuo) - 0S99 wajsAg Jajep JogeT JBJU0D $9)e100ssy g uuewaben €162  1202/80/90 30940
0059 00'G9 $894 @ SuUBd - GGG9 CS0CZCIONI "AU] suolOSUUOD $S0ID yieeq4 09 O1S 696  120¢/20/90 ¥oayd

12)eAA

LT L8Y'9G 12°18¥°95 Aenueg [ejoj.
L2°18V'9S €519 lid Jomas g JAleM - 0821 S22 AV IONVYIvd 00 INJWLISNrdy JONYIVE ravy  120Z/0e/90 Jo/Yd
¥1'628'GS ZrvLee saniin - 0659 dwnd 15 ueiq ues @ pig 389d 143 120¢/v2/a0 398D
ZE'196'eS 6% 10} salmN - 0659 €-8£ZCLPBECI 4008 UonelS Y1 399d 143 120¢/e/90 334D
€8'658'¢S G8'8G JowB)u| / suoyds|a] - 58G9 Jowdiu| G880 X # Jooe 181V 143 120¢/81/90 084D
86'008'¢S 80°LLL°L Sjedwayy - £059 L2/E/9 S¥E0S| I1dd AUl "2u| ‘oyioed Bejuuaig 286Z  1202/L1/90 284D
06°€89°LS 00'GLL UjdY U IMS MM - 09¥Z8 " d Bul Jamag [anbi Ues Lz/1LE/S 09921 AUl "0U| ‘s9)eI00ssY g Jojhe | ‘Buuen 8.6C 120Z/LL/90 p L te]
06'89G°LS 00°6.2°'1 Bulpuey spljos - 0859 12/0¢/G 8G¥SO # AU "ou| 's,peadg 916C 1202/41/90 328Yyd
06'¢6.'6Y 0s'ce Jowiel| / suoyds|a] - G859 281916¢.¢.8¢ #190e 181V 143 L20Z/ivL/90 }09Yd
ovr'0.L'6¥ 91'98¢ uleiy g ‘dey 'dibg - pgGg  Aowey dwind uoBelS P 1994S IS 6290ZM  "OUj ‘Juswiabeuey 80Inosey pin4 6.6 1202/80/90 heClle]
e val'er 8Ll “1ey g 'dey "dinb3 - zzge efiew3 |le4 yavOs ainjied Jemod 9990ZM  ou| ‘juswabeuey aoinosay pinj4 662 120Z/80/90 peClie)
9.'69%'9p ZL'9EL'GL T O Jogen Joenuo) - G059 28024 "Au| Aeyueg 'sdO 1LZ0z AeN  -ou| ‘Juswaebeuepy sounosay pinj4 §/.6¢ 120¢/80/90 084D
y0'eee’Le 00'9¢8°Lle " 9dellepM dLMM - PSPZ8 88Y€G AUl 00-2100-5+20 "ou| ‘dnoig) aoejepm ¥.6¢ 1€0¢/80/90 384D
¥0°L6V'6 0G°L6 "v) @sealn 9 10 18 - 6269 €28€S "AY] 00-1 L00-S+20 "ou| ‘dnoig adejep ¥16Z  1€02/80/90 3}284D
¥566€'6 00'gee'e 110 JogeT PeRuo) - L0S9 wajsAg Aeyjues Joge JeRu0D $9}e100ssy g uuewsbeH €26  1202/80/90 oLl o)
P5¥90'9 Lges “rute g 'dey "dibg - 259 L2/1€/S 08LOC | 100V dlempiel 90y slaUI ¢.6C  120¢/20/90 398YD
£€'1L10'9 00009 sisal qe - 0¥S9 29¢G "AUl Lg/1/9 Juswalelg "ou| ‘[eondjeuy Jseo) auoleqy LL6C  1202/20/90 o8Yd
Xou A a4 91°G90°L S|ediway) - €059 L2/L2/G L6Y8YL |da AUl "ou| ‘oyioed Bejuuaig 0.6¢ 120¢/20/90 3}o9UD
L1°9vE"L G6°vZ0°1L sjediweayy - £059 1C/02/S 69€9Y L Idg AUl "ou| ‘oy1oed Bejuusig 0462  12¢0¢/20/90 3o8Yd
[ AN XA 96'veL seninn - 0659  JeIsdwnQ pA Z LSEP0LE-0Z L JOQUINN "J00Y aouag Alejiueg Ajunod yinog 143 1202/20/90 3I[UD
92’981 92981 1ouwIR)u| / duoyda|a] - G859 S ¥06 91¥6-G6S S08 # 10%e 181V 143 120¢/10/90 284D

Kejyuesg

(1) VAR 0218 sjy6i rejoL
(1) VAR 6.'G0¢ selliN - 0659 2-90959/96.S #09€ sjubiq S o4 3%9d 143 1202/v2/90 394D
19°L1LS 98'101 sanuun - 0659 0-29€5512666 # 1098 siybi] Auojo) Ie0d 143 1202/€0/90 Ho84D
GL60% S.'60% sapinN - 0699 €-¥869/60690 # 109€ s}ybi umo| 3%9d 143 120¢/€0/90 v_mwso

syonn

aosuejeg junowy Junoossy oWy aweN wnp ajeq adAy

k20 sunp

SJUNO22Y/M pund Aq s)o9ynH LZivLilo

101381 S9TIAIDG AJUNWIWOY) Yoeag BJIAY



10:35 AM
07/14/21

Accrual Basis

Avila Beach Community Services District

Profit & Loss
June 2021

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income Summary
4010 - Operating Revenue
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee
4020 - Contract Services-Ambulance
4030 - County Taxes

Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees
5110 - Amex
5120 - Chase Paymentech
5140 - Invoice Cloud

Total 5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees

5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.

Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

Jun 21

88,255.37
2,156.04
1,089.31
4,953.40 -

96,454.12
96,454.12
96,454.12

14.85
142.40
413.46

570.71

3,192.25
0.00
0.00
0.00

3,192.25
57.89

800.00
800.00

269.11
269.11
117.12
4,436.37

Page 1



10:35 AM Avila Beach Community Services District
07/14/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis June 2021
Jun 21
6000 - Administrative Overheads
6102 - Accounting 1,020.00
6117 - Billing Software & Service 850.00
6120 - Dues & Subscriptions 344.77
6135 - Legal 345.00
6140 - Office Supplies & Postage
6142 - Postage & Shipping 323.59
6143 - Supplies, Office 284.95
Total 6140 - Office Supplies & Postage 608.54
6145 - Public Notices 74.55
6150 - Rate Assistance 884.03
6170 - Website 200.00
Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads 4,326.89
6500 - Operating Expenses
6503 - Chemicals 3,233.79
6505 - Contract LaborO & M 20,179.64
6506 + Contract Labor GM 1,595.00
6507 - Contract Labor Civil Engineer 4,640.00
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.
6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD 2,714.48
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only ~ 679.37
Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint. 3,393.85
6525 - Fat Oil & Grease (FOG) 97.50
6535 - Insurance P/L 1,919.00
6540 - Lab Tests 3,600.00
6542 - Maintenance 65.00
6555 - Permits & Fees 65.00
6580 - Solids Handling 1,775.00
6585 - Telephone / Internet 493.56
6590 - Utilities 4,302.45
Total 6500 - Operating Expenses 45,359.79
Total Expense 54,693.76
Net Ordinary Income 41,760.36

Page 2



10:35 AM

07/14/21
Accrual Basis

Profit & Loss
June 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
7200 - Non-Operating Income
7210 - Connection Fees

Total 7200 - Non-Operating Income
Total Other Income

Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8245 - WWTP Improvement Project

8245d - WWTP Wallace Group Enginee...

Total 8245 - WWTP Improvement Project
8246 - WW Swr Ln Rpimt San Migl

8246¢c - WW Swr Ln Rpimt Sn Migl Pha...

Total 8246 - WW Swr Ln Rplmt San Migl

Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani

Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

Jun 21

1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00

21,836.00
21,836.00

115.00
115.00
21,951.00
21,951.00
21,951.00
-20,951.00
20,809.36

Page 3



12:36 PM

08/04/21
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash
1008 - Petty Cash
1010 - Pacific Premier Checking
1050 - LAIF

Total 1000 - Cash Summary
Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable
1270 - Taxes Receivable
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings

Total 1250 - Receivables

1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance

Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr

Total 1605 - Office Equipment

1610 * Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep.

Jul 31, 21

325.00

82.83
427,559.43
3,878,008.56

4,305,975.82
4,305,975.82

76,469.00
76,469.00

11,317.42
23,892.61
145,983.78

181,193.81

19,749.07
19,749.07
200,942.88
4,583,387.70

8,233.58
-8,233.58

0.00

4,526.21
-4,526.21

Page 1



12:36 PM

08/04/21
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District

Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Ad...

1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1634 - Other Equipment
1634a - Other Equipment Cost

Total 1634 - Other Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636  Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum D...

1642 - Treatment Equipment - Oth...

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr
1652 - Equipment - Other

Total 1652 - Equipment

1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost

Jul 31, 21
0.00

60,314.10

1,318,875.26
-545,463.32

773,411.94

611,174.66
-376,478.88

234,695.78

6,973.40
6,973.40

105,000.00
2,049,098.30
-1,248,125.98

905,972.32

1,087,410.54
-704,848.55
205,485.61

588,047.60
2,569,415.14

21,136.28
-21,136.28
74.79

74.79

1,263,996.77

Page 2



12:36 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/04/21 Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2021

Accrual Basis

1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr
Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water

1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset

1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA

1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep

Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset

1690 - Construction in Progress

Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.

Total Fixed Assets -

Other Assets

1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2201 - Accrued Payroll
2260 - Vacation Payable
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued

Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities

2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held

Total 2300 - Deposits Held
Total Other Current Liabilities

Jul 31, 21
-690,947.00

573,049.77
573,124.56

82,207.29
-46,485.99

35,721.30
248,213.98
3,426,474.98
3,426,474.98

24,772.00
24,772.00

8,034,634.68

69,461.88
69,461.88

2,095.00
1,509.41
787.39

4,391.80

4,610.00
4,610.00
9,001.80

Page 3



12:36 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/04/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2021

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Jul 31,21
78,463.68

131,246.00
7,928.00

139,174.00
217,637.68

85,498.07
8,032,781.91
-301,282.98

7,816,997.00

8,034,634.68

Page 4



| abed

zZ09LL'G- 09°0Zv- "aelwald oyoed - 0101 9)seM - IW INNP LZ A4 401 1202/80/20 usodsQg
Zy'G69'7- ¥8'8- risjwald dylded - 0101 Z¥Y0  120z/L0/L0 Wsodeq
85989y~ 000 elWeld dljided - 0101 Ld9YO  1202/L0/L0 MWsodeQ
857989 - 98'g islweld olided - 0101 souejsissy aley  1.202/L0/.0 ¥sode(
v'269v- v’ 48¢- Tsiwald dyided - 0101 o9y lueS  1202/L0/.0 ¥sodaQ
LO'SOP - ¥9°60¢- Trislulsld ouided - 0L0} Z4W0  1202/90/L0 usodag
2£°G60'p- 000 risiweld diloed - 0L0} LU0 1202/90/20 Wsode(
L€°S60°v- 65V isiwald ouioed - 0LOL aouejsissy sley  1202/90/.0 WsodeQg
96°660 Y- rAVA A isiweld diioed - 0L01 J9y lueS  1g0e/90/.0 ¥sode(Q
€L2TVL |- 000 Trislweld duioed - 0101 ZJUI0  1202/50/20 usodag
€LTYL L 000 risiweld dyided - 010l L YO  1202/50/20 usodeQ
eLevl'L- 65V rlslweld oylded - 010} aouelsissy aley  1.Z0z/50/20 Hsoda(
ce YL L 60°051- risiwald oiioed - 0LOL o9y lues  1z0z/S0/L0 wsodeQ
€T°L6S'}- 000 rislweld olloed - 0101 ZJeUl0  L20g/b0/L0  Wsodeq
€C°16G'L- 000 risjwsld Jiioed - 0101 LYo  1202/v0/L0  Nsodeg
€T°165'}- 8¢, isjwald oljloed - 0LOL souejsissy ajey  LZ0Z/P0/L0 ¥sode(Q
LSP09°L- Zy'og- Trsjweld dijioed - 0L0L %9y lues  1Z0Z/F0/L0 WsodaQ
60'89G"L- 000 risjwald diided - 0L0L ZJoyl0  120z/€0/L0 WisodeQ
60°89G°L- 000 rsiwald duided - 0L0L L YO 1202/0/L0 Wsode(
60'895°L- 06'1L “relwald dijioed - 0LOL souejsissy @y  Lz0Z/€0/L0 ¥sodsQg
66'695L- 19'SCL- rislulaid ouided - 0LOL 99y luBS  1202/€0/20 ¥sodsQ
ZEVYY')L- 000 rialwald Joed - 0101 ZJYlo  1202/20/.0 ¥sodeQ
zevryL- 000 isiweld duided - 0L0oL LIBYI0  1202/20/L0 WsodeQ
cevrYyL- 000 elwald dljided - 0LOL souejsissy ajed  1g0e/20/L0 Hsode(Q
ceEvryL- 0£'98- Tslwald dyided - 0101 o9y IUBS  1202/20/L0 ¥sodag
20°8G€E° |- 61 9vY- risiwald Jyided - 0101 ZJ4u0  1202/10/20 WsodagQ
€8°L16- 000 isjweld dyioed - 0LOl L BUIO  1202/1L0/L0 HsodeQ
€5°1L16- 19’62 Trisjwiald diided - 0L0L souesissy ajey  L¢0¢/L0/L0  WsodeQg
YL Ly6- vl Lv6- risjwsld Jiioed - 0101 o9y lueg  1z0Z/L0/L0 Msods(Q

Liejueg

1e°6.¢- 1€°Gl¢- sybi |eyol
LEe°GLC eevse- rislwald oYioed - 0LOL T SIYOIT ‘GZ J8lB M (0L T USD - | # dINI HOV3E YIAY - 0920'Y 6680:4  1202/62/.0 WsodeqQ
Sl'Le- Si'le- rislwRld Jiided - 0101 SO sp6IT ‘Gz 199e M ‘0L " U9D - L # ¥dNI - IW ANNC L2 A4 401 1202/80/L0 U%m%o

sybI

11°668°¢- 11°GG8'¢- ulwpy / [eJsusg [EjoL
£1°668'¢- G0'6SS'e- “TISIWRd Oyloed - 0L0L T SWBIT ‘Gz 1ele M ‘0L T UBD - | # JINI HOVIE YIIAY - 0920V §680:d  1202/62/.0 NsodeqQ
Zl'96¢- 2l'962- rislwiald dided - 0L0lL GO" SWBIT ‘G2 191 M 0L " URD - | # ¥dINI - AW INNF LZ A4 401 1202/80/20 Wsode@

ulwpy / [e1auas)

aouejeg junowy nids owap ajeq adA}

2oz Ainp

pung Aq sjisodeq 121¥0/80

1PUISIg S991AIS ANUnWWwon yoeag ejIAY



Z obed

20'265'se- 11’62 rlslweld oiloed - 0LoL Z4WO  1202/L1/20 wsodsQg
€.°188'Ge- 000 risjwald oiioed - 0L0L L BYO  1202/LL/L0 usodeQ
€.°188'Ge- 6v' vy Triglwsld duided - 0LOL douejsissy aley  1¢0e/LL/L0  WsodeQ
22'2e6'se- G1°988'0L- isiwsld duoed - 0L0) 09y lueg  1z0Z/LL/L0 ¥sode(
L0°9v0°Ge- 000 rislWald oiided - 0L0L ZJOW0  1202/21/20 wsoda(Q
L0'9v0°Ge- 000 lelwald ouioed - 0L01 LJoyl0  Leoe/LL/L0  wsodeQ
L0'9v0°Ge- yAsh 4" “rlslweld ouyoed - 0LOL souejsissy ey 1202/21/.0 WsodeQ
¥9°090°Ge- ygeL- rolwLld oiloed - 0101 o9y lues  1g0z/LL/L0  wsodeq
08°286've- 000 islaldg oyioed - 0101 2440 1202/91/.0 sodag
08°.86've- 000 Trslweld oilded - 0101 LJBYI0  1202/91/20 ¥sodaq
08°.86'v¢- 000 riswald oided - 0101 souelsissy ajey  1202/91/L0 usodeQ
08,86 'v2- 009S¢°L- risjwald olloed - 0101 o9y lues  1z0z/91/L0 usodag
08'LeL'ee- 91°2.0'C- Trlslwaldg Jioed - 0101 1 2/S2/9 - 62/S swool)say died Apunwwod  120zZ/5L/L0  ¥sodeqg
Y9 v¥89°L2- 000 Trlajwsid olided - 0L0L Zuo  1zoz/sl/i0  wsodeq
Yo' ve9'Le- 000 riglwsid Jiioed - 0LOL LIBWI0  1L20z/SL/L0  WsodsQ
y9'vS9°Lz- 19¢Ch ielwald olioed - QLOL aouejsissy ajey  120z/S1/L0 WsodeQ
Le'L99°Le- L ree- rislwsld olloed - QLOL o9y lueS  1g0Z/SL/L0 ¥sodeq
Lleee’le- oLl rlsiweid duided - 0L0) ZJ4UI0  1202/vL/L0  Wsoda(
€o'vre‘Le- 000 “rslWaid olioed - 0L0L LJaWo  120eg/rL/L0  ¥sodeq
€9 PreLe- Ly'¥S rislwald oiided - 0L0L aoue)sissy 1By L20Z/vL/L0  Wsode(
oL'66¢€‘Le- L2'856°C- “rlslWeld ouoed - 0LoL o9y lues  1g0e/rl/L0  ¥sodeq
680V 'glL- ot'€9e- “rislweld oilded - 0101 ZJeyl0  1eoz/el/iLo  ysodeQ
€v°L.0'8L- L2 '¢9G- islwald ouloed - 0101 LYo  120z/cL/iL0  Wsodeg
SIS LL- 18°L1 risiwald oyloed - 0L0| aouejsissy aley  1g0Z/gL/L0  HsodeQ
60°LeSLL- 66°902°¢c- rislweld oylded - 0LOL o9y lues  1z0z/cL/L0  usode(Q
oL°02e'vL- 000 risjwald diided - 0LO) ZPYo  L2oz/el/Lo  Wsodeq
01L°02e'vL- 000 rislweld oloed - 0101 LYo  12oz/eL/Lo  wsodeq
oLozeEvL- 000 “rislwsld dllded - 0L0L aouejsissy aley  1Z0z/gL/L0  Msode(
oLoze'vL- 808 L- Trisjwald oyioed - QL0 o9y lueg  1z0z/¢L/L0  WsodeQ
z0eLL'YL- 000 “relWald oyoed - QLoL ZPYo  120z/0L/20 wsodeq
0Ly 000 islweld duided - 0101 L BYO  1202/0L/L0 NsodeQg
coeLL'pL- 16°1S rlsiwsid duided - L0l souelsissy aley  120Z/01/.0 Nsoda(Q
6662C'vL- 96'GCh- rlelwald diided - 0101 09y lueg  120z/0L/.0 ¥sode(Q
€0708°CL- 000 rislWeld Jiioed - 0L0L ZJ4oWO  1202/60/L0 Ysode(
€0'v08°cL- 000 isiweld oyided - 0101 L BYO  1202/60/L0 Hsodag
€0'708°clL- 000 isiwald olloed - 0LOL aouelsissy aley  120¢/60/.0 Wsoda(Q
€0'v08'clL- 2.2'00%- aslwald oyioed - 0101 o9y lueg  1z02/60/L0 ¥sode(
LEE0VEL- 88°L0L- rislweld oiioed - 0LOL ZJoUYi0  1202/80/L0 ¥sodaQ
evgeeel- 000 islweld olided - 0LOL LBYO  1202/80/L0 usode(Q
ev's62'cl- L7'9¢€ rlsiwald oyioed - 0101 aouelsissy ajey  120Z/80/L0 WisodsQ
yeLee'el- z86le'e- risiweld Jlioed - 0L0L o9y lues  1zZ0z/90/L0 ¥sode(Q
aouejeqg junowy Hids INETT ajeq adA)
120z AIne
pung Aq s)isodaq 12/0/80

1oU)SI S9IAI9G AJlUNWWOY) Yoeag e|IAY



¢ abed

99'Gee 61~ 99'GeE 6¥- Aejueg [ejo)
99'GE€ 61~ 000 “Tislwald oyoed - 0L01 Z4Ylo  120z/0€/.0 WsodeQ
99'GEE ‘61~ 000 “islwald oyioed - 0LoL L BYIO  1202/0€/L0 WsodeQ
99°'GEE ‘61~ 000 “risiWald dIIoed - 0101 souejsissy ajey  120z/0€/L0 Wsodag
99'GEE ‘6¥- ¥1°50G- “Tisiweld dUioed - 0L0L 09y IUBES  1202/0€/.0 ¥sodag
z5°0e8'8h- 20'SEL'S- rlslald oljided - 0101 XYL a34N03S ¥HND - 0920'V §680:4  1202/62/.0 MNsodeQ
0S°'569°Ch- ¥9°08¢- "isiweld dyloed - 010} ZWo  leoz/ez/L0  WsodeQ
98'v1E'eH- 000 rislwRld dyioed - 0101 LU0 1202/62/L0 WsodeQ
98'vlE'eH- 000 rlelwald dijioed - 0101 souejsissy sjey  1zZ0z/62/L0 ¥Wsoda(Q
9g'vie'er- CTRAR A “ri9lwald dyided - 0101 o9y lues  1z0z/62/L0 ¥sode(Q
LLol'er- 08 LY L- “risiweld oljloed - 0L0L ZJU0  120e/82/L0 YsodeQg
LE€S6 L~ 000 “lalwald Jiloed - 0101 L 1BYIO  1202/82/L0 Wsods(
LE€S6 L 8Z'L “lalweld oyoed - 0101 aouejsissy @1 1.202/8¢/L0 WsodaQ
65°096°Lv- 06'6€2- rislwald ooed - 0101 o9y lueg  120Z/8¢/.0 ¥sode(
69°02L L¥- 000 rislweld ooed - 0101 Yo  1202/92/L0 ¥sodsQg
69°02L L1 000 "islwald oyoed - 0LoL LYo  1202/92/.0 sodeQ
69°02L - 92| “rislwald dyloed - 0101 souesissy ajey  1202/9¢/.0 WsodeQ
9e'eeL L 06'L¥0°L- “islWRld JIoed - 0101 o9y IueS  120z/9z/L0 ¥sode(
9¥'589°01- €28 “islweld JyIoed - 0L0L ZWo  Leoz/ee/Lo  usodag
L1°192°0b- 000 “islwLld dIIoed - 010L L IBUIO  L20z/ee/L0  WsodeQ
LL°292'01- 000 “Tislwald diioed - 0LOL souelsissy aley  Lg0g/€Z/L0  WsodeQ
12°191'0v- 0€'98- “rlslwald diided - 0101 o9y lueg  1z0g/€e/L0 MsodaqQ
L1°189'0F- 68°0S| “rialweid dyided - 0101 2O  Leoz/ez/L0  WsodsQ
9¢'8¢8'0p- 000 “rlalwald dyided - 0L0L LBWO  1202/22/L0 Nsods(Q
9€£'8¢8'0v- 866 "islwald dlloed - 0101 souejsissy ajey  1202/2g/L0  Nsode(
vE'8v8°0v- L' L9z- “aslwald oyoed - 0101 o9y lues  1z0Z/ge/L0  Wsode(
€2°18G°0- 198 “islwald dyloed - 0101 ZWo  120z/Le/L0  usodeQ
06565 0~ 000 “rislweld dyoed - 0L0L L BYIO  120e/1e/L0  Wsode(Q
06'565 0~ 18711 “rislwald dyioed - 010} aouejsissy aley  120Z/1g/.0 ¥sode(
L1109°0t- oL'els- "rislwald oyloed - 0LOL o9y lues  1g0Z/Le/L0 usodeQ
19'v£8°6E- 000 "rislwald oyioed - 0LOL ZUYo  120z/0Z/L0 WsodeQ
19've8'6¢- 000 risiwald dyIoed - 0101 L 1BYI0  1202/02/L0 WsodeQ
L9vE8'6E- 000 “islwald JIoed - 0L0L souelsissy aley  1202/02/L0 usodag
19'v€8'6¢- 0¢'98- “risiwald duyoed - 010l o9y lues  1z0z/0z/L0 ¥sodaQ
1€'8v/.'6E- 91'220C rIelwald Jiloed - 0LOL /9 - 62/G WooNsaY sued Ajunwwo Alsjesedss paxooq OQ0TS HOY  L202/6L/L0  WsodeQ
€6'G28' Ly~ 18 2€)- “Ulslwald dyded - 0L0L ZByo /L Lzoe/el/iLo0  wsodaQ
2L 189 L v- 000 “asiwsld dyloed - 0LOL LYo 2/l 120Z/6L/L0  usodag
2L 189\ - £6'9Z rlelwald ooed - 0L0L aouejsissy 9jey  L¢0g/61/.0 WsodsQ
SOPLL LY €9CCL'0- “rlslwald oyioed - 0101 o8y IUBS  1202/6L/L0 ¥sodeq
aosueeg junowy ydg OWBN ajeq adA)
120z Ainp
pund Aq s)isodaq 1Z/¥0/80

JoL3ISIg S99IAI8G AJIUNWIWOY) Yyorag BlIAY



¢ abed

20'650°8- 000 relwald oyloed - 010} souejsissy aley  1202/60/.0 WsodeQg
20°650'8- ¥ Siy- rlalwsld oijidoed - 0LOL o9y JojeM  1202/60/.0 Wsode(
€9'6€9°L- 000 “rislueld ouloed - 0L0I Z4YI0  1202/80/L0 MsodeQg
€9°6€9°/- 000 isiweld oyloed - 0LoI L BYO  1202/80/.0 Msode(Q
€9°6€9°L- 00'9S lsleld oyioed - 0LoL souejsissy aley  1Z02/80/L0 ¥Hsode(Q
£€9°669°/- LL'69%'e- islwalg oyded - 010l o9y JBlep  1202/80/L0 ¥sodag
25'922'v- 9.'601L- rlelwald oloed - 0LOL GO  SWBIT ‘GZ" 181BM ‘0L " UBD - | # HdI - IW INNI LZ A4 401 1202/80/20 usodeq
9, 02L'v- 000 rlslweld ouoed - 0LoL Z4WOo  1202/L0/20 WsodaQg
CINVAN & 000 islweld olioed - 0LOL L BYO  1202/L0/L0 ¥sodeQ
9L 02L'Y- €L'¢ Trislweld oyioed - 0101 oouelsissy djey  1202/L0/L0 hisodeQ
6V veL'y- vZ'8es- “rlsiwsld Juloed - 0101 09y 9 1202/,0/20 ¥sodsQg
STAL T o 000 rislWeld Jiided - 0L0L ZJ8Y0  1202/90/L0 NsodsQ
GC'96S'e- 000 lslwaid ouioed - 0LOL L BYO  1202/90/L0 MusodeQg
G2'965°e- 6£°01 risjwald olloed - 0L01 souejsissy ey  1202/90/L0 sodaQ
79°909°¢- Zr'e0e'e- isiwald olioed - 0LOL o9y JoYeM  1202/90/.0 ¥soda(
TAANV 000 rlalRid ooed - 0L0L ZJOYO  1202/50/L0 YsodeQ
TAANV 000 risiwald duloed - 01Ol L BYO  1202/50/L0 ¥sode(Q
2T e0e’L- 6eolL asiwald oyioed - 0101 souelsissy dley  1202/50/.0 Wsode(
L9°ELE - 7.'991- riglweld olided - 0L0L o9y J9lep  120Z/50/L0 usodeQ
18°9PL°L- 000 Triglsid Jided - 0101 ZJaUl0  1202/t0/20 WsodeQ
18°9VLL- 000 “lalwald oyloed - 0LoL L BYIO  1202/70/L0 ¥usodeQg
189pL' |- TN rislwald oiided - 0LOL aouejsissy ajey  1.Z0Z/P0/L0 usode(Q
L0°8SL - 86°G5- Telwsld d4loed - 0101 o9y PIBM  L20Z/70/L0 Wsodaq
60°20L°L- 000 rislwsld olioed - 010} ZUI0  1202/€0/L0 ¥sodaQ
60°20L°L- 000 rislweid dlded - 0L0L L0 120Z/€0/L0 ¥sode(Q
60°20L’L- 856 lolwsld Juived - 0L0L aoue)sissy ajey  1Z0Z/c0/.0 WsodeQ
LOLLL L L9°6LL- lalwald olioed - 0LOoL o9y Bl 1Z02/c0/L0 NsodeQ
90'Z¢6- 000 ielwsld oyioed - QLoL ZYo  1202/20/L0 WsodeqQ
90°¢E6- 000 “rlajweid duided - 0101 L JBYI0  120Z/20/L0 ¥sodeQ
90'¢E6- 000 rigiwRad dided - 0101 aouelsissy dley  1202/20/.0 Nsode(
90'2E6- LO'9LL- “rlsiBld duoed - 0L0L o9y JeleM  1202/20/.0 NsodaQ
S091L8- 000 Tisiwsld diioed - 0L0} ZJ4Ylo  1202/L0/.0 Wsodeg
S0'918- 000 “rlalWeld diided - 0L0L L BYI0  1202/10/L0 WsodeQ
G0'918- L6'9F rslweld olioed - 0L0L aouejsissy ajey  1g0z/1L0/.0 ¥sode(Q
96°298- 96°298- rlsiweld oiioed - 0LoL o9y IBlepM  1202/10/L0 Wsodeq

191

¥0'951°2- ¥0'951°Z- SIse/ plloS |10 L
0951 °C- 0961 2" lelweld oiioed - 0LOL MS 994 asiyoue.4 suoiosuuo) alsep  120g/1z/L0  Wsode(

9)sep pllos

asuejeg junouwry ndg ows ajeq odA]

1zoz Aine

pung Aq sjisodaqg 12/¥0/80

JoU3SId S991A19g AunWWo) yoeag BjIAY



g obed

oevLo‘er- 000 “isiwlsld dlided - 0LOL ¢ 18yl /L 120Z/61/40 ¥sodeQ
oevLoZy- 000 “rllwisld dyided - 0LOL L BUYIO ¢/1 1202/61/L0 Wsods(
0E'v1L0CY- rAA laluald duioed - 0101 aouejsissy ajed 120Z/61/.0 WsodeQ
25'6v0°ey- S6'CLCQ- Tasluwald oyided - 0LOL o9y J9lEM  L20Z/61/20 Nsodeq
159L2°¢g- 000 risisld ofoed - 0L0L ZJ4Y0  1202/Z1/.0 WsodeQg
169.7°¢e- 000 rlelulald oiioed - 0101 L YO  1202/L1/20 Wsodeg
18°9//°¢ce- €Y'8G TUisiwsld oded - 0L0L adue)sissy sjey 1202/21/20 WsodaQg
00°'6e8°¢ce- 00 0veE‘LL- risiweld dyded - 0L0L o9y J8lepM  LZ0T/LL/IL0  ¥usodeq
yev6r'ce- 000 islwald dljided - 010} Y0 1202/L1/L0 Wsodeq
e v6vee- 000 lsllald ouided - 0101 LIBYIO  1202Z/L1L/20 ¥sodeq
vevevce- 0'¢e Tislweld olioed - 010l aouelsissy aled  120z//1/.0 WsodaqQ
v.9l5'ce- 96'LL1L- lslweld ouioed - 0LOL o9y JeleM  1202/LL/L0  wsodeQ
8L v0v'2e- 000 Tislweld Jyided - 0LOL ZJU0  1202/91/.0 WsodaqQ
8L v0v'ze- 000 Trislweld Jlloed - 0101 LIBYO  1202/9L/20 ksodag
8L v0v'Ce- 000 “rlelwald alioed - 010} souejsissy aley  1.Z0Z/91/L0 ¥sode(
8L ¥0v'ee- Zeese- “llsjuwlald aljloed - 0L0l o9y IOl 1202/91/.0 Nsode(Q
9s’1e0'ee- 02 08Y'L- “lglllald dyloed - 0L0L L2/S2/9 - 62/S swWoousay Yled Ayunwwiod  1z0z/S51/.0  usodeQ
9’ L¥S'0e- L7996~ lalulald ouloed - 0LOI 12/ST/9 - 62/S uoneblu| yeeng uold  LZ0Z/SL/Z0  Wisodeq
POv.G'61- €€°GE6)- IslWeId oioed - 0LOL 12/S2/9 - 62/S uonebu| uenp ues  LZoz/SL/L0  Wsodeq
LE'6E9'LL- 000 rislwRld oyioed - 0L0L ZY0o  1202/51/.0 usodeQg
1E6E9°LL- 000 rasiledd dyided - 0L0L LYo  1202Z/SL/20 ¥Nsodeq
LE'6EQ‘LL- A AN Uislwald Jlioed - 0LOL aouejsissy ajey  Lz0eg/S1/.0 ¥sodag
€172S9°L1L- [A0N% “rasiweld dyioed - 0LOL o9y JBleM  LZ0T/SL/L0  WsodaQ
LLELT LL- 000 islulald olioed - 0LO1 ZYo  12og/vl/iLo0  Wsodag
LLVELE LL- 000 lelald olloed - 0101 LBYO  120zZ/vL/iL0  Wsodeg
LLELE LL- oL risjwisld oyioed - 0L0L aouejsissy ajey  1g0Z/vL/L0  HsodeQ
GG'€8e L1~ 8G'¥0.L'G- isjwald oljioed - 0L0oL o9y J8lep  L20Z/vL/L0  Wsodeg
16'82G'L1- 000 “rlelweld ouioed - 0L0L ZYI0  Leoz/iel/Lo0  wsodeq
16'82G L1~ 000 rlslweld olioed - 0101 LYo  Leoz/el/Lo0  ysodeqg
16'8/G'L1L- 69°Lc Taslweld dyided - 0L0OL 9JUB]SISSY djey l2oz/cL/L0  wsodaQ
95'009'L L- sgelee- Trislwlld O110ed - 0L0L o9y 1o L202/EL/L0  Wsode(
10°28€E'8- 000 rislweld ayioed - 0LOL ZJYO  1202/21/L0 wsodeQ
10'28¢E'8- 000 Tslwald d110ed - 0LOL LU0  120Z/ZL/0  ¥sodaq
L0°/8¢'8- 000 “i9lBId JI0Ed - 0LOL ouBjsIssY 9ley 1202/2L/L0 VsodaQg
L0°L8€E‘8- 60°081- isiweld oljided - 0L01 o9y Jolep 1202/2L/L0  Wsodeq
6'902°8- 000 isllleld ouioed - 0101 ZJ4Y0  1202/01/.0 WsodeQ
26'902°8- 000 “lelulald duioed - 0101 LBYO  120Z/01/20 ¥sodeQ
26'902°9- 8Y°C9 “isllald oiioed - QLOL souejsissy ajey  120Z/0L/.0 Wsoda(
0¥'692'8- gevie islwald oliloed - 0L01 o9y Jelep  1202/04L/L0 Wsodag
10°650°8- 000 Tlisleld Jyided - 0101 ZJYl0o  1202/60/.0 Wsodag
20°650'8- 000 lelweld olloed - 010l L BP0  1202/60/L0 ¥sode(Q
aouejeyg junowy yds oW ajeq adA)
bzoz Aine
pund Aq s)isodaq LZ/90/80

JoULISIg S391A198 AJUnNWWo) |yoeaq ejIAY



9 9bed

S1°0L6'86- S1°0L6'86- aviol
L6'L8Z'cY- 16°282'Ch- Blep [ejoL
16'.L82'EP- 000 riajwslid oyided - 010} ZJ4Yl0  1202/0€/.0 Wsodaq
L6282 EY- 000 lelwaid oiided - 0L0L LJBYIO  1202/0€/L0 ¥sodeQ
L6°L82'EH- 000 lelwald oyioed - 0LOL aouejsissy 8jey  1Z02/0€/40 WsodaQ
16282 °CY- (XAVAS o rislweld duoed - 0LoL o9y BleM  1202/0€/20 Wsodeq
89°0.8°¢- 60 1L2°L- “rielwaid olloed - 0L0L T SIYBIT ‘Gz 19l '0L T UBD - | # dINI HOVIE VIAY - 0920V §680:4  1Z02/62/.0 usodaQ
65665 L1~ 000 lelWeld ouided - 0L0L U0  1202/62/.0 WsodeQ
65665 Li- 000 rislwald ooed - 0L0L L BYI0  120e/6e/L0  Hsodeq
65°66S°Lv- 000 rislWeld oyided - 0L0L aoue)sissy oley  1202/62/.0 usoda(Q
65665 L1~ GL'62E'L- risiweld diioed - 0104 o9y JA)ep  1202/62/.0 Wsode(Q
124V A A 000 rielweld oiided - 0101 ZJyl0  1202/82/L0 wsode(
vy 0L2'01- 000 risiweld olioed - 0LoL L BP0 1202/82/.0 ¥usodeQ
vy 0L2'01- oc'LL islweld oiioed - 0LOL souelsissy ajey  1202/8¢/L0 Wisoda(Q
¥9°1L82'0t~ geele- rislweld oiided - 0LOL o9y JeleM  1202/82/L0 WsodeQ
L£'896'6¢- 000 TrislwRld oyioed - 0101 Zuo  120z/9z/L0 usodag
L€'896'6¢- 000 Trislwsld Jiided - 0101 Loyl0  1202/92/£0 usodsQ
1€'896'6¢- a8el Trsjwald duided - 0101 aouejsissy aley  1202/92/L0 NsodsQ
€1°186'6¢- €v'€86- riglwiald duided - 0LoL ooy oM 1202/92/L0 NsodaQ
0/°.66'8¢- 000 risiwald diioed - 010l ZJoyio  12oz/ez/L0  wsodaq
0/°.66'8¢E- 000 lsiWeld dudoed - 0101 L YO 1202/82//0 ¥sodsQ
0.°266'8¢- 000 rlelwsid olded - 0LOL aoue)sissy aley  1202/€¢/.0 ¥sode(
0.°,66°Q¢- Lo'gllL- rlelWald oided - 0L0L o9y JleM  1202/€e/L0  WsodaQg
69'188°8¢- 000 islWeld Juioed - 0L0L ZJ4oYl0  1202Z/2z/L0 usodaQ
69°188°g¢- 000 “risiweld ouloed - 0104 LU0 1202/22/L0 ¥sode(
69°188'g¢- Lo¢l “ria1weld dijided - 0101 aouejsissy ajey  1202/¢e/L0  ¥sodeg
0,°€688¢- aeeve- rislWsid oiided - 0L0L o9y Bl 1202/2Z/L0  usodaQ
8¥°GY9'g¢- 000 Trislweld duved - 0L0L Z¥uUI0  1202/Lz/L0  wsodaq
8¥'Gv9'ge- 000 Trlslweld J0ed - 0L0L LU0  1Z0Z/le/L0  usodaQ
8v'Sv9'8¢- 65°Le Tislweld J4ided - 0LOL souelsissy ajey  1Z0Z/1Z/L0 usode(Q
10°199'8¢- L0'6L6- Trlslwlld Jided - 0101 o9y JeleM  1202/L2/L0 Wsodaq
90'8vL'Le- 000 Trislwald Jijioed - 0101 Z2J8y0  1202/0Z/L0 WsodaQg
o0'8rL'Le- 000 rislwsad diioed - 0LoL L BYO  1202/02/L0 ¥usodsQ
o0'8rL'Le- 000 Tswald oyloed - L0} aouejsissy ey  1202/02/L0 NsodsQ
90'8p.L .- LO9LL- isjweld dlloed - 010l o9y ;M 120Z/02/L0 NsodeQ
S0'Ce9'LE- €£°GE6'L “rislwald dyioed - 0101 12/S2/9 - 62/S uonebiuj yied uenr ueg Ajpjeledas paxooq OOQOTS HOV  L202/6L/20  WisodeQ
8€°,9G°6¢- €.'996 lsiWsld diided - 0L0L 12/52/9 - 62/S uonebiu 15 Juoi Ajajeledas paxooq OOOTS HOV  1202/61L/20 WsodeQ
01" ¥€S 0p- 0T'08Y'L TIslWRld oWioed - 0L0L /9 - B2/G Woolisay dled Ayunwiwo) Ajpjesedss pa)ooq OD0TS HOV  L202/6L/20  ¥sodeq
aoueeg junowly nds ajeq adAL
pung Aq sjisodaqg 1ZIv0/80

1o13SIg S99IAI9G AUNWwiWo? yoeag ejiAy



| abed

ey'200'0L2 £¥'290°0LC ulpy / [etsuso (ejoL
£¥'190'0LC 6V VY a0y ‘sanddng - €119 sojdels L Z0Z/0S/L0 pRile)
¥6'220'0L2 8¥'Sclh --nduosgns g seng - 0219 aunqul 9yl LZ0Z/0E/L0 pakllie)
o¥'168'69Z 86'CE nsuy pd 09 SHAd - 9525 LZ/VE/L - OL/L NS "AS Juswainay seekojduig aand 143 1202/62/L0 pak=llle)
8y v98'69¢ 9Z'Ll2 Angei] sHad - 05¢¢ LZ/Ve/L - OL/L NSy AS Juswieiey seahojdw] dugnd 143 1202/62/L0 %9340
7T 1v9'69¢  ST6E nsuy Pd 00 SHAd - 9525 LZ//SL/L - LI hsuy  AS Jueweiey seekoidw3 dland 143 1202/62/L0 %9840
16°109'69Z 98'65¢ Amiger] sH3ad - 0522 LZ/ISLIL - LiZ su  ~AS Juswieuney seekoidw3 oldnd 143 1202/62/L0 %¥98yD
11'8vc'69Z  BY'EE nsuy Pd 00 SH3Ad - 9528 1Z/0S/9 - OL/9 sy ~AS Juswielljoy seakoldw3 dIgqnd 143 120¢/62/L0 %98y9
Z9'v71€'692 88'10C Ajjiger] sH3ad - 0522 LZ/OE/9 - 91/0 NSy “AS Juswainey seskojdw3 aand 143 1202/62/L0 %¥984D
¥2°601'692  00°0L°}L nSuY Pd 00 SHad - 9625 “TYUN [enuuY Waqalq BSUY 90Z8.L8Y.LIL # al  -As uswainay seakodwy onand 1202/62/20 %o8uD
v1'696°207 00'Ov6'€l  AWEM Pd 0D S¥3d - ¥SZG T IBnULY uospieyoly Auley 0028287291 # Al AS Juswalley seafoldw3 oland 1202/62/20 %98U0
¥1'€20'vSC  00'6YL “uley g "day "dib3 - $259 sueday sepndwod siendwo) 99) [eD 1202/42/20 %o8uD
vLvi8'€SC  99'18l sonN - 0659 ‘S sin ues 00l 3399d 143 1202/92/L0 %0940
80'€69'€GZ  S6'VeT Jousely| / suoyds|a] - 859 1/GE£008600157C8 "# 190V wnioadsg 143 1202/52/L0 398U
£1'89¥'€sZ Y09 yosyswAed esey - 0715 599} 90 JueydoW yosjueied LZ0Z/1 2120 39840
zllov'ese ey ol yosjusiwhed eseyd - 0218 S99} 99 JuBYIISW yosyuswAhed 1202/61/20 pcllie)
06°/6€'€GZ  00°ZZ8'€€Z T 10eAuoD aid |eD - 0099 ZZ/0€/9 - 1.Z/1/L A uonoajold aild juswpedaq ai4 0O OIS 600€  1202/6L/LO 3asyd
0£'G/G'61 00048 WO JogeT 10enuo) - 9069 L1 AIne - 18| Ainp Jabeue [e1ouaD) LG "AU| sojepossy g uuewabey  900€  120Z/61/L0 398yD
0€'60.4'8l 00°688'L WO JogeT JoenuoDd - 9069 T 8uNnf - Y9 sunf JebeuB [RIBUBD 6711 "AU| sojepossy g uuewabeq 900  120¢/61/L0 %o8uD
0€'0Z8'91 00°01S Bununodoy - Z01L9 Buideaxpiood Buidoaspioog iU DMIN -~ S00€  1202/61/L0 pelli)
0c0lE9lL 00'59 @oueudUB - Z¥S9 I1s0d uepzeid 143 1202/81/L0 %9840
0e'SPZ'ol 2101 yosjuswAhed eseyd - 0Z1S §99} 92 JuByoJaW yosjuawAied 1Z0Z/ELIL0 %o8u)d
€1°6€Z'91 18'716 ~-Jnsu| WO HOM - 0926 D SISHOM LL0L # JSqWBIN 85/69# S0 dwon YoM YINHAS  ¥00E  L20T/CLiL0 39849
ze0Ze'st $S°0VS'L aoueansu pedaid - 0Ll 0Z ebedoed Aunger Apedoud foljod [espuan foijod [eJeudD YWHAS ~ €00€  1202/eL/L0 paLlile}
81°611'L 00'099 Bununoody - Z0L9 1Z/0S/9 LOBZ "Au| fuidesypioog olBU BPIN 9662 1202/CH L0 %osy)
82'6L1°L 0062 aoUEUSIUIE - ZPGO  SHUGBQ pue pues ‘seAee o dn ues| JoLax3 -00 BulueslD suipseod  Z66¢  120¢/CH/L0 %98u0
8.'¥60°'L 00°S91 aouBuBIUIBY - 2PS9 (1202 ABW) 9GZZ "Aul 8dueusiuley OO ‘00 Bulues|) suipseod 7662  1202/CHL0 398U
8/'626'0 00041 upny Bununodoy - €019 upny 12-020Z Ad 411 ‘umoug @ deped 1662  1202/24/L0 393UD
816189 00°059 ~uiepy g 'dey "dib3 - ¥259 siieday Buipiing 8940 L2/S1/9 601 AUl uonorujsuo) [eseus Buny eyl 2862  120Z/CLIL0 piclle}
8/°691'9 0£'94€'S 8994 004v1 - 0£19 LZ/1/L “Au} 22/L20Z Seed 0041 J9jjouoD Joupny 00 018 986C  L20T/CL/L0 308YD
8¥'€6. 00°0v “ujep g "dey "dibg - 259 sJiedad JeIndwod sioIndwo 231 1BD 143 1202/0L/L0 308y
8v'€S. 0e'8el selddng Bupessdo - 0559 swa)sAg ssauisng soluosed 1.202/20/20 phatliie)
81619 15'9G¢ pnojD 8210AY - OV LS $99} JEYDIaW PNojD 8010AU| PNOJD82IoAY| 1202/L0/20 308y
19'852 1182 yosjuswAed eseyd - 0Z1S $89) 92 JUeyIIBW yoauawAed 1Z0Z/90/20 %98UD
¥8°622 S8l Xowy - 041G Xowy No9si ssaidx3 ueduaWy 1.202/90/20 3osud
661712 6671 --duosgng g seng - 0219 woo'8qopy 143 120%/S0/20 %98y
00002 00°00Z S)ISAOM - 0219 sujweens asoay Auow  |deq |enbi / wodaUlWESNRSID 143 1202/20/L0 %o8yD

ulupy / jesouany

aouejeg junowy JUNo22Y LITE T aweN wnN ayeq adA1

1zoz Ainr

SJUNO29Y/M pund Ag s3934D LZ/0/80

1oUSIA S291AIas Ajunwiwio) yoeag BlIAY



¢ abed

1€088'G/  1£088'GL Aejueg |ejol
1€°088'SL  09'LLL "|ig JOMBS g JSJeM - 0821 SO0 ray 30NVIVE 00 LINIWLSNrav IONY1ve rav  12oz/Le/L0 %o8YD
11891'GL  1v'681 Jowslu) / suoydale] - G8G9 S 06 91¥6-G65 GO08 # JooE 121V 143 1202/62/L0 ¥98yQ
0£°6.6'v.  €1L°20L seninN - 0659 Z-8£22EHBEET #1908 uoyeIs Y 339d 143 1202/92/L0 pial-lle]
L1ele'vl ZVval'e SN - 0659 dwnd 15 ueiq ues = pig I89d 143 1202/92/10 308U
S0'80L'2L 092/¢ Buussuibuy - G159 malney wolsAs Aeyueg ISda  800¢€  120e/6L/L0 308y
GG'GEL'LL  000EE S38YD Ueld - 0959 Jaupieg ISdd  800€  120Z/6L/L0 %o8yo
SS'SO¥'LL 000192 1) JOgET 0BNUOD - 0S92 ‘UiLL AINM - 38| AN wislsAS 1ues |LGLL “Au| sejeloossy g uuewsabe  900€  1202/61/40 piiliel
GG'S6.°89  00°G88‘L "1 J0gET JoR)uo) - 2059 1202 ‘UI0E unf WIISAG IUES OGLL "AU| sejeloossy B uuewsbeq  900€  1L20Z/61/L0 N99yD
G5'0L6'99  00°006'2 1D JogeT Joenuog - 2059 T 'Ul6L BUNf - YJ9 Bunp Wa)sAS IUeS 6f L | AUl sejeloossy g uuewsfeH  900€  1Z0Z/6L/L0 bV}
GS0L0'Y9  68'8S Joussju| / suoydale] - G8SY J8LIBYU| G@GO X # J00E 1oLy 143 1202/21/20 A998y
0,196'€9  05'¢€2 JouIBU| / Buoydela] - G8SY 2819162.2/8¢ #1008 181V 143 120Z/vLiL0 %o9yQ
02'826'€9  ¥SO¥S'L soueinsu| pledaid - OL¥L  "0Z 9bexoed Ajiger Auadoig Aoljod [essusn foljod [eisueD YWHAS  €00€  LZ0Z/ZL/L0 pral-lle)
99'/8€'95  Z6L9LL s|eajwayy) - €059 LZ/L1/9 $0SZSLIdE AUl "ou| ‘oyloed Bejuusrg 100 120Z/2L/L0 X094
vL6L2'6S 28298 lep g "doy "dinb3 - ZzG9 978/ ‘AUl LB6YEL-29 100V dLMM 8AuQ ¥4 Alddng ouyos|3 eiwoyled  Z0OE  1202/2L/L0 %994
Z6'9GE'YS  00'6G9'C sisa] qe - O¥S9 8825 12/1/L Wswele)g "ou| ‘[eonfjeuy jseo) suojeqy 6662 LZ0Z/ZL/L0 pRllie]
26'104'06 00591 “"B)Ulely J0JesBURD) - 0€G9  dLMM - Builse] Apspend Lz/01L/2 L86FY AUl "Ou| ‘asnoylomod sinjues 8662  120Z/ZL/L0 plal-lti]
Z6'9€G'0S  00°G9L SJUIB|y J0JBIBURD) - 0EG9 IS WIT - Bunse Apsuend LZ/01L/2 08611 AU "Ou| ‘asnoylomod sinjues 8662  1.Z0Z/ZL/L0 prtile}
Z6°LI€'0S  GZ'199 Ay UTIMS MM - 09b28 T BUIT JOMeg [enBI ues 1Z/0€/9 ZZLLL AUl "Ou 'sejeloossy R JojAe] ‘BuleD 2662 1L20Z/ZLIL0 ¥o8yd
L90LL'6Y  v9'BLSL s|edlwayd - €059 L2/S2/9 LLYLS)IdE AU "0u| ‘oyioed Bejuuslg  G66Z  1202/Z1L/L0 pisl-lle)
€0'L6L'8Y  99¢€8¢°L sjedlwayy - €059 LZ/L119 OLLFSLIdE AUl ‘ou| ‘oyioed Bejuusilg  GB6Z  L20Z/ZL/L0 3o8y)d
[€°708'9y  0G'GSL'8L T 9%BIBM JLMM - PSHZ8 " 00-ZL00-S¥Z0 # 108loid Bunssuibug 41 mm "ou| ‘dnoig @dejlep ¥66Z  1LZ0Z/ZL/L0 ¥o8yo
18°169'8C  0S°0v8‘) BunpueH spiios - 0859 L2/EZIY YTLGO# "AU| ou| ‘speedg 0662  1202/21/L0 %08y
1£118'92 1EEEE’) “"le|y @ "dey “dinb3 - Zzg9 INQ ||leD dwind jusnju| GG80ZM  'ou| ‘Juswabeuepy eoinosey PNl G862 LZ02/ZH/L0 pielliel
90'8.V'GZ  G9'06S “Iepy g "dey "dinb3 - zz59 INO I1eD uone)s Wl uanjyu| €2202M  'ou| ‘Juswabeuely 82nosey PNl G862 L20Z/2L/L0 piilie]
\Wi88'vZ 9L'ElE "'le|y g "dey "dinb3 - Zzgo  ablewg jled VAYOS ainjied Jomod ZG80ZM  Ou| ‘Juswabeuely @2nosey PNl 6862 LZ0Z/ZL/L0 pial=llTo)
STYIS'¥YZ 08285 s|eoiway) - £059 auuo| Iy @deuSlUlE HET 91802Y  Ou| ‘Juswabeuep 80In0saY PIN 6862 120Z/ZL/L0 %98yD
SY'9Ce'ec  CL9EL'SL T O JogeTioenuod . GOg9 196024 "Aul Aejues 'sdQ Lgoz aunf  -ou| ‘Juswabeuely eoinosey piNl4 - 6862 1202/ZL/L0 X8y
€688 18'821'8 “ley @ "dey "dinb3 - ggg9 leg JepnQ @ Jajjedw| 19661 ‘AUl “ewdinb3 @ Buussuibul lamyo0y  ¥86Z  1202/21/L0 plal=lle)
98'099 (A TAS I g "doy "dinb3 - zzg9 auuojyo Jebuly3 yaieg sjood HOO 1202/L0/L0 %o8yD
z9'vee 96°vel selaN - 0659  Jeysdwng pPA Z LSEF0LE-0Z L JOQUINN "J00Y adlneg Aejueg Aunod yinos 143 1202/20/L0 %99y
99661 91°06} Jowssju| / suoydsla] - G8G9 S 706 91¥6-G6S G08 # 100E 181vY 143 1202/10/20 p ekl o)
0S'6 056 "suadx3 Bupessdo - 0069 yoeag eIy |iig Jelep punjey Ao¥SNIDOW [9BUDIN €862  120Z/10/L0 ¥29yQ

Aejiueg

18°691°2 186912 sjybr (e101
18°691'2 12162 saninN - 0669 £-90959/96.5 #1998 siybiq 1S Juoi4 I90d 143 1202/92/L0 piel=llg)
09°%.8't 00°€9€‘L “rulep @ "dey "dib3 - zg9  * pue Bunybi 19ang Juoag Lg/L/L €2L-1E “AUl TUIe1odiodu] OU)08|T PUMUYIS BN €662 L20Z/ZL/L0 peiilie]
09'LLS 98'101 salInN - 0689 0-29€SS 12666 # 109 spybry Auojo 3%9d 143 1202/90/L0 %o8yD
v 60V v1°601 selInN - 0659 €-7869.60690 # 1208 SIyBIT umo | 399d 143 1202/90/.0 v_mm;o

sy61]

aouejeg junowy UNo22Yy owap aweN wnn aeq adA)

bzoz Ainp

SIUN022Y/M pund Aq $)23Y) 12I¥0/80

1911S1q $291A188 ANUNWWOY Yoeag BlIAY



¢ abBey

€€°1/9'88Y  ££°L.9'88YV Iviol

TLE9S'OVL  Z2Le95'0bL I8JEM [B10L
TLE95 0L 09'LLL Uig Jemeg g 191BM - 08CL $00 raQy A0NvY1vd 00 INIWISNravy 30ONV1vd rav  12oé/1e/lo 3}994D
zL'ee8'6el  8¥ 161 sailInN - 0659 "pY Butpueened 2171 3%0d 143 120¢/9¢/L0 H09YD
POvG9'6€l 0968 8894 @ sjuad - GGG9 G8CCZCLONI "AU| SUOIJOBUUOD) SS0ID ylleeH 09 O1S 0L0€  1202/61/20 H98Yd
¥0'596°'6€1L  0E'0VZ'62 S894 uoljdauuo) - 0lg. T '19aNs [aine 0GZ punjay sea4 uonoauuo) yomoxejey Aepy 200€  120¢/6L/L0 1O3YD
v ¥2e'0LL  00°S0E°L 10 Joqe JoenuoD - 20§59 ‘YL AInp -S| AInp WislsAg Js1e M LGLL AUl sajeloossy g uuewabeH 900 120¢/61/L0 }O3YD
v.'61L0'60L  00°0SV°L 10 JOQeTJ0BRUOD - L0SS  “IBL Bunr - Y)g aunp Wwe)sAS JBle M G111 AU sojejoossy g uuewsbeH 900  1€0Z/6L/.0 3o8yD
PL69S°L0L  LEEIP'O soueunsu| pledald - 0Lyl "0z obexoed Algel Apedoid Aoljod |eisuag Aoiod [esoua9 YWHAS €00e  120¢/eLiL0 }98YD
€7°'90L°'101L 0982 $0894 ¢ sjiulad - 6669 Z81ZEL0ONI "AUl SUORDBUUOD SSOID yileaH 0D O1S 000€ lcoe/el/io 3o8UD
£8°2/0°10L 65'G29'8E zadoT - 2089 WRO suinoy lsjem zado L2zl "Au| SHIOM M[gnd Auno 018 686¢ 120¢/CL/L0 39340
TARAS AY) 9L 0EP L) zado - 2089 801MI9G 198( JS1eAN Z8d0T | 221 AU SHI0M olland Aunod 018 686¢ 1202/21/L0 384D
80°220'LS 00°0€6'S i8jep 91e)s - G089 Jayng Jybnoiq Jsje M 8JelS €8/ “AU| SHOM 2Nand Aunod 018 886¢ 1€0¢/CL/L0 ¥o/YD
80'260'GY 09°119'6€ 19)BAA BJBIS - G089 M S1B)S - sebieyD [enuuy JO %0t €812 AU S}IOM 21and Aunod 018 886¢ 1¢0¢/cL/L0 3o/YD
8y’ 08Y'S 9lL'ele “TUlRp g "day "dib3 - $259 INQ |[eD Julejdwo) JopO 9ZL0ZM  'Ouj Yuswabeuepy 99in0say pinj4 G86Z 120¢/2LiL0 3I¥YD
zeLol's 76'2r0'S " O Joge] joenuog - G059 196024 "Auj Jajepn 'sdO Lgoz dunt  "ou| ‘Juswabeuely 801nosay pin|4 G86¢  L20c/eL/Lo 3984D
or'¥9 o' ¥9 “suadx3 BunessdQ - 0069  “0id PIOS Jowo)sSnD "JUsWARAISAO 10} punjay AexsniDon (eeydIN £86¢ 120¢/10/L0 03D

13)eMA

2ouefeq junowy juno2ay owap atueN wny ayeq adA|

1zoz Ainp

SJUNO22Yy/M pund Aq s)o9Y9 12/%0/80

JoM)SIg S921A198 AJUnNWwo) yoeag BlIAY



Avila Beach Community Services District
Profit & Loss
July 2021

12:38 PM

08/04/21
Accrual Basis

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income Summary

4010 - Operating Revenue

4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee

4030 - County Taxes

4050 - Harbor Charges
4052 - Front Street Lighting
4053 - WWTP O&M

Total 4050 - Harbor Charges
Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees
5110 - Amex
5120 - Chase Paymentech
5140 - Invoice Cloud

Total 5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees

5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5254 - PERS Co Pd Kathy
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense

Jul 21

113,954.21
2,156.04
11,063.01

201.00
17,111.00

17,312.00
144,485.26
144,485.26
144,485.26

14.85
109.77
356.57

481.19

3,408.00
204.48
0.00
204.48

3,816.96
66.95

800.00
800.00

13,946.00
1,484.28

15,430.28

Page 1



12:38 PM

08/04/21
Accrual Basis

Avila Beach Community Services District

Profit & Loss
July 2021

5260 -
5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.

Work Comp Insurance

Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

6000 - Administrative Overheads

6102 -
6103 -
6120 -
6130 -
6140 -

Accounting

Accounting Audit

Dues & Subscriptions
LAFCo Fees

Office Supplies & Postage

6143 - Supplies, Office

Total 6140 - Office Supplies & Postage

6150 -
6170 -

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

Rate Assistance
Website

6500 - Operating Expenses

6503 -

6505 -
6506 -
6507 -
6515 -

6520 -

6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6530 -
6535 -
6540 -
6542 -
6550 -
6555 -
6560 -
6580 -
6585 -
6590 -
6500 -

Chemicals
Contract LaborO & M
Contract Labor GM

Engineering
Equipment Repair & Maint.

Generator Maintenance
Insurance P/L

Lab Tests

Maintenance
Operating Supplies
Permits & Fees

Plan Checks

Solids Handling
Telephone / Internet
Utilities

Operating Expenses - Other

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses

6600 - Cal Fire Contract Labor

Contract Labor Civil Engineer

Jul£1

914.81
104.12

21,133.12

1,170.00
110.00
140.47

5,376.30

44.49
44.49

979.59
200.00

8,020.85

4,659.02
20,179.64
2,755.00
10,150.00
372.50

11,615.05

2,575.16
14,190.21

330.00
1,795.32
3,655.00

255.00

138.30

118.20

330.00
1,840.50

686.93
4,188.16

73.90

65,717.68
233,822.00

Page 2



12:38 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

08/04/21 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2021
Jul 21
6800 - Water
6802 - Lopez 50,055.75
6805 - State Water 45,541.60
Total 6800 - Water 95,597.35
Total Expense 424,772.19
Net Ordinary Income -280,286.93
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
7200 - Non-Operating Income
7210 - Connection Fees -29,240.30
7220 - CIP Harbor 27,061.00
Total 7200 - Non-Operating Income -2,179.30
Total Other Income -2,179.30
Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8245 - WWTP Improvement Project
8245d - WWTP Wallace Group Enginee... 18,155.50
Total 8245 - WWTP Improvement Project 18,1565.50
8246 - WW Swr Ln Rpimt San Migl
8246¢ * WW Swr Ln Rpimt Sn Migl Pha... 661.25
Total 8246 - WW Swr Ln Rpimt San Migl 661.25
Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani 18,816.75
Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses 18,816.75
Total Other Expense 18,816.75
Net Other Income -20,996.05
Net Income

-301,282.98

Page 3



FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement
www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346

OPERATIONS . MAINTENANCE . MECHANICAL Date
2385 Precision Drive
Arroyo Grande, CA 93420 7/2/21

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171
California Certified Small Business #1120142

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due Amount Enc.

$23,437.72

Transaction Amount Balance

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint-
06/30/21 |INV #F20967. Orig. Amount $20,179.64. 20,179.64 20,179.64

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FWW11001
Wastewater:348AWW17002 Add Services Wastewater-
06/19/21 |INV #A20816. Orig. Amount $587.80. 587.80 20,767.44

W20726 Call Out About Stinky Water-
05/31/21 |INV #W20726. Orig. Amount $373.16. 373.16 21,140.60

W20773 Influent Lift Station Call Out-
05/31/21 |INV #W20773. Orig. Amount $590.65. 590.65 21,731.25

W20852 SCADA Call Out-
06/28/21 |INV #W20852. Orig. Amount $373.16. 373.16 22,104.41

W20855 Influent Pump Call Out-
06/28/21 |INV #W20855. Orig. Amount $1,333.31. 1,333.31 23,437.72

CURRENT 1-30 DAYS PAST 31-60 DAYS PAST  61-90 DAYS PAST OVER 90 DAYS G DL

DUE DUE DUE PAST DUE

22,473.81 $23,437.72







AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors S

G ),

: wid
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager ' 7~

DATE: August 10, 2021
SUBJECT: General Manager/District Engineer Report

Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee

The Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee most recently met on Wednesday July 14th. The
agenda packet for the July 14™ meeting is included with this staff report. As of this writing
Lopez Lake is at an elevation of 472.7 feet, is at 33.4% of capacity and has approximately
16,500 acre feet of water in storage. The TAC received a draft staff report from County staff
that recommended the Board of Supervisors adopt a Resolution adopting certain policies and
procedures set forth in Low Reservoir Response Plan and authorizing the Public Works Director
to implement the LRRP. The TAC agreed with the recommendations. The item is scheduled for
the Board of Supervisors consideration at the August 10™ Board of Supervisors meeting or as
soon thereafter as possible.

First Street Force Main Relocation Project
Staff is pleased to report that the construction bid documents for the First Street Force Main

Relocation Project went out to bid on August 5™ 2021. Contractor bids are due to the District
no later than 10:00 AM on Thursday, September 2™ Staff anticipates awarding the contract at
the September 14, 2021, Board meeting with work being completed by late October or early
November.

Chevron Avila Point Development Concept Plan

On July 12, Chevron representatives (supported by Nick Franco from County Parks and myself)
presented their Concept Development Plan to the Avila Valley Advisory Committee. The
Concept Plan seemed to be well received and all agreed that this was just the first step in moving
a project forward at Avila Point that would allow Chevron to complete the site cleanup work and
transfer the property to public and/or private ownership. The Board will recall that the Plan
includes the CSD acquiring approximately 13.5 acres of land that includes the current water
tanks, a dedicated access road to the tanks and an area that would be suitable for installation of
solar panels. Chevron offered to provide a tour of the site to the AVAC Committee members
and any interested CSD Board members. Please let me know if are interested in a tour of the

site.




ZONE 3
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Wednesday July 14, 2021
9:00 - 11:00 am

Agenda

Phone line: +1 (646) 749-3122
Access Code: 617-462-197
OR
Webinar: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/617462197

1. Announcements All
2. General Operations and Water Report David
¢ Summary Notes — June
o Monthly Operations Report — June
e Lopez Storage Projections — June
3. Current Reservoir Conditions Jenny
4. Capitol Projects Update David
5. Low Reservoir Response Plan David
6. Climate Change Modeling Western Hydraulics
7. Future Agenda items? All
¢ Project Updates
¢ HCP/instream Studies
+ Stored State Water in Lopez - Evaporation
e Zone 3 Boundary Change
Attachments:

Summary Notes — June

Lopez Monthly Operations Report — June
Lopez Storage Projections Chart — June
Capitol Projects Update

Staff Report to the Board of Supervisors
Low Reservoir Response Plan Resolution

Tmoow>

Next Meeting Date: August 11, 2021

Agenda Packet 1 of 47



ZONE 3
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY June 9, 2020 (9:00-11:00 AM)
Via Goto Meeting due to COVID-19 Protocol
SUMMARY NOTES - DRAFT

Attendees via GoTo Meeting: Shane Taylor (Arroyo Grande), Ben Fine (Pismo), Greg Ray (Grover Beach), Will Clemens (OCSD), Brad
Hagemann (ABCSD), Jim Garing, Vard lkeda, John Wallace, Dan Heimel (WSC Inc.), David Spiegel (PW Dept), Jill Ogren (PW Dept),
Desiree Bravo (PW Dept), Laura Holder (PW Dept), Mark Chiaramonte (PW Dept), Kyle James (PW Dept), Jenny Williamson (LWTP).

1. Announcements —

Dan Hiemel and Jill Ogren provided an update on the CEQA analysis and contract changes.
Only outstanding issues to address is the potential for increased spills associated with the
contract changes and the agencies keeping more water stored within the reservoir. CEQA
draft should be available for TAC to review by the end of June.

Jill Ogren provided an update on the evaporation of stored state water in Lopez. Desiree Bravo
was assigned to the project and will discuss the evaporation concerns at the July TAC
meeting.

City of Pismo Beach is implementing water conservation restrictions.

City of Arroyo Grande currently preparing for drought announcement and will initiate water use
reductions soon.

City of Oceano will be initiating voluntary measures in water use restrictions until further notice
or told otherwise by the County or State.

David Spiegel discussed the progress on the drought conservation measures the County is
trying to move forward with and briefly discussed the water conservation act signed by
Governor Brown.

2. General Operations and Water Supply Report -

No comments on April Summary notes.

David Spiegel reviewed the Monthly Operations Report.

David Spiegel reviewed the Storage Projections Chart.

Jenny Williamson reported the Lake Elev. = 475.93 ft, Storage = 17,845 AF @ 36% Capacity.
Downstream releases are at 3.07 MGD (instantaneous reading); WTP at 5.0 MGD; SWP at
0.75 MGD. Rainfall to date 11.28 inches.

David Spiegel briefly discussed the Flood Control Zone 3 Budget Status report as of the end of
April. Currently Zone 3 has used 56% of the budget.

3. 2020 UWMP FCZ 3 -

Laura Holder, Public Works Utilities Project Manager, and Dan Heimel presented the 2020
Urban Water Management Plan. TAC reviewed and discussed the 2020 Urban Water
Management Plan draft.

4. Stored State Water —

Desiree Bravo, Public Works Zone 3 Engineer, presented the Lopez Reservoir Evaporation
Calculations. Current water supply contracts do not allow provision for storage of unused
Lopez Entitlement or State Water. Changes to the water supply contracts allow provisions for
storage of unused Lopez Entitlement, agencies’ share of calculated surplus water and State
Water.

The recommendation is to present TAC with an annual report of the monthly Lopez Reservoir
evaporation calculations. This will result in less human error, less QA/QC needed, and less

Agenda Packet 2 of 47



staff time needed.

5. CIP Project Update -
e David Spiegel reviewed the Zone 3 CIP Projects.

6. In-Person Meetings
e TAC discussed when it would be best to resume in-person meetings. TAC agreed to delay
meeting in-person until further notice. In-person meetings may resume as early as Fall with
optional remote attendance.
¢ TAC requested an updated Monthly Operations Report Table to reflect “Declared

Surplus Water”.
7. Future Agenda ltems —
¢ Project Updates
¢ HCP/Instream Studies

¢ Stored State Water in Lopez — Evaporation
e Zone 3 Boundary Change

Next Meeting July 14, 2021

Summary Notes Prepared by Jenny Williamson

Agenda Packet 3 of 47



1 fo | a8oq

L7 40 7 1ded epudsy

uupy  Aq pajurd roday oandg'q  Aq patasus vog 1207 ‘9 &nr ‘Aopsany ]
000 0 (3007 2208) ade|idg
dy LESTY $9'8LT (e24/133] 210% ((T¥) ISEISY URANSUAO
0921 01 padueyo sem 1sanboy A1ATIBA MS S, ‘TR AW U0 “170Z [UdY 10J MS 178 9323 0 passanbol owsIg 1Z0T ‘71 A2 U0 (T 1€11 0 liesuied
o sy afes . MV 57 pUE o 103 %1'SE mnd % SSTLI (1095 2132 0076t T2 [11y) 2Fei0Ig
* T ST Tl S, 9PUBID) DADLIY WOI] PAIOBIINS S, B Qluour ST} 93esn e §,0UL30) 0] pappe = N .
SBA\ 18217) UOAUED) O} PAISAIRP JV ' JO [B30] Y 'JNO WIN} BUPH SPUBID 0L0LTY BIA 15010 U0KuE) 0} 10jem poyddas oueas() (] £8Lb (o2y) eouarapia YEYLY (3204 LETT8 18 1INy) UOREAI e ]
B o) J8IX | PuUOA SIYL suopwiad( meq zadoy
S)TIMUWO)
“199) 2108
“Trejurer 103 yudsaxd o) A|ng pue ‘soudayep zador] 105 ussaxd o) judy “ajem agelg 105 1uasaid o) Arenwef St 07e(] 0) FAX,, 0€L°8 STPIPIA 9J8S 139] 211D 95 *C 10 SUOTTRT (S8 ‘ST = 100 AIOE AU *130) IO UL AIE SALDAIA( 9ION
E!&I«—SOIEBSSDQ Ziv8o@ 840 aa00o0 8OM £YA|
tzounr iz AR 1Z.0dY IZ. MW 1Z.G% 12, 04,9%0 U5, AOK 050 0z.deg oz, Bny oz inp VLURT Iz AR MY VL RN 12,98 LUSS (2,900 020N 0.0 (Z.des  0z.Bny  oz.ine
' o Lohaikiall 8 3 3 vz 5 3 X N 5 3 3 X .
L4
e — — o [
[
4 »
— e § o0} H
== | — "
— 0zh _ -
— ol = 00z
- =1 09
o 052
sBesp) JmEp, Mng Jusseg o Airnuep eBusn Jnep shiding Jueweppug zedoT Jusseld o [udy
8€°P88 1212 31E1S PUOIS (IO STYL I0BM JIEIS PRIOIS PO 158
| 1% 44 00°L9€  |%P'SE 6L'8PL %07 | 6057 | 911z ||%ocr | 76'ses _.\..e.e | o600 [%sst | z6se8 J|woo | 000 [%és ._ £7°697) 9719 — 009651 | 00'96SL | €Sk oL
29¢'Z1 %S°SS §9'99 %E01 | 9571 0z1 SN
6v'91 %9'9% IL'vy %6'8 05°8 96 %Y'9 €1 |%0'0 00°G |%L'8 €T J1%0°0 000 %€ 66'L 1€€ 00'98 00'98 SYT 1 V8D
785691 %¥'SE 99'Stt %UEl | 86691 | 0971 flel'T 17 %00 000 |%b'T I'1Z_ §1%0°0 000 1%0°0 00'0 666 00°L01 | 00°Loi 768 yoeag owslq
£26't9 %Z 81 PO'L6L  |%0°C 000 [%9°%T | #0'L61 §1%0°0 000 |%1'8 69 | 7801 00787 | 00°C8T | 008 yoeay I2A0I0)
1+9'99 %0°0¢ _ 1161 %401 _ +9'99 0r9  11%0°0 00'0_ |%0°0 000 |%00 000 J1%0°0 000 |%0°0 00°0 L19 00'vIg | 00VIE £0¢€ dSD ouead()
p1£'96] %61 PI'965  {%0'0 000 1%0°9T | #1'965 {1%0°0 000 |%9'8 1961 | L60€ 00208 | 00'L08 | 06Tz | SPUBID OAOLY
MUOW SIL | souvanaq 159nboy ofeio)g | seusalpq ,_.w_._,woiw_ wonboy |l % ades) % a3esn % ades() % ofes) % | 98esn | mem parepaq
SaLBANRA dms [enuuy 50 9% afesn uadueqd|  dms jo % | o8esn | [enumy reioL sniding dTRIuY sniding JuouRpyug  JOIGRIIBAY | pojsonboy | I91BM J10)981U0Y)
1)EM 1BI0OL osong 0} ATenuEr IO STYL Juesaig 0} judy WIOp SILL [e10f, smdmg | snidmg | pug
SILIDAI(L INEBA NEIS SOLIAAIPR( 1B ZodoT _
120T “dunf

uoday suonerd( AJIUoIA - 109loid zodoT - € Uo7
PLISI(J 1918 |\ pPUR JONU0D) POO[] Aluno)) odsiqQ SIT ues




L7 J0 G 1j2ed epuady

000

00¢

00y

00'9

008

0001

00°¢t

00'vT

) Z20T/T/1

1202/1/21

'SZ°T Ag palidinw s1 MO[JuI SUY3 Youl T 3A0QE S| SF.IDAR dY} §i “T°0 AQ mOjuL

payipaad ayy Ajdiynw (1M [2pow ay3 Yaul T MoJaq SI SYIUOW 33443 Snolaald 3y) 4oy |jejures Ajiep 98eiane 3yl §| “UOSeas Auiel 3y} Sulnp swiojsulel uey} MOJJUI 53] BSNEI ||IM UlRd
INOYIM SYIUOW JBYE SWI0ISUIR] IS114 BYL [SPOW 3Y} 01Ul PJ01IRY SJE SUOIIPUOD BINISIOW JUBPIUY “elep a8ei01s pue uoneydidasd [BJ1I03SIY JO JJO PISEQ S| MOJJUI PIDIPAId '€

1Z0Z/1/11

!
A%

‘sauaAMPp Ajyauow aSesaae 0Z0T 220 -0TOT Uer uo paseq st adesn jediunpy 'z

*98esn [edidiunw pue ‘s1sanbal ases|al WesJISUMOP TZ-07 ‘([Bjuied Pa1IpaJd UO Paseq MOJJut ‘w0 1ayleamaBuelsuo) wouy |jejulel payipald uo paseq si uondasfold 38e103s 'T

+ = 1T0T/1/0T

1202/1/6

(Urey oN) uonbafoag agesons
; ,

. TC0Z/1/8

. T20t/T/L

aleq
= = =
£ ¢ £ ¢ ¥ =2 ¥ 2 2 »v 2 A o g & W N o2
= = = = = = = ) = = =) = = = = = = =
g2 g g £ g £ g 8 g 8 g g8 £ g g g g g
N N %) L) N N N (=) [ %) N N [\ ) N fae) (%) N N NS
[=] ] [=] (=] [=] [=] o (o] [=] o o o (=) [=] [=] < [=] [=]
[\ N ) N N (% N [ %) () [ ) 1) N [ 1Y) (2] [ %) N [ )
= [ [ [ - [ (o] o (=] o o o (=) [=] [} (=] [} o
ool oob | oS_ 00d 00D 000 oo.m v 00'( [ ©
0000 zdlo 20 vZi0 L
| <q0 t t p
| (4} 1 910 3
v 08O ! I
3 4 | Y | [ S - 0005
e vie i
{ ‘T | ¢
| At — L i ol 1110)
| ) [
—— + i —+—OLl—— - 000ST
s | °
% 8

(4v) 28euo1s

—— 1 - 000S¢
i —T 1 - 0000€
|
—— i ¢ -— i

{ co_.ﬁ._m._ok_ m_vaBw —L _ ! 4¥.000°02 T ooose

e . N

P8RIO0IS [BNIIY st uoie)d|a8.d padIpaIy uonendnaid [en3oy Im—

. : ——— et : " 0000%

NOILO3rOYd 3IOVHOLS HIOAYISIY Z3d01




ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

TO: Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee
FROM: David Spiegel, PE
DATE: July 14, 2021

SUBJECT: Zone 3 Projects Update

Project Updates:
e Tesla Battery Storage (No Change)

o 50% plans are being developed.
o Budget - Free

o Spillway Assessment and Investigation
o Preparing staff report for submittal to DSOD
o Budget ~$190,000

» Geotechnical Testing & Seismic Alternatives Study of Terminal Reservoir Dam
o Proposals have been received and are in review
o Budget ~$89,829

¢ Fault Zone Risk Assessment for Dam Left Abutment
o Rizzo has been selected to complete the assessment
o Budget ~$40,000

e Lopez WTP Safety Uparades (No Change
o Staff are looking into additional consultants to do a lifeline system within
the membrane building.
o Multiple consultants have reviewed the project, but none have quoted the
project.
o Budget ~$53,000

e Cathodic Protection Repair Project
o Kick off meeting being scheduled
o Budget ~$449,933

e Equipment Storage Building
o Building is being re-solicited due to previous vendor issues

o Budget ~$90,000

e CO2 Injection System
o Project is out to bid

o Budget ~$230,000

Agenda Packet 6 of 47



ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

Unbudgeted O&M Projects

¢ Sludge Bed Curtain Wall Rehabilitation (No Change)

o One sludge bed has developed a leak through the adjacent hillside that
leads down to the terminal reservoir's spillway. This bed had an existing
underground curtain wall poured in the 90's to fix this issue.

o Quotes are being received to pressure grout in front of the underground
curtain wall to re-seal any cracks that have developed over the last 30
years.

o ~$50,000 per initial quote

o Leak at Main Dam outlet works building (No Change
o Working with contractor to schedule the work.
o The District will notify Zone 3 agencies of any planned shutdowns during
construction, however, the terminal reservoir should provide enough
storage to not cause any delivery issues.

Upcoming Projects for 21/22:
e EQ Pump Upgrade

Completed Projects
* Replacement of Hach Turbidimeter

e Repairs to Terminal Dam Spillway
e Lopez Terminal Dam Monument Survey

e Domestic Tank Repairs

Agenda Packet 7 of 47



TO: Board of Supervisors of the San Luis Obispo County Flood
Control and Water Conservation District

FROM: David Spiegel, Senior Utilities Engineer
VIA: Kate Ballantyne, Deputy Director of Public Works
DATE: August 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Submittal of a resolution adopting certain policies and
procedures set forth in the Low Reservoir Response Plan
(LRRP) for San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water
Conservation District Zone 3, Authorizing the Director of Public
Works to implement the LRRP; and finding that the project is
exempt from Section 21000 et seq. of the California Public
Resources Code (CEQA). District 3 and 4.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board, acting as the Board of Supervisors for the San
Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, adopt the
attached resolution adopting certain policies and procedures set forth in the Low
Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP) for San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and
Water Conservation District Zone 3, authorizing the Director of Public Works to
implement the LRRP; and find that the project is exempt from Section 21000 et
seq. of the California Public Resources Code (CEQA).

Discussion

Zone 3 is the Lopez Water Project in the south county. In December 2014, your
Board acting as Board of the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water
Conservation District (District) adopted certain policies and procedures of the Low
Reservoir Response Plan (Resolution No. 2014-377) for Zone 3 of the District in
response to an extended drought condition at the time. The County is again
experiencing drought conditions and on July 13, 2021 your Board declared a local
emergency. It is prudent to again adopt certain policies and procedures of the
LRRP which will help extend and preserve the water supply within the Lopez
reservoir for three to four years under continuing drought conditions. The LRRP
provides a methodology to assess near term reservoir levels and a set of actions
that could be taken to mitigate the impacts to essential public services (i.e.
municipal, agricultural, and environmental water deliveries) that could result from
low reservoir levels.

! The Zone 3 contractors are the Cities of Arroyo Grande, Pismo Beach, and Grover Beach; the Oceano
Community Services District; and County Service Area 12,

10f4

Agenda Packet 8 of 47



In response to recent drought conditions, along with the knowledge that the
reservoir has never fully recovered from the last drought, despite cloud seeding
efforts, the Zone 3 Advisory Committee and the Zone 3 Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC) together with representatives of the agricultural community are
endorsing implementing the LRRP once again. The goal of the LRRP is to reduce
municipal diversions and downstream releases from Lopez Reservoir when the
lake falls below 20,000 acre feet of storage, to preserve water within the reservoir.

The LRRP sets forth municipal delivery and downstream release reductions in an
effort to extend and conserve the Lopez Reservoir supply to the greatest extent
possible. The municipal delivery reductions proposed will be triggered at
milestones in the reservoir level as listed shown in the table below:

LOPEZ RESERVOIR WATER DELIVERY REDUCTION SCENARIO
0, H .
% Available Total Storage in Acre Percent Delivery Reduction
Storage Feet
5 —
35 20,000 0% No .dehvenes above contract
entitlements

24 15,000 10% Delivery reduction

13 10,000 20% Delivery reduction

2 5,000 35% Delivery reduction

0 4,000 100% NO WATER DELIVERIES

The LRRP also provides for two temporary changes to the declaration of “Surplus
Water” (that is, unused entitement water from the previous year). Reductions in
downstream releases will not be counted as surplus water, and any surplus water
generated by an individual agency will only be available for use by that agency.
This temporary water banking mechanism would only apply during the enactment
of the LRRP. Agencies may request to continue to be able to use any water they
have banked for three years after the LRRP has terminated.

The proposed reductions in downstream releases, which provide water for
environmental habitat and agriculture irrigation, were developed through
collaboration with the local agricultural community and are shown in the table
below:

LOPEZ RESERVOIR DOWNSTREAM RELEASE REDUCTIONS
Total Storage in Acre Downstream Release Downstream Releases (Acre
Feet Reduction Feet)
20,000 9.5% 3,800
15,000 9.5% 3,800
L 10,000 75.6% 1,026
5,000 92.9% 300
4,000 100% 0
20of4

Agenda Packet 9 of 47



The effect of the downstream release reductions is to maintain agricultural and
environmental releases at near average amounts for the first two years, thereby
allowing agriculture to continue unabated. The releases then fall to an
“environmental only” release as amounts under 3,800 will not sustain stream
dependent irrigated agriculture. The 300 acre foot number represents an estimated
“pass-through” during summer months as required by the project's water rights
permit.

Other Agency Involvement/Impact

All of the Zone 3 contractors took action to adopt resolutions supporting, approving,
or endorsing the LRRP in 2014. At their July 15,2021 meeting the Zone 3 Advisory
Committee recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt a resolution
implementing certain policies and procedures of the Low Reservoir Response Plan
as reviewed and endorsed by the Zone 3 contractors via the Technical Advisory
Committee.

County Counsel has reviewed the attached Resolution as to form and legal effect.
The Department of Public Works Environmental Programs Division has reviewed
the proposed actions and determined that they are exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

Financial Considerations

The water supply contracts for Zone 3 are described as “take-or-pay,” meaning
that all of the costs of the system are paid for by the Zone 3 contractors at
percentages based on the amount of entitement water in their respective
contracts, plus their distance down the delivery system. The majority of costs are
for the capital costs of the system, in the form of debt service. Therefore, a
temporary reduction in the amount of water delivered will not reduce the financial
obligations of the Zone 3 contractors.

Results

Adoption of the Resolution and finding the project exempt from CEQA will help
ensure that water supplies from Lopez Lake are managed in as prudent a manner
as possible should the current drought continue, thereby contributing to a well
governed community.

Attachments: Vicinity Map
Notice of Exemption (CEQA)

30f4

Agenda Packet 10 of 47



Resolution No. 2014-377
Resolution No. 2017-218
Resolution adopting certain policies and procedures in the Low
Reservoir Response Plan for the San Luis Obispo County Flood
Control and Water Conservation District Zone 3, authorizing the
Director of Public Works to implement such policies and
procedures consistent with this resolution, and finding that the
project is exempt from Section 21000 Et. Seq. of the California
Public Resources Code.

File: CF340.101.01

Reference:

4 of 4

Agenda Packet 11 of 47



BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
of the

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL
AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

day , 20

PRESENT: Supervisors

ABSENT:

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION ADOPTING CERTAIN POLICIES AND PROCEDURES IN THE
LOW RESERVOIR RESPONSE PLAN (LRRP) FOR THE SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY
FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT ZONE 3, AUTHORIZING
THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO IMPLEMENT THE LRRP, AND FINDING THAT
THE PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM SECTION 21000 ET SEQ., OF THE CALIFORNIA
PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE (CEQA)

The following Resolution is hereby offered and read:

WHEREAS, the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District
(“District”’) constructed, owns and operates the Lopez Dam and Reservoir, the Lopez Water
Treatment Facilities, and the Lopez Water Conveyance System; and

WHEREAS, the District and the City of Grover Beach, the City of Pismo Beach, the City
of Arroyo Grande, the Oceano Community Services District and County of San Luis Obispo
Service Area No. 12 (collectively, the “Zone 3 Contractors”) entered into Water Supply Contracts
in or around August 2000 providing that the District shall supply certain quantities of water to the
Zone 3 Contractors, and providing that the Zone 3 Contractors shall make certain payments to
the District, and setting forth the terms and conditions of such supply and payment (collectively,
the “Water Supply Contracts”); and

WHEREAS, the Water Supply Contracts provide for the distribution of Entitlement water
(a combined 4,530 acre-feet per year among the Zone 3 Contractors) and Surplus Water to the
Zone 3 Contractors as well as for the distribution of certain downstream releases (not to exceed
4,200 acre-feet per year unless required by law) subject to the priorities, conditions and
limitations set forth therein; and

WHEREAS, on July 13, 2021, the San Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors
(“Board”) proclaimed a local emergency due to ongoing drought conditions; and

WHEREAS, Article 4 of the Water Supply Contracts provides that the District can curtail
delivery of water to the Zone 3 Contractors in certain situations, including but not limited to,

drought conditions; and

10f6

Agenda Packet 12 of 47



WHEREAS, the District and the Zone 3 Contractors prepared a Low Reservoir Response
Plan in 2014, attached hereto as Attachment 1 (“LRRP”), in consultation with local agricultural
operations, for the purpose of providing some predictability regarding the quantities of water that
will be delivered to the Zone 3 Contractors during droughts and other declared emergencies
when less than twenty thousand (20,000) acre-feet of water is stored in the Lopez Reservoir;
and

WHEREAS, on December 16, 2014, the Board adopted a resolution similar to this
Resolution, namely Resolution No. 2014-377 (“Prior Adoption Resolution”), adopting certain
policies and procedures set forth in the LRRP in response to the last drought (proclamation of
local emergency declared by the Board on March 11, 2014 and terminated on May 23, 2017);

and

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2017 and notwithstanding the termination of the proclamation
of local emergency and the fact that the LRRP was therefore no longer in effect by its terms, the
Board adopted Resolution No. 2017-218 (“2017 Resolution”) pursuant to which it authorized the
Director of Public Works to continue to implement the policies and procedures adopted in the
Prior Adoption Resolution, particularly those provisions related to the availability of Emergency
Drought Relief Water based on certain findings therein, and the District continued to make such
water available until March 31, 2018; and

WHEREAS, consistent with the intent of LRRP as further described in the Prior Adoption
Resolution, implementation of the initial prescribed actions and adaptive management approach
together provided that the needs of the Zone 3 Contractors and the beneficiaries of downstream
releases were met during the last drought; and

WHEREAS, all of the Zone 3 Contractors adopted resolutions supporting, endorsing, or
approving the LRRP when it was originally developed in 2014 and the Zone 3 Advisory
Committee did, at its July 15, 2021 meeting, approve a recommendation that the Board of
Supervisors again implement the LRRP due to the current drought.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Board of Supervisors
of the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, State of

California, that:

1. Pursuant to the July 13, 2021 San Luis Obispo County proclamation of a local
emergency due to ongoing drought conditions and Article 4 of the Water Supply
Contracts, the District plans to reduce water Entitlements (as defined in the Water
Supply Contracts), as described in the initial prescribed actions set forth in the
LRRP (“Initial Prescribed Actions”), subject to any adjustments made through
implementation of the adaptive management provision contained in the LRRP in
accordance with Paragraph 4 below, provided that Entitlement and Surplus Water
deliveries do not vary more than ten percent (10%) from the amounts described in
the Initial Prescribed Actions.

20f6

Agenda Packet 13 of 47



. The District plans to use its authority pursuant to the July 13, 2021 San Luis Obispo
County proclamation of a local emergency due to ongoing drought conditions to
make available “Emergency Drought Relief Water” as necessary to implement the
Extended Delivery Provision described in Section 3.6 of the LRRP.

. The District is relying on the commitments of the Zone 3 Contractors to request
and accept only an amount of “Surplus Water” attributable to each agency's
unused Entitlement from the previous Water Year, and makes this Resolution
based, in part, on these commitments.

. The Director of Public Works has the exclusive authority to make adjustments to
the Entitlement and Surplus Water deliveries described in the Initial Prescribed
Actions in accordance with the adaptive management provision of the LRRP and
in coordination with the Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee and the Zone 3
Advisory Committee provided that Entitlement and Surplus Water deliveries do not
vary more than ten percent (10%) from the amounts described in the Initial
Prescribed Actions.

. Ifthe Zone 3 Advisory Committee submits a request to the District and the Director
of Public Works determines based on documented findings that conditions warrant
a grant of the request (similar to those findings included in the 2017 Resolution),
the Director of Public Works may continue to make available or credit Emergency
Drought Relief Water or carryover water to the Zone 3 Contractors as necessary
to implement the Extended Delivery Provision described in Section 3.6 of the
LRRP for up to three (3) years after termination of the LRRP by its terms (i.e. either
termination of the proclamation of local emergency or the volume of water in the
Lopez Reservoir exceeds twenty thousand (20,000) acre feet). Notwithstanding
any action by the Director of Public Works, once the LRRP terminates, the District
will calculate and declare the amount of Surplus water available in accordance with
the Water Supply Contracts.

. Nothing contained herein modifies the District’s duty or power to meet downstream
release requirements.

. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Resolution and the policies and
procedures set forth in the LRRP, the terms of this Resolution shall control.

. The action of adopting policies and procedures set forth in the LRRP for San Luis
Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Zone 3 is exempt
from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to CEQA Section
21080(b)(4) and CEQA Guidelines Section 15269(c) in that adopting policies and
procedures set forth in the LRRP is a specific action necessary to prevent or

30f6

Agenda Packet 14 of 47



mitigate an emergency and CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) in that it can be
seen with certainty that there is no possibility that permitting the Director of Public
Works to continue to make water available for a limited time after termination of
the LRRP may have a significant effect on the environment.

Upon motion of Supervisor , seconded by Supervisor
, and on the following roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINING:

the foregoing Resolution is hereby adopted on the day of , 20

Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
(SEAL)

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT:

RITA L. NEAL
County Counsel

By:

Deputy County Counsel

Dated:

40f6

Agenda Packet 15 of 47



LAMANAGMNT\DEC14\BOS\2014.12.16 FCZ3 BoS LRRP Reso ver 001.docx.mh.taw

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, }

County of San Luis Obispo, S8

I, , County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors of the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, do hereby
certify the foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of an order made by the Board of Supervisors, as the same
appears spread upon their minute book.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board of Supervisors, affixed this
day of , 20

County Clerk and Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board
(SEAL) of Supervisors

By

Deputy Clerk

ATTACHMENT 1
2014 LOW RESERVOIR RESPONSE PLAN

50f6

Agenda Packet 16 of 47



2y 5, (6.0
BEFORE 1 .{E. BOARD OF SUPE. VISORS ~ " *"*

of the

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER
CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Tuesday, December 16, 2014

PRESENT: Supervisors Frank R. Mecham, Adam Hill, Caren Ray, Debbie Amold, and Chairperson
Bruce S. Gibson

ABSENT: None

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-377

RESOLUTION ADOPTING CERTAIN POLICIES AND PROCEDURES IN THE LOW
RESERVOIR RESPONSE PLAN (LRRP) FOR THE SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD
CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT ZONE 3, AUTHORIZING THE
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO IMPLEMENT THE LRRP, AND FINDING THAT THE
PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM SECTION 21000 ET SEQ., OF THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC
RESOURCES CODE (CEQA).

The following Resolution is hereby offered and read:

WHEREAS, the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District
("District”) constructed, owns and operates the Lopez Dam and Reservoir, the Lopez Water

Treatment Facilities, and the Lopez Water Conveyance System; and

WHEREAS, the District and the City of Grover Beach, the City of Pismo Beach, the City
of Arroyo Grande, the Oceano Community Services District and County of San Luis Obispo
Service Area No. 12 (collectively, the “Zone 3 Contractors”) entered into Water Supply
Contracts in or around August 2000 providing that the District shall supply certain quantities of
water to the Zone 3 Contractors, and providing that the Zone 3 Contractors shall make certain
payments to the District, and setting forth the terms and conditions of such supply and
payment (collectively, the “"Water Supply Contracts”); and

WHEREAS, the Water Supply Contracts provide for the distribution of Entitlement water
(a combined 4,530 acre-feet per year among the Zone 3 Contractors) and Surplus Water to the
Zone 3 Contractors as well as for the distribution of certain downstream releases (not to exceed
4,200 acre-feet per year unless required by law) subject to the priorities, conditions and

limitations set forth therein; and

WHEREAS, on January 15, 2014, the United States Department of Agriculture
designated San Luis Obispo County along with twenty-six (26) other California counties as a
Primary Natural Disaster'Area; on January 17, 2014, the Governor of the State of California
proclaimed a State of Emergency due to drought; and on March 11, 2014, the San Luis Obispo
County Board of Supervisors proclaimed a local emergency due to ongoing drought conditions;

and

Agenda Packet 17 of 47



— =
r

WHEREAS, Article 4 of the Water Supply Contracts provides that the District can curtail
delivery of water to the Zone 3 Contractors in certain situations, including but not limited to,

drought conditions; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Zone 3 Contractors have prepared a Low Reservoir
Response Plan, attached hereto as Attachment 1 (“LRRP"), for the purpose of providing some
predictability regarding the quantities of water that will be delivered to the Zone 3 Contractors
during the current and future droughts and other declared emergencies when less than twenty
thousand (20,000) acre-feet of water is stored in the Lopez Reservoir; and

WHEREAS, the LRRP includes initial prescribed actions and an adaptive management
approach that together will help to provide that the needs of the Zone 3 Contractors and the
beneficiaries of downstream releases are met during droughts and other emergencies; and

WHEREAS, during droughts and other emergencies, the LRRP offers incentives for
water conservation by the Zone 3 Contractors by extending the period in time that the Zone 3
Contractors can use water that has been allocated to them in accordance with the Water
Supply Contracts and/or as provided in the LRRP; and

WHEREAS, the LRRP has been developed in consultation with representatives of local
agricultural operations and considers the needs of agriculture and other downstream
beneficiaries by prescribing a reduction in water that is requested by the Zone 3 Contractors
through elimination of “Surplus Water” allocations to Zone 3 Contractors that would otherwise

result from downstream releases; and

WHEREAS, the adaptive management approach in the LRRP provides a reasonable
mechanism to manage the Lopez water supply during droughts and other emergencies where
conditions can change depending on hydrological and other conditions that persist during
droughts and other emergencies; and

WHEREAS, all of the Zone 3 Contractors have adopted resolutions supporting,
endorsing, or approving the LRRP and the Zone 3 Advisory Committee did, at its November
20, 2014 meeting, approve a recommendation that the Board of Supervisors implement the

LRRP.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Board of Supervisors
of the San Luis Obispo County Fiood Control and Water Conservation District, State of

California, that:

1. Pursuant to the March 11, 2014 San Luis Obispo County proclamation of a local
emergency due to ongoing drought conditions and Article 4 of the Water Supply
Contracts, the District plans to reduce water Entitlements as described in the
initial prescribed actions set forth in the LRRP (‘Initial Prescribed Actions”),
subject to any adjustments made through implementation of the adaptive
management provision contained in the LRRP in accordance with Paragraph 4

below, provided that Entitement and Surplus Water deliveries do not vary more
20f22

Agenda Packet 18 of 47



than ten percént (10%) from the amounts described in the Initial Prescribed
Actions.

. The District plans to use its authority pursuant to the March 11, 2014 San Luis
Obispo County proclamation of a local emergency due to ongoing drought
conditions to make available “Emergency Drought Relief Water” as necessary to
implement the Extended Delivery Provision described in Section 3.6 of the

LRRP.

. The District is relying on the commitments of the Zone 3 Contractors to request
and accept only an amount of “Surplus Water” attributable to each agency's
unused Entitlement from the previous Water Year, and makes this resolution
based, in part, on these commitments.

. The Director of Public Works has the exclusive authority to make adjustments to
the Entitlement and Surplus Water deliveries described in the Initial Prescribed
Actions in accordance with the adaptive management provision of the LRRP
and in coordination with the Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee and the Zone
3

Advisory Committee provided that Entitlement and Surplus Water deliveries do
not vary more than ten percent (10%) from the amounts described in the Initial

Prescribed Actions.

Nothing contained herein modifies the District's duty or power to meet
downstream release requirements.

. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Resolution and the policies
and procedures set forth in the LRRP, the terms of this Resolution shall contraol.

. The action of adopting policies and procedures set forth in the LRRP for San
Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Zone 3 is
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA”) pursuant to
CEQA Section 21169 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15261(a) in that the
storage and annual release of water for various uses is part of the ongoing
operation of the Lopez Reservoir; and CEQA Section 21080(b)(5) and CEQA
Guidelines Section
15269(c) in that adopting policies and procedures set forth in the LRRP is a
specific action necessary to prevent or mitigate an emergency.

3of22

Agenda Packet 19 of 47



Upon motion of Supervisor Ray, seconded by Supervisor Hill, and on the following roll call
vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINING:

the foregoing Resolution is hereby adopted on the 16™ day of December, 2014.

Bruce S. Gibson
Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

JULIE L. RODEWALD
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

By: Annette Ramirez
Deputy Clerk

(SEAL)
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT:

RITA L. NEAL
County Counsel

By: Patrick J. Foran
Deputy County Counsel

Dated: November 24, 2014
LAMANAGMNT\DEC14\BOS\2014.12.16 FCZ3 BoS LRRP Reso ver 001.docx.mh.taw

STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
County of San Luis Obispo,}  ss.

[, JULIE L. RODEWALD, County Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of
the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, do hereby certify
the foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of an order made by the Board of Supervisors,
as the same appears spread upon their minute book.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board of Supervisors, affixed this 26" day of

December, 2014.
JULIE L. RODEWALD
County Clerk and Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board
(SEAL) of Supervisors

By: _(Qfhnette fam usih
40f22 Deputy Clerk &

Agenda Packet 20 of 47



MANAGEMENT

CONTRACTORS LICENSE #9373446

August 4, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJECT: JUNE 2021 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular basis. The Chlorine
Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can have a negative effect on the effluent
quality leaving the facility.

On June 16, 2021, staff responded to issues noted with Influent Pump 2 during the call-out on June 15, 2021. Staff determined issues
were due to material (fabric and aluminum) stuck within the pump; when materials were removed, pump worked well. The District
purchased materials to rebuild both pumps' choppers. Parts will be installed when they arrive.

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM staff monitoring the water quality in the tank and flushing as
needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chlorine residuals and provide additional chlorine as needed. Staff has been performing
distribution flushing on an as needed basis.

On June 30, 2021, staff replaced a failed angle stop on San Francisco Street.
COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

Staff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report in California Integrated Water
Quality System (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified by ABCSD Staff.

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L with a Daily
Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

e B
[ 1 k )
WA

Carinna Butler
Operations Manager

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABCSD Average Daily WWTP Effluent Flow (2019-2021)
ABCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (2018-2021)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow (2019-2021)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2019-2021)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2019-2021)

Monthly Water Purchased from Lopez (2019-2021)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2019-2021)

® @ 8 ¢ 0 0 o

— e W W - §

FLUIDRESOURCEMANAGEMENT.COM | 805.597.7100 i
FRMINFOBFRM-OPS.COM | 2385 PRECISION DRIVE, ARROYO GRANDE, CA 93420




DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING

California Regional Water Avila Beach CSD ORDER R3-2017-0025
Quality Control Board, NPDES CA0047830
Central Coast Region Wastewater Treatment WDID 3 400101001

Monthly report due last day of following month F a ci I it .
Annual report due January 30 y Month: JUNE 2021

Effluent and Influent Monitoring

Daily Flow (MGD) Effluent Monitoring Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly Monthly
N e e e e o B R - el - g
{gpm) | (9PM) | cojiform | Coliform | Residual (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (Grab)
1 0.042524 81 30 <2 <2 <0.02 6/3/21 29 19 368 241
2 0.043197 81 30 <0.02 6/6/21 46 38 467 316
3 0.043744 76 31 2 <2 <0.02 6/10/21 29 18 380 267
4 0.053839 84 38 <0.02 6/13121 43 35 369 417
5 0.059582 83 34 <0.02 6/17/21 30 26 530 266 1.8 DNQ
6 0.058429 84 41 <0.02 6/18/21 31 25
7 0.045896 79 32 <0.02 6/20/21 39 36 471 267
8 0.043161 75 30 <2 <2 <0.02 6/24/21 25 19 407 304
9 | 0.044823 75 31 <0.02 6/25/21 24 16
10 | 0.043605 68 35 <2 <2 <0.02 627121 38 28 1,056 931
11 | 0.053076 80 37 <0.02 Min 24 16 368 241 1.8 DNQ
12 | 0.061762 85 43 <0.02 Mean 334 26.0 506.0 376.1 1.8 DNQ
13 | 0.064779 91 45 <0.02 Max 46 38 1,056 931 1.8 DNQ
14 | 0.053140 93 37 <0.02 BOD Removal: 93.4% TSS Removal: 93.1%
15 | 0.046945 | 88 36 <2 <2 <0.02 Effluent Monitoring
16 | 0.054820 84 18 <0.02 Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly
Date | Set. Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
17 | 0.054309 78 38 <2 <2 <0,02 (Grab) (Grab) {Grab) {Grab)
18 | 0.059425 87 41 <0.02 6/3/21 <0.1 20.2 6.8 70
19 | 0.071312 92 50 <0.02 6/10/21 <0.1 23.2 6.8 69
20 | 0.068732 98 48 <0.02 6/17/121 <0.1 18.9 6.6 75
21 | 0.056541 87 39 <0.02 6/24/121 <0.1 14.0 6.8 73
22 | 0.055389 92 39 <2 <2 <0.02
23 | 0.051089 80 36 <0.02 Min <0.1 14.0 6.6 69.0
24 | 0.055122 84 38 2 <2 <0.02 Mean <0.1 19.1 6.8 71.8
25 | 0.062432 82 44 <0.02 Max <0.1 23.2 6.8 75.0
26 | 0.073696 98 51 <0.02 Effluent Limits
27 | 0.071650 93 50 <0.02 Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg | Daily Max
28 | 0.059604 88 42 <0.02 BOD mg/L 40 60 90
29 | 0.053549 86 37 <2 <2 <0.02 Suspended Solids mg/lL 40 60 90
30 | 0.056454 83 39 <0.02 Qil and Grease mg/L 25 40 75
31 Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
Min | 0.042524 68 30 <2 <2 <0.02 7 Sample Median: 23
Mean| 0.055621 85 39 <2 <2 <0.02 Total Coliform 1':: :’L More than once in 30 days: 240
Max | 0.073696 98 51 2 <2 <0.02 Daily Maximum: 2,400
Total| 1.668626 | Effluent dally (dry weather) flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean). Chiorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 1.2
pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
Influent Brine Recelved Sludge Removal Settleable Solids mL/L 1.0 1.5 3.0
Date Volume (Gallons) Date Gallons BOD/TSS Removal % 275% e -
N/A 6/8/21 4,800
6/23/24 4,800 | certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and accurate and
that the sampling procedure and analysis used are as specified in the Waste
)f Discharge Order for this facility.
(1 1]
SIGNATURE: ) pate: 07/19/2021

pRINTED NamE: Carinna Butler tree: FRM Operations Manager




HLNOW

ane NOP AVA ddv HYW 934 NV

| 1zoz= ozozm eLozw |

234 AON 100 d3S8 onNny
(Lzoz - 6102)

MOTd LNINT443 d1MM ATIVA FOVHEAVY asSOaV

ooo‘oL

000°02

000°0€

000‘0r

000°0S

000'09

000'02

Avd d3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

d3a AON 120 d3s onvy anr Nar AVA Adv VI 934 NVT

| 120z% ozoz= 6L0z= |

(Lzoz - 6102)
MOT4 IN3IN1443 dLMM TVLOL ATHLNOW asogav

0

000°005

0000001

000°005°}

0000002

000'005'C

HLNOW ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

anr NP AV Ydv JvN g34 NVl

03a ACN 120 d3S ony

| lzoz= ozoz= 6lLozw |

(Lzoz - 6102)
MO14 TVLOL ATHLNOW SIN1 NVS 1¥0d

00005

000001

000'051

000°002

000'052

000'00¢€

SNOTIVO




HLNOW

ane NAr AV ddv HvYN 934 Nvr

03da AON 100 d3s onv

| ublseQ dLMM-— LZ0Zmms (ZOZWem 50z mmm |

(Lzoz - 6102)
aod IN3N14NI 39VIIAY ATHLNOW asoayv

00l

00¢

0o¢

0o

00§

009

/6w




HLNOW

03d AON 100 d3s onvy anr NP AVIN Hdv Vi g3d NV

| W ebeiony AeQ Qg LZ0ZWeS  (ZOZWE  GlLOZwmm |

(Lzoz - 6102)
aod LN3IN1443 I9VIIAV ATHLNOW asoHgav

0

§

0l

Si

0c

1[4

0e

ge

U4

14

/6w




HLNOW

J3a AON 100 d3s onv anr NOr AV Hdv VN g34 Nvr
7 _

| 1zozs  ozozw  elozm |

(Lzoz - 61L02)
Z3d01 INOY4 AIASYHOIUN ¥ILVM ATHLNOW asogv

0

000°00S

000°'000°L

000'005'4

000'000°C

000'005'Z

000'000'¢

SNOTIVO




HLNONW

ane NAr AVA Hdv oYW g3d Nvr
|

[ 1z0z= ozoz= 6lozm |

03da AON 100 d3s oNvY
(1zoz - 6102)

d10s d31vM ATHLNOW asogav

0

000008

000°000°}

000'00S'L

000'000°C

0000052

000'000°€

000°00S'€

SNOTIVO







FLUID RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

CONTRACTORS LICENSE #937346

August 4, 2021

Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJEGT: JULY 2021 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular basis. The Chlorine
Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can have a negative effect on the effluent

quality leaving the facility.

On July 8, 2021, staff replaced the existing air scrubber at the wastewater treatment plant. The air scrubber controls odors coming from
the wastewater plant in accordance with the plant's Air Pollution Control District Permit.

On July 17, 2021, staff responded to an alarm at the influent lift station; one of the influent pumps had tripped and was reset to restore
normal operations.

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM staff monitoring the water quality in the tank and flushing as
needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chlorine residuals and provide additional chlorine as needed. Staff has been performing
distribution flushing on an as needed basis.

Staff responded to a report of a water leak on San Luis Street on July 27, 2021; the leak was on the customer’s side of the meter and
staff assisted the customer with turning water off to the property so the customer could coordinate repairs.

COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

Staff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report in California Integrated Water
Quality System (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified by ABCSD Staff.

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L with a Daily
Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

A

45 d
LA k: ] J
o AR

Carinna Butler
Operations Manager

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABCSD Average Daily WWTP Effluent Flow (2019-2021)
ABCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (20198-2021)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow (2018-2021)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2019-2021)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2019-2021)

Monthly Water Purchased from Lopez (2019-2021)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2019-2021)

HRARE A

FLUIDRESOURCEMANAGEMENT.COM | B05.597.7100
FRMINFO@FRM-OPS5.COM | 2385 PRECISION DRIVE, ARROYO GRANDE, CA 93420




DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING

California Regional Water Avila Beach CSD ORDER R3-2017-0025
Quality Control Board.
Central Coast Region Wastewater Treatment D om0y
e sy 1 " Facility Month: JULY 2021
Effluent and Influent Monitoring
Daily Flow (MGD) Effluent Monitoring Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly Monthly
T Avg Biweekly | Biweekly I'JaiI?r Date EfoI;eDnt Ef;l;;nt In;l;;nt Ing;;nt c’.Effluent
Date | Total Total Fecal | Chiorine il & Grease
(gpm) | (@P™) | coliform | Coliform | Residual (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (Grab)
1 |0.043524 82 30 <2 <2 <0.02 i1 28 27 323 165
2 |0.063697 84 45 <0.02 7i4i121 38 35 395 237
3 |0.070400 93 49 <0.02 7/8/121 45 33 350 230
4 10.071808 95 50 <0.02 7121 34 33 408 404
5§ ]0.064100| 99 45 <0.02 715121 43 22 196 188 1.8 DNQ
6 ]0.058245| 88 41 <2 <2 <0.02 7M8/I21 39 28 287 177
7 |0.619480 87 43 <0.02 7122721 37 32 336 191
8 |0.060215| 87 42 <2 <2 <0.02 7/125/121 38 42 326 260
9 |0.060727)| 91 42 <0.02 7/129/21 36 37 421 217
10 ]0.069519 95 48 <0.02 7130121 28 18
11 ]0.071080 96 50 <0.02 Min 28 18 196 165 1.8 DNQ
12 |0.060910 91 42 <0.02 Mean 36.6 30.7 338.0 229.9 1.8 DNQ
13 ]0.062027 97 45 <2 <2 <0.02 Max 45 42 421 404 1.8 DNQ
14 |0.060685 91 44 <0.02 BOD Removal: 89.2% TSS Removal: 86.6%
15 |0.058513| 87 44 <2 <2 <0.02 Effluent Monitoring
16 |o.062826 90 44 <0.02 Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly
Date | Set. Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
17 |0.068884| 99 49 <0.02 (Grab) (Grab) (Grab) (Grab)
18 |0.066600 94 46 <0.02 7M/21 <0.1 18.9 6.8 73
19 |0.057741 90 40 <0.02 7/8/21 <01 23.2 6.7 73
20 |0.056288) 89 39 <2 <2 <0.02 7521 <0.1 224 6.4 74
21 |0.058872 83 H“ <0.02 7/22/21 <0.1 27.0 6.7 73
22 10.061954| 89 43 <2 <2 <0.02 7129121 <0.1 21.5 6.7 74
23 |0.061470 91 43 <0,02 Min <0.1 18.9 6.4 73
24 10.069297 96 44 <0.02 Mean <0.1 22.6 6.7 73
25 |0.068743 92 43 <0.02 Max <0.1 27.0 6.8 74
26 |0.058355| 116 47 <0.02 Effluent Limits
27 ]0.059360 86 41 <2 <2 <0.02 Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg | Daily Max
28 10.061063 84 43 <0.02 BOD mg/L 40 60 90
29 |0.056369 79 39 <2 <2 <0.02 Suspended Solids mg/L 40 60 90
30 |0.059079 92 41 <0.02 Oil and Grease mg/L 25 40 75
31 |0.071424 95 50 <0.02 Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
Min |0.043524 79 30 <2 <2 <0.02 7 Sample Median: 23
Mean |0.080460 91 44 <2 <2 <0.02 Total Coliform 1::: :/L More than once in 30 days: 240
Max [0.619480| 116 50 <2 <2 <0.02 Daily Maxiumum: 2,400
Total |2.494255| Effluent daily (dry weather) flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean). Chlorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 l 1.2
pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
influent Brine Received Sludge Removal Settleable Solids mL/L 1.0 1.5 3.0
Date | Volume (Gallons) Date Gallons BOD/TSS Removal % 2 75% hi it
N/A 718121 4,800 -
7/30/21 4,800 I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and accurate and
that the sampling procedure and analysis used are as specified in the Waste
Discharge Order for this facility.
SIGNATURE: DATE:
PRINTED NAME: TITLE:




HLNOW

onv anr NOr AVIA ddv UV g34 Nvr

03a AON 120 d3s

| Lzoz= ozoz= 6L0z= |

(Lzoz - 61L02)
MOT4 ININ1443 d1LMM ATIVA IOVHIAY ASHgV

000°0L

000'0Z

000°'0€

000'0F

000°08

000'09

000'0L

000°08

00006

Ava ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

o3a AON 100 d3s onyvy anr NP AVIN Hdv JviN g3d NV

[ 1z0z= ozoz= 6lozs |

(Lz0zZ - 6102)
MOT4 ININ1443 dLMM TVLOL ATHLNOW asoav

000°005

000°000°L

000'00S‘4

0000002

000°005°2

000°000°€

HLNOW ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

onvy anr NOr AV Hdv HVYN d34 NVT

03a AON 100 d3s

| 1zoz= 0z0zm 6L0Zw |

(LZozZ - 6102)
MO14 TVLOL ATHLNOW SINT NVS L¥0Od

000°05

000°00L

000061

000°002

000'05¢

000'00€

SNOT1VO




HLNONW

ony ane NP AV Adv YN 934 NVl

23d AON 100 d3s

| uBiSeQ dLMM=—— |Z0Zmmm (Z0Zm== 50z mmm |

(Lzoz - 6102)
aosd IN3N14NI 39VI3IAY ATHLNOW asoav

00l

00¢

00¢

0oy

00s

009

/6w




234

_ hwr] 8besony AeQ Qg====  |Z0Zmmm (707w 5| 0Z we _

~ (1zoz - 6102)
aog LN3N1443 I9VIIAV ATHLNOW asdav

14

/6w




HLNOW

o3a NON 120 d3as onv ane NP AV ddv avYW g93d Nvr

| 000'000°2

‘ 000°00§'2

[ 1zozm  oeozs  elozm |

(Lzoz - 6102)
Z3d01 WO¥4 G3SVHOUNd ¥ILVM ATHLNOW asoav

000'000°¢

SNOTIVO




HLNOW

ony anr NNr AV ddv HYN g3d NV

o3ada AON 100 d3s

| 120z= ozozw 6lozm |

(Lzoz - 6102)
a10s ¥31VM ATHLNOW asogav

000'00S

000°000°L

000'00S°}

000°000°C

000'005°2

000°000°€

000°00G'€

SNOTIVO







AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors N
(24

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager—

DATE: August 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Award Contract Amendment to Wallace Group for Final Design and Bid
Services for Wastewater Treatment Plant Redundancy Project

Recommendation:
Approve the increase in the Scope of Services and the associated Contract Amendment

for Engineering Services with Wallace Group.

Discussion:

At the November 10, 2020, Board meeting the Board approved a contract with Wallace
Group to provide Final Design & Bid Documents, and Bid Phase Services for the WWTP
Redundancy Project. Wallace Group has been working closely with the Membrane
Bioreactor manufacture, Cloacina Inc., and District staff to prepare the final design and
bid documents. During the final design and integration process we identified several
needed project improvements that can most effectively be provided as part of the overall
WWTP project. Those improvements include but are not limited to:

SCADA System upgrade — The existing SCADA system was installed over fifteen years
ago and has reached its capacity and useful life. The MBR system includes a modern,
integrated SCADA system. It is most cost effective to upgrade the entire WWTP
SCADA system as part of this project.

Replacement of Primary Clarifier Effluent Pipe — This pipe was installed as part of the
initial WWTP construction in the early 1960s. We identified flow issues in the pipe and
recommend replacing this pipe as part of this project.

Ground (MBR Foundation) Improvements and Site Drainage — As we moved through the
final design and integration process we determined additional foundation stability would
be required and that the entire site drainage needed to be re-designed.



Cloacina Change Order Review and Coordination. — As part of the integration process,
we anticipated that we would have a number of project scope changes that would increase
the functionality and overall capability of the wastewater treatment plant. The most
significant change was the addition of a wastewater influent equalization tank.
Operations staff has been requesting an EQ tank for many years. The EQ tank will allow
operations staff to flatten the peak hourly flows and feed the treatment system with a
more steady state flow. Other changes include installing a cover of a portion of the MBR
unit; upgrading the influent micro screens; installing an influent lift station bypass pump
and controls; and adding a sludge tank. Including these additional components as part of
the larger project will provide more functionality in the most cost effective manner.

Staff has discussed these engineering scope changes with Wallace Group and agrees that
a Contract Amendment is warranted. Wallace Group proposes a fee revision based on a
time and materials basis for not to exceed amount of $29,896. Staff agrees this is a fair
and reasonable estimate.

Staff recommends the Board approve the Contract Amendment as detailed in Wallace
Group’s June 30, 2021, provided as an attachment to this staff report.



CONTRACT AMENDMENT

Project Name: Avila CSD Site Prep & Utility Connections CA No. 1

Client Name: Avila Beach CSD Project/Phase No. 0245-0012/0003

Attention: Brad Hagemann Date: June 30, 2021

Address: PO Box 309, Avila Beach, California, 93424

Wallace Group requests the Client’s authorization to proceed with revisions to the contract
agreement for the above referenced project as herein described. Approval below incorporates this
document as a part of the original contract signed November 19, 2020. If approved, please return
one signed original Contract Amendment to Wallace Group.

Description and Purpose of the Revision(s)

This contract amendment encompasses several scope additions that have come out of the project,
organized into 5 major categories. The attached breakdown summarizes the fee totals for each
category, broken out as time already billed, and time remaining, for each category.

SCADA Improvements - Wallace Group organized several meetings both onsite and remote to
determine the strategy for upgrading the overall plant SCADA system once the Cloacina MBR system
has been installed. Wallace Group worked with Fluid Resource Management as the operations team
to summarize the various plant parameters that will require SCADA equipment upgrades or
additions. FRM listed out the devices needed for the upgrades and plans to submit a proposal to the
District for these devices for installation as a separate project from the MBR system improvements.
Remaining work for Wallace Group includes design and drafting of a recirculation loop auto valve
and flowmeter as well as an influent pipe flowmeter.

Primary Clarifier Effluent Pipe Analysis and Replacement - Wallace Group conducted an analysis
of the primary clarifier effluent pipe after observation of the plant struggling to maintain influent
capacity during a large 2021 storm. Based on operator interviews, record drawing review, and
design calculations, it was determined that the primary clarifier effluent pipe leading to the FFR
sump is in need of replacement. The current line is likely full of sediment and does not have any
cleanout access. Remaining time includes final design and drafting of end connections and
configuration of the tee fitting that routes effluent directly to the secondary sedimentation basin if

needed.

Ground Improvements and Additional Site Drainage Design - Wallace Group, in partnership with
Cloacina, Yeh and Associates, and Taylor & Syfan, have determined that the preliminary design was
not sufficient for plant reliability due to excessive differential settlement of up to 3”. It was
determined that rigid inclusions would be required to improve bearing capacity, similar to
construction of the current site structures. Wallace Group also found that the site drainage required
significant redesign to prevent ponding during wet weather events. The design includes updates to
drainage to the entire site, not just the MBR system area, as a wholistic approach is necessary.
Design of grading and drainage is finalized, remaining work includes sheet production for the

construction document set.

Cloacina Change Order Review and Coordination - there have been multiple change orders issued
by Cloacina based on interaction with Wallace Group and the District. These changes have resulted
in some major design changes that required some rework for Wallace Group. The latest submittals
from Cloacina show the MBR system to be shorter in length than originally planned and will require
some minor grading and drainage changes yet to be made.

Miscellaneous Scope ltems - these include coordination of survey, retrieval of record drawings for
scanning and sharing with the design team, and some analysis and redesign of the Preliminary
Engineering Report. Those changes mainly include the overall approach to send influent through the

WALLACE GROUPs

CIVIL AND
TRANSPORTATION
ENGINEERING

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

MECHANICAL
ENGINEERING

PLANNING

PUBLIC WORKS
ADMINISTRATION

SURVEYING /
GIS SOLUTIONS

WATER RESOURCES

WALLACE GROUP

A California Corporation

612 CLARION CT
SAN LUIS OBISPO
CALIFORNIA 93401

T 805 544-4011
F 805 544-4294

www.wallacegroup.us



CA #1

Avila Beach CSD
June 30, 2021
Page 2 of 2

primary clarifier before entering the new MBR system, to reduce solids and overall loading. This
resulted in rework of the lift station design from the PER, inclusion of an influent equalization tank

and associated pump skid and appurtenances.

Feel free to contact Bryan Childress with any questions regarding the above explanations. Thank you
for your understanding.

Revision(s) Represent: Revision(s) Fee:

{ ) a change in previous instructions (x) hourly (time & materials) $29,896.50
(x) a change in Scope of Services ( ) progress billing: $

( ) other: ( ) not-to-exceed w/o authorization: S

Revision(s) will be invoiced as:
(x) increase to an item within the existing contract
{ ) a new item added to existing contract

Issued by,
WALLACE GROUP, a California Corporation APPROVED BY CLIENT:

'/- . - S
>~ L

Bryan D. Childress, PE M37934/C88775
Senior Mechanical Engineer Signhature
612 Clarion Court
San Luis Obispo Printed Name
California 93401
T 805 544-4011 Title
F 805 544-4294
www.wallacegroup.us Date

WALLACE GROUPs



05°968°6Z$ (TvD) wBwWpUsWY Penuo) [eloL

00°0TZ0TS$ |05'989'61S 1e10|

(218 Huez U3 ‘uojiels Yii} yiom udisapal Yad NI ‘{eAsniad Suimeap ‘uorieulpiood Asaung 00'0$ SZ'¥S9'ES swa}} 9doas jo InQ SIN
SUOISIAQI BUIDEO)) 15318) Oy Isnfpe Oy suy |  00'O¥9S | S2'195'€S UOIIBUINJO0T) PUB MBIARY JBpI(Q aBuey) BuldROD

SUOIIEAD]D pue s3]yoJd [jem 104 13| SIY OT ‘SSuimelp 193ys a3eulelp/duipels Joy 2| S1y OE| 00°009°95 | 00'SSLLS ugisaq adeulelq IS |,PPY PUe Slu3wanoidw) punalg
sadueyd adid pas Auepuodas Jo LUOHIE|OSI pue SUCKDBULOI pajielap Yelp oy siy 8| 00°0ZE‘TS | 0S'2TL'TS wawadelday pue sisAjeuy adig Jusniyl tayue) Aewnd

SBUIJ JUINJUI PUE UOHE|NIIIDL 104 DAJBA PUE SI313IMOY) Lelp pue uBisap 011y OT| 00°0S9'TS | 00°000°2$ sjuawanoidw] yayos

sajoN Bujuleway p2ing 1afoid 03 pappy adods

TLSL6S- |elo})

(52210135 asoyd pig/20s3/|01nanas/10314333)3) sasoyd aimnf pun

£I030643U0IqNS 40 240 A3Y) 50 JaBpnq Buiuibwas 10§ SasoYd 13430 JapIsU0d J0u oQ)

ELE0T'LS ugisaq BuisauiBug | £0000

05'282% UONEUIPIO0D UBISIA JOPUIA PIIII|RS-3Id 20000

75'0V8'SS W 199(044 T0000

TZ/0£/9 40 se Juuteway 123png

umopyesig TV







AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors i
P rJIL"AJ )

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manag_er)-( 7[

DATE: August 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2021-04 approving the adoption of a
District Debt Management Policy in Accordance with SB 1029

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2021-04 approving a Debt

Management Policy in accordance with SB 1029 for local agencies wishing to enter into debt
financing transactions.

Background

Local agencies in California that wish to enter into debt financing transactions must have a debt
management policy that is compliant with SB 1029 (2016), which became effective on January
1, 2017. Resolution 20-07 provides for the District to adopt a SB 1029-compliant debt
management policy.

Discussion

In order to obtain funds for the WWTP improvement project the District intends to enter into a
private placement equipment lease. Prior to entering into this transaction, the District will need to
submit to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC) a preliminary
report of debt issuance which will include a certification that the District has adopted a Debt
Policy that meets the requirements of SB 1029, which became effective on January 1, 2017, and
which are found in California Government Code 8855. Adoption of the Debt Policy by the
Board is required for compliance with the legislation.

In accordance with Government Code 8855, a local debt policy must include all the following:

(A)  The purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used.

(B)  The types of debt that may be issued.

(C)  The relationship of the debt to, and integration with, the issuer’s capital improvement
program or budget, if applicable.

(D)  Policy goals related to the issuer’s planning goals and objectives.

(E)  The internal control procedures that the issuer has implemented, or will implement, to

ensure that the proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be directed to the intended use.

The attached draft Debt Management Policy meets all these requirements.



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ADOPTING A DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Avila Beach Community
Services District (the “District”) recognizes that cost-effective access to the capital markets
depends on prudent management of the District’s debt program; and

WHEREAS, Government Code section 8855(i) requires any issuer of public debt to
provide to California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC) no later than 30 days
prior to the sale of any debt issue a report of the proposed issuance (the “Report of Proposed
Debt Issuance”), and must certify on the Report of Proposed Debt Issuance that they have
adopted local debt policies concerning the use of debt and that the proposed debt issuance is
consistent with those policies (the “CDIAC Requirements™); and

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to set parameters for issuing debt, managing the debt
portfolio and providing guidance to decision makers; and

WHEREAS, the Board finds and determines that adoption of the attached Debt
Management Policy (the “Debt Management Policy”) will help ensure that debt is issued and
managed prudently in order to maintain sound fiscal policy, and is in compliance with the
CDIAC Requirements; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Avila
Beach Community Services District hereby orders and determines as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The Board hereby specifically finds and declares that each of the
recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated in conjunction with the
respective staff report.

Section 2. Approval of the Debt Management Policy. This Board hereby declares that
the proposed Debt Management Policy attached hereto, is hereby approved as the Avila Beach
Community Services District Debt Management Policy to be effective on the date of approval.

Section 3. Authorization to Manage Debt Issuance Functions. The General Manager,
or a designee thereof, is hereby authorized to manage debt issuance functions for the District in
accordance with the Debt Management Policy.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of
its passage and adoption.



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach
Community Services District on the 10™ day of August 2021, by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Pete Kelley, President

Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Brad Hagemann
General Manager, Board Secretary



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY

This Debt Management Policy (the “Debt Policy”) of the Avila Beach Community Services
District (the “District”) was approved by the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) on
August 10, 2021. The Debt Policy may be amended by the Board as it deems appropriate from time
to time in the prudent management of the debt of the District. This Debt Policy shall also apply to
any improvement districts formed by the District.

The Debt Policy has been developed to provide guidance in the issuance and management of
debt by the District and is intended to comply with Government Code Section 8855, effective on
January 1, 2017. The main objectives are to establish conditions for the use of debt; to ensure that
debt capacity and affordability are adequately considered; to minimize the District's interest and
issuance costs; to maintain the highest possible credit rating; to provide complete financial disclosure
and reporting; and to maintain financial flexibility for the District.

Debt, properly issued and managed, is a critical element in any financial management
program. It assists in the District's effort to allocate limited resources to provide the highest quality of
service to the public. The District understands that poor debt management can have ripple effects that
hurt other areas of the District. On the other hand, a properly managed debt program promotes
economic growth and enhances the vitality of the District for its residents and businesses.

1. FINDINGS

Unless waived by the District, this Debt Policy shall govern all debt undertaken by the
District. The District hereby recognizes that a fiscally prudent debt policy is required in order to:

e Maintain the District's sound financial position.

e Ensure the District has the flexibility to respond to changes in future service
priorities, revenue levels, and operating expenses.

e Protect the District's credit-worthiness.

e Ensure that all debt is structured in order to protect both current and future
taxpayers, ratepayers and constituents of the District.

e Ensure that the District's debt is consistent with the District's planning goals and
objectives and capital improvement program or budget, as applicable.

¢ Encourage those that benefit from a facility/improvement to pay the cost of that
facility/improvement without the need for the expenditure of limited general
fund resources.

2. POLICIES
A. Purposes For Which Debt Mav Be Issued

The District will consider the use of debt financing for capital improvement projects
(“CIP”) primarily when the project's useful life will equal or exceed the term of the financing and
when resources are identified sufficient to fund the debt service requirements. An exception to
this section’s focus is the issuance of short-term instruments such as tax and revenue anticipation




notes, which are to be used for prudent cash management purposes and conduit financing, as

described below.

i. Long-Term Debt. To the extent permitted by law, long-term debt may be

issued to finance or refinance the construction, acquisition, and rehabilitation
of capital improvements and facilities, equipment and land to be owned
and/or operated by the District.

(a) Long-term debt financings are appropriate when the following
conditions exist:

When the project to be financed will provide benefit to
constituents over multiple years.

When the debt is used to refinance outstanding debt in order to
produce debt service savings or to realize the benefits of a debt
restructuring.

(b) Long-term debt financings will not generally be considered
appropriate for current operating expenses and routine maintenance
expenses.

(c) The District may use long-term debt financings subject to the
following conditions:

The project to be financed has been or will be approved by the
Board.

The weighted average maturity of the debt (or the portion of the
debt allocated to the project) will not cause the District to violate
any covenants to maintain the tax-exempt status of such debt, if
applicable.

The District estimates that sufficient income or revenues will be
available to service the debt through its maturity.

The District determines that the issuance of the debt will comply
with the applicable requirements of state and federal law.

The District considers the improvement/facility to be of vital,
time-sensitive need of the community and there are no plausible
alternative financing sources

(d) Periodic reviews of outstanding long-term debt will be undertaken to
identify refunding opportunities. Refunding will be considered
(within federal tax law constraints, if applicable) if and when there is
a net economic benefit of the refunding. Refundings which are non-
economic may be undertaken to achieve District objectives relating
to changes in covenants, call provisions, operational flexibility, tax
status of the issuer, or the debt service profile.

In general, refundings which produce a net present value savings

of at least three percent (3%) of the refunded debt will be considered
economically viable. Refundings which produce a net present value
savings of less than three percent (3%) or negative savings will be



considered on a case-by-case basis and are subject to Board
approval.

ii. Short-Term Debt. To the extent permitted by law, short-term borrowing may
be issued to generate funding for cash flow needs in the form of Tax and
Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRAN).

To the extent permitted by law, other types of short-term borrowings,
such as commercial paper, and lines of credit, will be considered as an
interim source of funding in anticipation of long-term borrowing. Short-
term debt may be issued for any purpose for which long-term debt may be
issued, including capitalized interest and other financing-related costs. Prior
to issuance of the short-term debt, a reliable revenue source shall be
identified to secure repayment of the debt. The final maturity of the debt
issued to finance the project shall be consistent with the economic or useful
life of the project and, unless the Board determines that extraordinary
circumstances exist, must not exceed seven (7) years.

Short-term debt may also be used to finance short-lived capital projects;
for example, the District may undertake lease-purchase financing for
equipment.

B. Types of Debt
In order to maximize the financial options available to benefit the public, it is the policy

of the District to allow for the consideration of issuing all generally accepted types of debt,
including, but not exclusive to the following:

General Obligation (GO) Bonds: General Obligation Bonds are suitable for use in the
construction or acquisition of improvements to real property that benefit the public at
large. Examples of projects include but, are not limited to: street improvements, libraries,
parks, and public safety facilities. All GO bonds shall be authorized by the requisite
number of voters in order to pass.

Lease-Backed Debt/Certificates of Participation (COP): Issuance of lease-backed debt is
a commonly used form of debt that allows a District to finance projects where the debt
service is secured via a lease, lease/purchase agreement or installment agreement.
Further, the District may enter into installment sale agreements or installment purchase
contracts payable from revenues of the District’s water enterprise or wastewater
enterprise.

The District may from time to time find that other forms of debt to, the extent permitted

by law, would be beneficial to further its public purposes and may approve such debt without an
amendment of this Debt Policy.

To maintain a predictable debt service burden, the District will only issue debt that

carries a fixed interest rate.

C. Relationship Of Debt To Capital Improvement Program And Budget
The District intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and to

implement policy decisions incorporated in the District's capital budget and the capital
improvement plan.



The District shall integrate its debt issuances with the goals of its capital improvement
program by timing the issuance of debt to ensure that projects are available when needed in
furtherance of the District's public purposes. The District shall seek to issue debt in a timely
manner to avoid having to make unplanned expenditures for capital improvements or equipment
from its general fund.

D. Policy Goals Related To Planning Goals And Objectives

The District is committed to financial planning, maintaining appropriate reserves levels
and employing prudent practices in governance, management and budget administration. The
District intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and to implement policy
decisions incorporated in the District's annual operating budget.

It is a policy goal of the District to protect taxpayers, ratepayers and constituents by
utilizing conservative financing methods and techniques so as to obtain the highest practical
credit ratings (if applicable) and the lowest practical borrowing costs.

The District will comply with applicable state and federal law as it pertains to the
maximum term of debt and the procedures for levying and imposing any related taxes,
assessments, rates and charges.

E. Internal Control Procedures

When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of this Debt Policy, the
District shall comply with any other applicable policies rggarding initial bond disclosure,
continuing disclosure, post-issuance compliance, and investment of bond proceeds.

The District will periodically review the requirements of and will remain in compliance
with the following:

e any continuing disclosure undertakings under SEC Rule 15¢2-12;

e any federal tax compliance requirements, including without limitation arbitrage and
rebate compliance, related to any prior bond issues;

e any required reporting to be filed with the California Debt and Investment Advisory
Commission (CDIAC); and

¢ the District's investment policies as they relate to the investment of bond proceeds.

The General Manager or designee can recommend future changes to the Debt Management

Policy as deemed necessary.






AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors P

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage@*"w_j

DATE: August 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2021-05 approving a Private
Placement with Municipal Finance Corporation and Associated Lease
Agreement Documents for the District’s Wastewater Treatment Plant

Improvement Project

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2021-05 approving a

Discussion:

For the past two years the District has investigating and designing an upgrade to the
District’s wastewater treatment plant (WWTP). Upgrade will include adding a 50,000
gallon per day membrane bioreactor (MBR), upgrading the power system, making
improvements to the influent lift station and upgrading the overall treatment plant
supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system. In October 2020, the Board
awarded a contract to Cloacina to build and deliver the MBR to the WWTP site. In
November 2020, the Board awarded a professional services contract to Wallace Group to
prepare final design, integration and construction bid documents. The final design is
nearing completion and we anticipate circulating the construction bid documents within

the next 30 days.

The Community Services District (CSD) and the Port San Luis Harbor District (Harbor
District) have been covering design and initial MBR construction costs on a “pay as we
go” basis for the last two years. At this point the MBR manufacturer is requesting the
first sizable payment for construction of the MBR and associated integration. Therefore,
staff moved forward with soliciting a firm quote and preparation of financing documents
with the California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Foundation and Municipal
Finance Corporation (MFC).

Staff has been working with the CSDA Foundation for the last six months in determining
financing options, terms and their process. MFC solicited banks that were interested in
providing funding for the District project and determined that US Bank and CN
Financing provided the best project financing terms. The project financing terms are
provided as an attachment to Resolution No. 2021-05 include: $3,000,000 finance



amount, $20,000 Documentation and Administration fee; 20 year term at 3.15% per year
interest rate. Payments are due annually in arrears, which mean the first payment will be
due in September 2022.

CSD staff and legal counsel have reviewed the financing documents, met with and
provided comments to the Municipal Finance Corporation representative. The MFC
representative has agreed to CSD legal counsel comments. At the time of this writing we
are waiting for a response from CN Financing/US Bank on our proposed comments on
the Project Funding Agreement. We will provide an update at the Board meeting.

Coordination with the Harbor District —

The Board will recall that in accordance with our 2016 Wastewater Service Agreement,
the Harbor District has rights to 33% of the WWTP capacity and also is responsible for
33% of the capital improvement program costs. The CSD and Harbor District Boards
have conducted several joint Board meetings over the last two to discuss and reach
agreement on the project and specifically on the project funding mechanism. Article 12
of the Wastewater Service Agreement addresses funding capital expenditures and states
that “the CSD shall not issue new debt that would obligate the Harbor District without
prior approval by the CSD and Harbor District by resolution of their respective governing
bodies.”

At the recent joint Board meeting, the Harbor District and the CSD reached consensus on
the funding mechanism, but they could not adopt a resolution without having the funding
mechanism details that we now have. Staff recommends that the CSD Board adopt
Resolution No. 2021-05 and include a condition of approval that requires the Harbor
District to also adopt a Resolution at their next regular Board meeting that approves the

funding mechanism.

Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2021-05 approving a private
placement with Municipal Finance Corporation and the Associated attached lease
agreement documents that include:

1. Lease Agreement

2. Project Fund Agreement

3. Memorandum of Lease Agreement
4. Site Lease



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-05

RESOLUTION OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT APPROVING A SITE LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND
PROJECT FUND AGREEMENT; MAKING CERTAIN
DETERMINATIONS RELATING THERETO; AND AUTHORIZING
CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services District (the “District”) is a community
services district duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, Municipal Finance Corporation (the “Corporation”), as consultant to the CSDA
Finance Corporation Lease Program, has made a lease purchase financing proposal to provide financing
to the District; and

WHEREAS, in order to provide funds for the financing of the acquisition, construction and
installation of certain improvements to real property of the District consisting of wastewater treatment
plant improvements (the “Project”), the District will lease certain real property owned by the District (the
“Site™) to the Corporation under a Site Lease, currently dated as of September 1, 2021, (the “Site Lease”)
between the District and the Corporation and the Corporation will lease the Site to the District under a
Lease Agreement, currently dated as of September 1, 2021 (the “Lease Agreement”) between the
Corporation and the District; and

WHEREAS, there have been presented at this meeting forms of the Site Lease and the Lease
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation ‘intends to assign its rights under the Site Lease and the Lease
Agreement to CN Financing, Inc. (the “Assignee”); and

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 450 (Chapter 625 of the 2017-2018 Session of the California
Legislature) (“SB 450”) requires that the Board obtain from an underwriter, municipal advisor or private
lender and disclose, prior to authorization of the issuance of bonds, including debt instruments such as the
Lease Agreement, with a term of greater than 13 months, good faith estimates of the following
information in a meeting open to the public: (a) the true interest cost of the lease payments made pursuant
to the Lease Agreement (the “Lease Payments”), (b) the sum of all fees and charges paid to third parties
with respect to the Lease Agreement, (c) the amount of proceeds of the Lease Agreement expected to be
received net of the fees and charges paid to third parties and any reserves or capitalized interest paid or
funded with proceeds of the Lease Agreement, and (d) the sum total of all Lease Payments with respect to
the Lease Agreement calculated to the final Lease Payment Date under the Lease Agreement plus the fees
and charges paid to third parties not paid with the proceeds of the Lease Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in compliance with SB 450, the required good faith estimates are disclosed and set
forth on Exhibit A attached hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach
Community Services District (the “Board”) as follows:

Section 1. Approval of Site Lease. The form of Site Lease, as presented to the District at this
meeting, is hereby approved. The President, Vice President, and the District Manager or any other
officers duly designated by the District (collectively, the “Officers”) are hereby authorized and directed,




for and on behalf of the District, to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Site Lease, in substantially the
form presented to the District at this meeting, with such changes therein as such Officers may require or
approve, with the advice and approval of the District’s General Counsel, such approval to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof.

Section 2. Approval of Lease Agreement. The form of Lease Agreement, as presented to the
District at this meeting, along with the Memorandum of Lease, is hereby approved. The Officers are
hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the District, to execute, acknowledge and deliver the
Lease Agreement, in substantially the form presented to the District at this meeting, with such changes
therein as such Officers may require or approve, with the advice and approval of the District’s General
Counsel, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; provided that
the aggregate principal component of the portion of the Lease Payments (as defined in the Lease
Agreement) due under the Lease Agreement shall not exceed $3,020,000, the scheduled term of the
financing does not exceed October 1, 2041 and the interest rate is not greater than 3.15% per annum.

Section 3. Approval of Project Fund Agreement. The Project Fund Agreement, as presented
to the District at this meeting, is hereby approved. The Officers are hereby authorized and directed, for
and on behalf of the District, to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Project Fund Agreement, in
substantially the form presented to the District at this meeting, with such changes therein as such Officers
may require or approve, with the advice and approval of the District’s General Counsel, such approval to
be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof.

Section 4. Bank Qualified. The Lease Payments due under the Lease Agreement are hereby
designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.
The Board hereby finds and determines that the aggregate face amount of all tax exempt obligations
(other than private activity bonds) issued by the District (and all subordinate entities thereof) during
calendar year 2021 is not expected to exceed $10,000,000.

Section 5. SB 450 Good Faith Estimates. In accordance with SB 450, good faith estimates of
the following are set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto: (a) the true interest cost of the lease payments
made pursuant to the Lease Agreement, (b) the sum of all fees and charges paid to third parties with
respect to the Lease Agreement, (c) the amount of proceeds of the Lease Agreement expected to be
received net of the fees and charges paid to third parties and any reserves or capitalized interest paid or
funded with proceeds of the Lease Agreement, and (d) the sum total of all Lease Payments with respect to
the Lease Agreement calculated to the final Lease Payment Date under the Lease Agreement plus the fees
and charges paid to third parties not paid with the proceeds of the Lease Agreement.

Section 6. Reimbursement of Prior Expenditures. The District declares its official intent to be
reimbursed from the proceeds of the Lease Agreement approved hereby for a maximum principal amount
of $3,000,000.00 of expenditures occurring no earlier than sixty days prior to the adoption of this
Resolution. All reimbursed expenditures will be capital expenditures as defined in Section 1.150-1(b) of
the Federal Income Tax Regulations.

Section 7. Official Actions. The Officers are hereby authorized and directed, for and in the
name and on behalf of the District, to do any and all things and take any and all actions which they, or any
of them, may deem necessary or advisable in order to consummate the transactions as described herein in
connection with the financing of the Project. Whenever is this resolution any officer of the District is
directed to execute or countersign any document or take any action, such execution, countersigning or
action may be taken on behalf of such officer by any person designated by such officer to act on his or her
behalf in the case such officer is absent or unavailable.




Section 8. Ratification of Prior Actions. All actions heretofore taken (not inconsistent with
the provisions of this Resolution) by the Board or by the officers, employees and agents of the District
directed toward the financing of the Project for the purposes herein set forth are hereby ratified, approved
and confirmed.

Section 9. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption and
the Secretary shall certify to its adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Avila Beach Community Services District, this 10th day of August, 2021.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

President
Attest:

Secretary

I hereby certify that the above Resolution No. was duly introduced, read and adopted by the
District at a regular meeting held on August 10, 2021.

Secretary



EXHIBIT A
GOOD FAITH ESTIMATES

The following information is provided in compliance with Senate Bill 450 (Chapter 625 of the
2017-2018 Session of the California Legislature) with respect to the Lease Agreement:

1. True Interest Cost of the Lease Agreement. A good faith estimate of the true interest cost
of the lease payments made pursuant to the Lease Agreement (the “Lease Payments”), which means the
rate necessary to discount the amounts allocable as principal and interest components and payable on the
respective Lease Payment Dates, as described under the Lease Agreement to the purchase price received
for Lease Agreement, is 3.15% so long as an event of default or an event of taxability has not occurred.

2. Finance Charge of the Lease Agreement. A good faith estimate of the District’s finance
charge of the Lease Agreement, which means the sum of all fees and charges paid to third parties (or costs
associated with the Lease Agreement), is $20,000.00.

3. Amount of Proceeds to be Received by the District. A good faith estimate of the amount of
proceeds expected to be received by the District for sale of the Lease Agreement less the finance charge
of the Lease Agreement described in paragraph 2 above, is $3,000,000.

4, Total Payment Amount. A good faith estimate of the total payment amount, which means
the sum total of all Lease Payments the District will make to pay its obligations on the Lease Agreement
plus the finance charge of the Lease Agreement described in paragraph 2 above not paid with the
proceeds of the Lease Agreement, calculated to the final Lease Payment Date under the Lease Agreement,
is $4,116,339.80.



PREPARED BY CSDA FINANCE CORPORATION » DATE: July 26, 2021

PROPOSED INSTALLMENT PURCHASE FOR: Avila Beach Community Services District
RE: Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements

NOTE: TERMS ARE BASED UPON LEASE BEING BANK QUALIFIED

Prepayment Option amount is exclusive of the installment payment due on san
Interest rate quote is valid for an acceptance within 15 days and

funding within 60 days.

Documentation Fee: $20,000

Payments: Annually in arrears 20 Years 3.15%
PMT Due Date Installment To To Prepayment

# Payment Principal Interest ‘Option

1 $205,816.99 $110,686.99 95,130.00

2 205,816.99 114,173.63 91,643.36

3 205,816.99 117,770.10 88,046.89

4 205,816.99 -121,479.86 84,337.13

5 205,816.99 125,306.47 80,510.52

6 205,816.99 129,253.63 76,563.36

] 205,816.99 133,325.12 72,491.87

8 205,816.99 137,524.86 68,292.13 2,050,784.13

9 205,816.99 141,856.89 63,960.10 1,907,508.67
10 205,816.99 146,325.38 59,491.61 1,759,720.04
11 205,816.99 150,934.63 54,882.36 1,607,276.06
12 205,816.99 155,689.07 50,127.92 1,450,030.10
13 205,816.99 160,593.28 45,223.71 1,287,830.89
14 205,816.99 165,651.97 40,165.02 1,120,522.40
15 205,816.99 170,870.00 34,946.99 947,943.70
16 205,816.99 176,252.41 29,564.58 769,928.77
17 205,816.99 181,804.36 24,012.63 586,306.36
18 205,816.99 187,531.20 18,285.79 396,899.85
19 205,816.99 193,438.43 12,378.56 201,527.04,
20 205,816.99 199,531.72 6,285.27 0.00

TOTALS:

$4,116,339.80 $3,020,000.00

$1,096,339.80

Approved and agreed to:

Avila Beach Community Services District

By:

Title:

Date:

Y



LEASE AGREEMENT

Dated as of September 1, 2021

between

MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION

and the

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT




TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS; RULES OF INTERPRETATION.......coooiiieirccene i 1
Section 1.1.  DEfINITIONS ..ouveereeeeereeeeeerterieieseeiectestessreessessrm e e esesse e neebeesb e s e b s ke ta b ssassreseaeasees 1
Section 1.2, INtETPretation.........ccciiimiirinriininereree ettt 5

ARTICLE I1 COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES .......ccoooiiiiiiinen 6
Section 2.1.  Covenants, Representations and Warranties of the District..........cccoeovnivreiicnee 6
Section2.2.  Covenants, Representations and Warranties of the Corporation ............c.ccoeveeenes 9

ARTICLE 111 DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF FUNDS ......cooiiee e 10
Section 3.1.  Deposit of and Application of Funds..........c.cccovviieiiiiiiiee 10

ARTICLE IV LEASE OF PROPERTY; LEASE PAYMENTS .....ccorieeee e 10
Section 4.1.  Sublease of Property by the Corporation Back to the District...........cccccoeceiinnnne. 10
SECHOM 4.2, T I eeiteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeettrtreerereeeseeeesasrsrrrssnnennaaasassesaesmarsesmensreeeeseeeeeiesesssrrssssssasaes s 11
Section 4.3.  Lease PayMEntS......c.coovevueiiiiiciiiiiniiiiiii et 11
Section 4.4.  Quiet ENJOYIMENL ....cvevvvvciiiieiiceiiiiiicinterente ettt 13
SECHON 4.5, Tl reieieeei ettt ettt st se e sb s s b b e bs R s sn e e s s e s eene s 13
Section 4.6.  Release 0f EXCESS PrOPerty .....c.cccevirvierieceeeniieeiiiiieneeninis it 14
Section 4.7.  Substitution Of PrOperty .......ccccvverireeniiiieiiiieiin et 15

ARTICLE V MAINTENANCE; TAXES; INSURANCE; AND OTHER MATTERS....................... 16
Section 5.1.  Maintenance, Utilities, Taxes and ASSESSIMENLS ..........ceiviiiniiiiirerirrniiieseessinnenns 16
Section 5.2. Modification 0f PrOPerty........cccooovimniiiiiiinininenciiisie st 17
Section 5.3. Commercial General Liability Insurance...........cccooviviiinininnnnnnnccnen 17
Section 5.4.  Casualty INSUTANCE..........cccccevimninriiiii st 17
Section 5.5.  Rental Interruption INSUTANCE ..........ccoiviiiiiiiniiienriinieees st seesiene s 18
Section 5.6.  Worker’s Compensation INSUrance............cccoeeeiieiiiininnnnnnrsnnne e 18
Section 5.7. Recordation Hereof; Title INSUrance..........cocceeecveecveniiniiiiinninnnnnniinieere e 18
Section 5.8.  Insurance Net Proceeds; Form of PoliCIes.....cccvvvveeeecieiiccnciinniiiiienienn s 18
Section 5.9.  Installation of District’s Personal Property........c.ccoccvviviininennenincnnicnieienee 18
SECHON 5.10.  LIBIIS...cueiiteivieeieteiecceeceieeeeseesne st sresresmsesss s ssesse s e st eas e ts s esassa s en e s s s nesssesae st eae s 19
SeCtion 5.11.  AQVAINICES.....cceiiiirereeeeresteecei ettt st s st s s e saa e s e b bbb sas e 19
Section 5.12. District Consent to Assignment AGreement ............oceiimmermrreneneneeieeeesnins 19
Section 5.13.  Environmental COVENANTS..........cecververireriervenruenicrsisiiinieseessessessessessesnsssssessesssens 19

ARTICLE VI EMINENT DOMAIN; USE OF NET PROCEEDS .........cooiiiiircceene 20
Section 6.1.  Eminent DOMAIN ...........cceeiririiiiiieiicreciiinre s sb et e saasassa e 20
Section 6.2.  Application of Net Proceeds .........cccovoeiiiiiiiiininiccirecieni 20
Section 6.3.  Abatement of Lease Payments in the Event of Damage or Destruction............... 22

ARTICLE VII OTHER COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT .....ccoooviiiiiiiiniieeeeeic 22
Section 7.1.  Disclaimer of WaITanti€s ...........coveeverivecrierniieiniiiiiienennneseese e sessnssssesseenasans 22
Section 7.2.  Access to the Property; Grant and Conveyance of Right of Entry ....................... 22
Section 7.3.  Release and Indemnification COvenants............ccceveeveeenieennneneninsnnsnnneeneneenes 23
Section 7.4.  Assignment Agreement by the COrporation ...........cccceeveeevennenniinnnecnennenen 23
Section 7.5.  Assignment Agreement and Subleasing by the DiStrict ..........cooeriiniiinncn. 24



EXHIBIT B

Section 7.6. Amendment of Lease AGreement ...........cccccuiiiiiiiiiriiirerrerisenie sttt
Section 7.7.  TaxX COVENAILS .......cceovveiiieeieeeeeeeiierenrrenitectieserssaeesneeesesss s e n e saasssesnessessneennness
Section 7.8.  Financial Statements; Budgets..........cccoovveecinenninnnnnee e
Section 7.9.  Records and ACCOUNLS........ccerervcereenririeeiinieiimseeeeses e ssssssessssesseesieennens
Section 7.10. Observance of Laws and Regulations...........ccccccovveeiniiiinininiiiiininnnicnee
SECHION 7.11.  INOLICES .uveeveeeeierteieriesrererre st seeeeeseestesbe s s sssesstssaesb e sr e e e bs s bsessass s s aessabssesaunaaseas
ARTICLE VIII EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES .......cccccoiiiiciienis
Section 8.1.  Events of Default Defined .........occcevvviniiniiniiiiiiine e
Section 8.2. Remedies on Default........ocooverieiieiiiniiiiiiii e
Section 8.3.  No Remedy EXCIUSIVE....ccooviriiiicciiiiic e
Section 8.4.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and EXpenses ..........coooovevvieinicnnniccnecnnnnns
Section 8.5. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver..........cccvvvvieininiiniennnniniinne
Section 8.6.  Assignee to Exercise Rights.........ccccoiiiiiicc
ARTICLE IX PREPAYMENT OF LEASE PAYMENTS ..o
Section 9.1.  Optional Prepayment ...........o.oceiiceeiiiiiiniiimiineeneteree st st

Section 9.2.  Mandatory Prepayment From Net Proceeds of Insurance or Eminent
D101 ¥ bo TR OO PO ORI PP
Section 9.3, SeCUIILY DEPOSIt.....ccererrriririeiiireecnieresenre bbb
ARTICLE X MISCELLANEQUS......ooottcieitieiterteeieeseaeeeesetessinessissstsennssresssasssssesesessesssssssssssssassssasnss
SECHION 10.1.  INOUICES ..oovviiiivictieitieeieeeee et e te e st eee et e et e be e be st s b s s s e s s e sn e n e e b e s s asneasssassasas
Section 10.2.  Binding Effect.......ccccocoviiiiiiiiii
Section 10.3.  SeVErability .......c.cceerrirerieienieieetecie e
Section 10.4. Net-Net-NEt LEASE ....cccuvrrrririeerieeee ettt sa s e s esaee s
Section 10.5. Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments...........cocooeenniiniiinnnnninncnns
Section 10.6.  Waiver of Personal Liability........cccooeeciiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiinieneeee e
Section 10.7. Execution in COUNETPAIS.........c.vuererereiiiiiiiiiiiiieniiitteseesarsnssre e et sneenns
Section 10.8.  Applicable Law ........cccouviieiiiiiiiiiie e
Section 10.9.  CAPHOMS .....cceirrereiriiniiiireeecie ettt et

EXHIBIT A DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE
SCHEDULE OF LEASE PAYMENTS

ii



LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Lease Agreement™), dated as of September 1, 2021, is
between the MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION, a corporation duly organized and existing
under the laws of the State of California, as lessor (the “Corporation”), and the AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a community services district organized and existing under
and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, as lessee (the “District”);

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Site Lease, dated as of September 1, 2021 (the “Site
Lease™), the District has leased that certain real property situated in the County of San Luis Obispo,
State of California, more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof
(the “Site”), and those certain improvements thereon (the “Facility” and, with the Site, the
“Property”), to the Corporation, all for the purpose of enabling the District to finance the acquisition,
construction and installation of certain improvements to real property of the District consisting of
wastewater treatment plant improvements (the “Project”);

WHEREAS, the Corporation proposes to lease the Property back to the District pursuant to
this Lease Agreement and to assign all of its rights, title and interest in, to and under this Lease
Agreement, including its right to receive lease payments under this Lease Agreement (the “Lease
Payments™), its right to enforce payment of the Lease Payments and otherwise to enforce its interest
and rights under this Lease Agreement in the event of a default hereunder by the District and its
rights under the Site Lease, to CN Financing, Inc., including its successors and assigns (the
“Assignee”), pursuant to that certain Assignment Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2021,
between the Corporation and the Assignee; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Corporation have agreed to enter into this Lease Agreement
providing for Lease Payments with an aggregate principal component in the amount of
$3,020,000.00 for the purpose of implementing the transaction described above; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Corporation agree to mutually cooperate now and hereafter,
to the extent possible, in order to sustain the intent of this Lease Agreement and the bargain of both

parties hereto.
AGREEMENT:

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the covenants hereinafter
contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereto hereby formally covenant,
agree and bind themselves as follows:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS; RULES OF INTERPRETATION

Section 1.1.  Definitions. All terms defined in this Section 1.1 have the meanings herein
specified for all purposes of this Lease Agreement.



“Additional Payments” means the amounts specified as such in Section 4.3(b) of this Lease
Agreement,

“Applicable Environmental Laws™ means and shall include, but shall not be limited to, the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (“CERCLA”), 42 USC
Sections 9601 et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), 42 USC Sections
6901 et seq.; the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 USC Sections 1251 et seq.; the Clean Air
Act, 42 USC Sections 7401 et seq.; the California Hazardous Waste Control Law (“HWCL”),
California Health & Safety Code Sections 25100 et seq.; the Hazardous Substance Account Act
(“HSAA?”), California Health & Safety Code Sections 25300 et seq.; the Porter- Cologne Water
Quality Control Act (the “Porter-Cologne Act”), California Water Code Sections 1300 et seq.; the
Air Resources Act, California Health & Safety Code Sections 3900 et seq.; the Safe Drinking Water
& Toxic Enforcement Act, California Health & Safety Code Sections 25249.5 et seq.; and the
regulations under each thereof; and any other local, state, and/or federal laws or regulations, whether
currently in existence or hereafter enacted, that govern:

(a) the existence, cleanup, and/or remedy of contamination on property;

(b) the protection of the environment from spilled, deposited, or otherwise
emplaced contamination;

(©) the control of hazardous wastes; or

(d) the use, generation, transport, treatment, removal, or recovery of Hazardous
Substances, including building materials.

“Assignee” means (a) initially, CN Financing, Inc., a California corporation, as assignee of
all rights, title and interests of the Corporation hereunder, and (b) any other entity to whom the rights
of the Corporation hereunder are assigned, including subsequent assignees of the Assignee, as
provided in Section 7.4.

“Assignment Agreement” means the Assignment Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2021,
between the Corporation, as assignor of its rights under the Site Lease and this Lease Agreement, and
the Assignee, as assignee, as originally executed or as thereafter amended under any duly authorized
and executed amendments thereto.

“Bond Counsel” means any attorney or firm of attorneys of nationally recognized expertise
with respect to legal matters relating to obligations the interest on which is excludable from gross
income under Section 103 of the Tax Code.

“Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, on which
banking institutions are not closed in the State.

“Closing Date” means September ___, 2021.

“Corporation” means Municipal Finance Corporation, a corporation duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of California.

“Corporation Representative”” means the President or the designee of any such official, or any
other person authorized by resolution of the Corporation delivered to the Assignee to act on behalf of



the Corporation under or with respect to the Site Lease, the Lease Agreement and the Assignment
Agreement.

“Costs of Issuance” means all items of expense directly or indirectly payable by or
reimbursable to the District relating to the authorization and execution of the Lease Agreement,
including but not limited to filing and recording fees, fees, charges and disbursements of attorneys,
including counsel to the Assignee, counsel to the Corporation, accounting firms, consultants and
other professionals, fees and charges for preparation, execution and safekeeping of the Lease
Agreement, administrative costs of the District and the Corporation incurred in connection with the
issuance of the Lease Agreement, and any other cost, charge or fee in connection with the original
issuance of the Lease Agreement.

“Default Rate” means 3% plus the interest rate equal to the interest component of Lease
Payments.

“Determination of Taxability” means any determination, decision or decree by the
Commissioner of Internal Revenue, or any District Director of Internal Revenue, or any court of
competent jurisdiction, to the effect that an Event of Taxability shall have occurred; provided,
however, that the District shall have the opportunity to take such remedial action necessary to restore
the tax-exempt status of the interest component of Lease Payments under the Lease Agreement. A
Determination of Taxability also shall be deemed to have occurred on the date when the District files
any statement, supplemental statement, or other tax schedule, return or document, which discloses
that an Event of Taxability shall have occurred.

“District” means the Avila Beach Community Services District, a community services district
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California and also known as the Avila Sanitary
District.

“District Representative” means the President, Vice President, District Manager, or the
designee of any such official, or any other person authorized by resolution delivered to the
Corporation and the Assignee to act on behalf of the District under or with respect to the Site Lease
and this Lease Agreement.

“Event of Default” means any of the events of default as defined in Section 8.1.

“Event of Taxability” means, with respect to the Lease Agreement: (a) the application of the
proceeds of the advance rental payment by the Corporation pursuant to the Site Lease in such manner
that the Lease Agreement becomes an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Tax Code Sections
103(b)(2) and 148, and with the result that interest component of the Lease Payments is or becomes
includable in a recipient’s gross income (as defined in Tax Code Section 61); or (b) if as the result of
any act, failure to act or use of the proceeds of the advance rental payment or any misrepresentation
or inaccuracy in any of the representations, warranties or covenants contained in the Lease
Agreement or the Site Lease by the District the interest component of Lease Payments is or becomes
includable in a recipient’s gross income (as defined in Tax Code Section 61.

“Facility” means those certain facilities existing on the Site.

“Federal Securities” means any direct general non-callable obligations of the United States of
America (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on the books of the Department of



the Treasury of the United States of America), or obligations the timely payment of principal of and
interest on which are directly guaranteed by the United States of America.

“Fiscal Year” means each twelve-month period during the Term of this Lease Agreement
commencing on July 1 in any calendar year and ending on June 30 in the next succeeding calendar
year, or any other twelve-month period selected by the District as its fiscal year period.

“Governmental Authority” means any governmental or quasi-governmental entity, including
any court, department, commission, board, bureau, agency, administration, central bank, service,
district or other instrumentality of any governmental entity or other entity exercising executive,
legislative, judicial, taxing, regulatory, fiscal, monetary or administrative powers or functions of or
pertaining to government, or any arbitrator, mediator or other person with authority to bind a party at
law.

“Gross Up Rate” means an interest rate equal to 6%.

“Hazardous Substance” means any substance that shall, at any time, be listed as “hazardous”
or “toxic” in any Applicable Environmental Law or that has been or shall be determined at any time
by any agency or court to be a hazardous or toxic substance regulated under Applicable
Environmental Laws; and also means, without limitation, raw materials, building components, the
products of any manufacturing, or other activities on the Property, wastes, petroleum, and source,
special nuclear, or by-product material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended
(42 USC Sections 3011 et seq.).

“Lease Agreement” means this Lease Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2021, between
the Corporation and the District, as amended and supplemented hereafter.

“Lease Payment Date” means the annual payments on September __ in each year,
commencing September , 2022, and continuing to and including the date on which the Lease
Payments are paid in full.

“Lease Payments” means all payments required to be paid by the District under Section 4.3,
including any prepayment thereof under Section 9.1 or 9.2.

“Material Adverse Effect” means an event or occurrence which adversely affects in a
material manner (a) the assets, liabilities, condition (financial or otherwise), business, facilities or
operations of the District, (b) the ability of the District to carry out its business in the manner
conducted as of the date of this Lease Agreement or to meet or perform its obligations under this
Lease Agreement on a timely basis, (c) the validity or enforceability of this Lease Agreement, or (d)
the exclusion of the interest component of the Lease Payments from gross income for federal income
tax purposes or the exemption of such interest for state income tax purposes.

“Material Litigation” means any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation against the
District in any court or before any arbitrator of any kind or before or by any Governmental Authority
which, (i) if determined adversely to the District, may have a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) seeks to
restrain or enjoin any of the transactions contemplated by this Lease Agreement, or (iii) may
adversely affect (A) the exclusion of the interest component of the Lease Payments from gross
income for federal income tax purposes or the exemption of such interest for state income tax
purposes or (B) the ability of the District to perform its obligations under this Lease Agreement.



“Net Proceeds” means any insurance or eminent domain award (including any proceeds of
sale to a governmental entity under threat of the exercise of eminent domain powers), paid with
respect to the Property, to the extent remaining after payment therefrom of all expenses incurred in
the collection thereof.

“Permitted Encumbrances” means, as of any time: (a) liens for general ad valorem taxes and
assessments, if any, not then delinquent, or which the District may permit to remain unpaid under
Article VI of this Lease Agreement; (b) the Site Lease, this Lease Agreement and the Assignment
Agreement; (c) any right or claim of any mechanic, laborer, materialman, supplier or vendor not filed
or perfected in the manner prescribed by law; (d) the exceptions disclosed in the title insurance
policy issued with respect to the Property issued as of the Closing Date; and (€) any easements, rights
of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, reservations, covenants, conditions or
restrictions which exist of record and which the District certifies in writing will not materially impair
the use of the Property for its intended purposes.

“Property” means, collectively, the Site and the Facility.

“Rental Period” means each period during the Term of the Lease commencing on and

including September in each year and extending to and including the next succeeding
September . The first Rental Period begins on the Closing Date and ends on September__,
2022.

“Site” means that certain real property more particularly described in Exhibit A to the Site
Lease and in Exhibit A to the Lease Agreement.

“Site Lease” means the Site Lease, dated as of September 1, 2021, between the District, as
lessor, and the Corporation, as lessee, together with any duly authorized and executed amendments
thereto.

“State” means the State of California.

“Tax Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as in effect on the Closing Date or
(except as otherwise referenced herein) as it may be amended to apply to obligations issued on the
Closing Date, together with applicable proposed, temporary and final regulations promulgated, and
applicable official public guidance published, under the Tax Code.

“Term of this Lease Agreement” or “Term” means the time during which this Lease
Agreement is in effect, as provided in Section 4.2.

Section 1.2.  Interpretation.

(a) Unless the context otherwise indicates, words expressed in the singular
include the plural and vice versa and the use of the neuter, masculine, or feminine gender is for
convenience only and include the neuter, masculine or feminine gender, as appropriate.

(b) Headings of articles and sections herein and the table of contents hereof are
solely for convenience of reference, do not constitute a part hereof and do not affect the meaning,
construction or effect hereof.



(©) All references herein to “Articles,” “Sections” and other subdivisions are to
the corresponding Articles, Sections or subdivisions of this Lease Agreement; the words “herein,”
“hereof,” “hereby,” “hereunder” and other words of similar import refer to this Lease Agreement as a
whole and not to any particular Article, Section or subdivision hereof.

ARTICLE II
COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section2.1.  Covenants. Representations and Warranties of the District. The District
makes the following covenants, representations and warranties to the Corporation and the Assignee
as of the date of the execution and delivery of this Lease Agreement:

(a) Due Organization and Existence. The District is a community services
district, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State, has full legal right, power
and authority under the laws of the State to enter into the Site Lease and this Lease Agreement and to
carry out and consummate all transactions on its part contemplated hereby and thereby, and by
proper action the District has duly authorized the execution and delivery by the District of the Site
Lease and this Lease Agreement.

(b) Due Execution. The representative of the District executing the Site Lease
and this Lease Agreement has been fully authorized to execute the same by a resolution duly adopted
by the Board of Directors of the District.

() Valid, Binding and Enforceable Obligations. The Site Lease and this Lease
Agreement have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the District and constitute the legal,
valid and binding agreements of the District enforceable against the District in accordance with their
respective terms.

(d) No Conflicts. The execution and delivery of the Site Lease and this Lease
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions therein and herein contemplated and the fulfillment
of or compliance with the terms and conditions thereof and hereof, do not and will not conflict with
or constitute a material violation or breach of or default (with due notice or the passage of time or
both) under any applicable law or administrative rule or regulation, or any applicable court or
administrative decree or order, or any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, lease, contract or other
agreement or instrument to which the District is a party or by which it or its properties are otherwise
subject or bound, or result in the creation or imposition of any prohibited lien, charge or
encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of the District, which
conflict, violation, breach, default, lien, charge or encumbrance would have consequences that would
materially and adversely affect the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Site Lease
or this Lease Agreement or the financial condition, assets, properties or operations of the District.

(e) Consents and Approvals. No consent or approval of any trustee or holder of
any indebtedness of the District or of the voters of the District, and no consent, permission,
authorization, order or license of, or filing or registration with, any Governmental Authority is
necessary in connection with the execution and delivery of the Site Lease and this Lease Agreement,
or the consummation of any transaction therein and herein contemplated, except as have been
obtained or made and as are in full force and effect.



® No Litigation. To the best knowledge of the District, there is no action, suit,
proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court or federal, state, municipal or other
Governmental Authority pending and notice of which has been served on the District or, to the
knowledge of the District after reasonable investigation, threatened against or affecting the District or
the assets, properties or operations of the District which, if determined adversely to the District or its
interests, would have a Material Adverse Effect upon the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by or the validity of the Site Lease and this Lease Agreement or upon the financial
condition, assets, properties or operations of the District, and the District is not in default with respect
to any order or decree of any court or any order, regulation or demand of any federal, state, municipal
or other Governmental Authority, which default might have consequences that would materially and
adversely affect the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Lease Agreement, or the
financial condition, assets, properties or operations of the District.

(2 Sufficient Funds. The District reasonably believes that sufficient funds can be
obtained to make all Lease Payments and all other amounts required to be paid pursuant to this Lease
Agreement.

(h) No Defaults. The District has never non-appropriated or materially defaulted
under any of its payment or performance obligations or covenants, either under any financing lease
of the same general nature as this Lease Agreement, or under any of its bonds, notes, or other debt
obligations.

(1) Fee Title. The District is the owner in fee of title to the Property. No lien or
encumbrance on the Property materially impairs the District’s use of the Property for the purposes for
which it is, or may reasonably be expected to be, held.

) Use of the Property. During the term of this Lease Agreement, the Property
will be used by the District only for the purpose of performing one or more governmental or
proprietary functions of the District consistent with the permissible scope of the District’s authority

(k) Change in Financial Condition. The District has experienced no material
change in its financial condition since June 30, 2020.

1)) Flooding Risk. The Property is not located in a flood hazard area and has
never been subject to material damage from flooding.

(m)  Value of Property. The value of the Property (insurance and/or assessed
value) as improved by the Project is not less than $3,020,000.00.

(n) Essential to District Operations. The Property is essential to the District’s
efficient and economic operations and the lease thereof for use by the District is in the best interest of
the District.

(o) Financial Statements. The statement of financial position of the District as of
June 30, 2020 and the related statement of activities and statement of cash flows and changes in
financial position for the year then ended and the auditors’ reports with respect thereto, copies of
which have heretofore been furnished to the Assignee, are complete and correct and fairly present the
financial condition, changes in financial position and results of operations of the District at such date
and for such period, and were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.



Since the period of such statements, there has been no (i) change which would have a Material
Adverse Effect, and (ii) no material increase in the indebtedness of the District.

(p) Compliance with Seismic Building Code Requirements. To the best
knowledge of the District, and without independent investigation, the improvements on the Property
were built in compliance with seismic building code requirements of the State of California at the
time such improvements were constructed.

@ No Material Adverse Change. Since the most current date of the information,
financial or otherwise, supplied by the District to the Assignee:

(i) There has been no change in the assets, liabilities, financial position
or results of operations of the District which might reasonably be anticipated to cause a
Material Adverse Effect.

(i1) The District has not incurred any obligations or liabilities which
might reasonably be anticipated to cause a Material Adverse Effect.

(ili)  The District has not (A) incurred any material indebtedness on, or
lease obligations payable from, its general fund, other than the Lease Payments, and trade
accounts payable arising in the ordinary course of the District’s business and not past due, or
(B) guaranteed the indebtedness of any other person.

(r) Accuracy of Information. All information, reports and other papers and data
furnished by the District to the Assignee were, at the time the same were so furnished, complete and
accurate in all material respects and insofar as necessary to give the Assignee a true and accurate
knowledge of the subject matter and were provided in expectation of the Assignee’s reliance thereon
in entering into the transactions contemplated by this Lease Agreement. No fact is known to the
District which has had or, so far as the District can now reasonably foresee, may in the future have a
Material Adverse Effect, which has not been set forth in the financial statements previously furnished
to the Assignee or in other such information, reports, papers and data or otherwise disclosed in
writing to the Assignee prior to the Closing Date. Any financial, budget and other projections
furnished to the Assignee by the District or its or their agents were prepared in good faith on the basis
of the assumptions stated therein, which assumptions were fair and reasonable in light of the
conditions existing at the time of delivery of such financial, budget or other projections, and
represented, and as of the date of this representation, represent the District’s best estimate of its
future financial performance. No document furnished nor any representation, warranty or other
written statement made to the Assignee in connection with the negotiation, preparation or execution
of this Lease Agreement contains or will contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omits or
will omit to state (as of the date made or furnished) any material fact necessary in order to make the
statements contained herein or therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were or will be

made, not misleading.

(s) Hazardous Substances. The Property is free of all Hazardous Substances
(other than substances used in the operation of the Facility), and the District is in full compliance
with all Applicable Environmental Laws.

(t) No Financial Advisory or Fiduciary Relationship. The District represents,
warrants and covenants that: (i) the transaction contemplated herein and in the Assignment



Agreement is an arm’s length commercial transaction among the District, the Corporation and the
Assignee and its affiliates, (ii) in connection with such transaction, the Assignee and its affiliates are
acting solely as a principal and not as an advisor including, without limitation, a “Municipal
Advisor” as such term is defined in Section 15B of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and the related final rules (the “Municipal Advisor Rules™), agent or a fiduciary of the
District, (iii) the Assignee and its affiliates are relying on the bank exemption in the Municipal
Advisor Rules, (iv) the Assignee and its affiliates have not provided any advice or assumed any
advisory or fiduciary responsibility in favor of the District with respect to the transaction
contemplated hereby or by the Assignment Agreement and the discussions, undertakings and
procedures leading thereto (whether or not the Assignee, or any affiliate of the Assignee, has
provided other services or advised, or is currently providing other services or advising the District on
other matters), (v) the Assignee and its affiliates have financial and other interests that differ from
those of the District, and (vi) the District has consulted with their own financial, legal, accounting,
tax and other advisors, as applicable, to the extent it deemed appropriate.

Section 2.2.  Covenants. Representations and Warranties of the Corporation. The
Corporation makes the following covenants, representations and warranties to the District and
Assignee as of the date of the execution and delivery of this Lease Agreement:

(a) Due Organization and Existence. The Corporation is a non-profit public
benefit corporation, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State, has full legal right,
power and authority to enter into the Site Lease, this Lease Agreement and the Assignment
Agreement and to carry out and consummate all transactions on its part contemplated hereby and
thereby, and by proper action the Corporation has duly authorized the execution and delivery by the
Corporation of the Site Lease, this Lease Agreement and the Assignment Agreement.

(b) Due Execution. The representative of the Corporation executing the Site
Lease, this Lease Agreement and the Assignment Agreement is fully authorized to execute the same
under official action taken by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

(c) Valid, Binding and Enforceable Obligations. The Site Lease, this Lease
Agreement and the Assignment Agreement have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the
Corporation and constitute the legal, valid and binding agreements of the Corporation, enforceable
against the Corporation in accordance with their respective terms.

(d No Conflicts. The execution and delivery of the Site Lease, this Lease
Agreement and the Assignment Agreement, the consummation of the transactions herein and therein
contemplated and the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof and thereof,
do not and will not conflict with or constitute a material violation or breach of or default (with due
notice or the passage of time or both) under any applicable law or administrative rule or regulation,
or any applicable court or administrative decree or order, or any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust,
lease, contract or other agreement or instrument to which the Corporation is a party or by which it or
its properties are otherwise subject or bound, or result in the creation or imposition of any prohibited
lien, charge or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of the
Corporation, which conflict, violation, breach, default, lien, charge or encumbrance would have
consequences that would materially and adversely affect the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by the Site Lease, this Lease Agreement and the Assignment Agreement or the
financial condition, assets, properties or operations of the Corporation.



(e) Consents and Approvals. No consent or approval of any trustee or holder of
any indebtedness of the Corporation, and no consent, permission, authorization, order or license of,
or filing or registration with, any Governmental Authority is necessary in connection with the
execution and delivery of the Site Lease, this Lease Agreement or the Assignment Agreement, or the
consummation of any transaction herein or therein contemplated, except as have been obtained or
made and as are in full force and effect.

® No Litigation. To the best knowledge of the Corporation, there is no action,
suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court or federal, state, municipal or other
Governmental Authority pending and notice of which has been served on the Corporation or, to the
knowledge of the Corporation after reasonable investigation, threatened against or affecting the
Corporation or the assets, properties or operations of the Corporation which, if determined adversely
to the Corporation or its interests, would have a material and adverse effect upon the consummation
of the transactions contemplated by or the validity of the Site Lease, this Lease Agreement or the
Assignment Agreement, or upon the financial condition, assets, properties or operations of the
Corporation, and the Corporation is not in default with respect to any order or decree of any court or
any order, regulation or demand of any federal, state, municipal or other Governmental Authority,
which default might have consequences that would materially and adversely affect the consummation
of the transactions contemplated by the Site Lease, this Lease Agreement or the Assignment
Agreement or the financial condition, assets, properties or operations of the Corporation.

(g) Continued Existence of the Corporation. The Corporation will take or cause
to be taken all actions reasonably necessary to continue its existence until such time as the Lease
Payments have been paid in full.

(h) Municipal Advisor Rules. The Corporation is not acting as an advisor to the
District, including, without limitation, as a “Municipal Advisor” as such term is defined in the
Municipal Advisor Rules, or an agent or a fiduciary of the District and the Corporation has not
provided any advice or assumed any advisory or fiduciary responsibility in favor of the District with
respect to the transaction contemplated hereby or by the Site Lease and the discussions, undertakings
and procedures leading thereto.

ARTICLE III
DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Section 3.1.  Deposit of and Application of Funds. The amount of $3,020,000.00 shall be
derived from amounts paid by the Assignee under the Assignment Agreement. On the Closing Date,
the Assignee shall cause the amount of $3,000,000.00 to be transferred to the US Bank National
Association pursuant to the Project Fund Agreement among the District, the Corporation and the
Custodian, to pay the costs of the Project. On the Closing Date, the Assignee shall transfer the sum in
the amount of $20,000.00 to the Corporation to pay Costs of Issuance of this Lease Agreement.

ARTICLE IV
LEASE OF PROPERTY; LEASE PAYMENTS

Section 4.1.  Lease of Property by the Corporation Back to the District.

10



(a) The Corporation hereby leases the Property to the District, and the District
hereby and pursuant to the Site Lease, leases the Property from the Corporation, upon the terms and
conditions set forth in this Lease Agreement and the Site Lease, respectively.

(b) The leasing of the Property by the District to the Corporation pursuant to the
Site Lease shall not affect or result in a merger of the District’s leasehold estate pursuant to this
Lease Agreement and its fee estate as lessor under the Site Lease. This Lease Agreement shall
constitute a sublease with respect to the Property. The leasehold interest in the Property granted by
the District to the Corporation pursuant to the Site Lease is and shall be independent of this Lease
Agreement; this Lease Agreement shall not be an assignment or surrender of the leasehold interest in
the Property granted to the Corporation under the Site Lease.

Section4.2. Term. The Term of this Lease Agreement commences on the Closing Date
and ends on September , 2041, or the date on which all of the Lease Payments have been paid in
full. If on September _ , 2041, the Lease Payments payable hereunder shall have been abated at
any time and for any reason and not otherwise paid from rental interruption insurance or other
sources, or the District shall have defaulted in its payment of Lease Payments hereunder or any Event
of Default has occurred and continues without cure by the District, then the term of this Lease
Agreement shall be extended for the actual period of abatement or for so long as the default remains
uncured, as necessary to accommodate the final payment of all Lease Payments due hereunder, not to
exceed seven (7) years. The provisions of this Section 4.2 are subject to the provisions of Section 6.1
relating to the taking in eminent domain of the Property or any portion thereof.

Section 4.3.  Lease Pavments.

(a) Obligation to Pay. Subject to the provisions of Sections 6.1 and 6.3 and the
provisions of Article IX, the District agrees to pay to the Corporation, its successors and assigns, the
Lease Payments (denominated into components of principal and interest) in the amounts specified in
Exhibit B attached hereto (including any supplements thereto) and by this reference incorporated
herein, to be due and payable in immediately available funds on each of the respective Lease
Payment Dates specified in Exhibit B. The Lease Payments payable in any Rental Period with
respect to the Property shall be for the use of the Property during such Rental Period. The interest
component of the portion of the Lease Payments has been calculated based on a tax-exempt interest
rate of 3.15% per annum, on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. In the event the
District does not make any Lease Payment by the applicable Lease Payment Date, the interest
component of the portion of the Lease Payment shall be calculated based on the Default Rate.

(b) Additional Payments. In addition to the Lease Payments set forth herein, the
District agrees to pay as Additional Payments all of the following:

(i) all taxes and assessments of any nature whatsoever, including but not
limited to excise taxes, ad valorem taxes, ad valorem and specific lien special assessments
and gross receipts taxes, if any, levied upon the Property or upon any interest of the
Corporation therein or in this Lease Agreement; provided, however, the District may, at the
District’s expense and in its name, in good faith contest any such taxes and assessments and,
in the event of such contest, may permit such taxes and assessments to remain unpaid during
the period of such contest and appeal therefrom unless the Corporation shall notify the
District that, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, by nonpayment of any such items, the interest
of the Corporation in the Property will be materially endangered or the Property, or any

11



portion thereof, will be subject to loss or forfeiture, in which event the District shall promptly
pay such taxes and assessments or provide the Corporation with full security against any loss
which may result from nonpayment, in form satisfactory to the Corporation;

(ii) insurance premiums, if any, on all insurance required under the
provisions of Article V hereof;

(ili) any amounts required to be paid as rebate to the United States
pursuant to the Tax Certificate; and

(iv)  upon the occurrence of a Determination of Taxability with respect to
this Lease Agreement, the District shall, with respect to future Lease Payments, make
Additional Payments resulting from the application of the Gross Up Rate thereto directly to
the Corporation equal to the difference between the interest component of the Lease
Payments calculated at the interest rate provided in this Lease Agreement and the interest
component of the Lease Payments calculated at the Gross Up Rate; provided, however, in no
event shall the total of the Lease Payments and the aggregate Additional Payments under this
Section 4.3(b)(v) for any Fiscal Year exceed the annual fair rental value of the Property. In
addition, the District shall make immediately upon demand of the Corporation an Additional
Payment to the Corporation sufficient to indemnify the Corporation for any prior Lease
Payments determined to be taxable as a consequence of a Determination of Taxability such
that the taxable prior Lease Payments will be calculated at the Gross Up Rate instead of the
interest rate set forth in this Lease Agreement; provided, however, in no event shall the total
of the Lease Payments and the aggregate Additional Payments under this Section 4.3(b)(v)
for any Fiscal Year exceed the annual fair rental value of the Property. To the extent that all
such Additional Payments have not been paid to the Corporation at the end of the term of the
Lease Agreement, the Term shall be extended in accordance with Section 4.2 hereof.

Amounts constituting Additional Payments payable hereunder shall be paid by the District
directly to the person or persons to whom such amounts shall be payable. The District shall pay all
such amounts when due or at such later time as such amounts may be paid without penalty or, in any
other case, within 30 days after notice in writing from the Corporation to the District stating the
amount of Additional Payments then due and payable and the purpose thereof.

(©) Effect of Prepayment. If the District prepays all Lease Payments in full under
Section 9.1 or 9.2, the District’s obligations under this Section will thereupon cease and terminate. If
the District prepays the Lease Payments in part but not in whole under Section 9.1, or 9.2, the
principal components of the remaining Lease Payments will be reduced on a pro rata basis; and the
interest component of each remaining Lease Payment will be reduced on a pro rata basis.

(d) Rate on Overdue Payments. If the District fails to make any of the payments
required in this Section 4.3, the payment in default will continue as an obligation of the District until
the amount in default has been fully paid, and the District agrees to pay the same with interest
thereon, from the date of default to the date of payment at the Default Rate per annum.

(e) Fair Rental Value. The Lease Payments coming due and payable during each
Rental Period constitute the total rental for the Property for such Rental Period, and will be paid by
the District in each Rental Period for and in consideration of the right of the use and occupancy of,
and the continued quiet use and enjoyment of the Property during each Rental Period. The parties

12



hereto have agreed and determined that the total Lease Payments due during each Rental Period are
not in excess of the fair rental value of the Property during such Rental Periods. In making this
determination, consideration has been given to the estimated fair market value of the Property, the
estimated replacement cost of the Property, the uses and purposes which may be served by the
Property and the benefits therefrom which will accrue to the District and the general public.

§3) Source of Payments; Budget and Appropriation. The Lease Payments and
Additional Payments are payable from any source of legally available funds of the District, subject to
the provisions of Sections 6.1 and 6.3. The District covenants to take such action as may be
necessary to include all Lease Payments and Additional Payments in each of its annual budgets
during the Term of this Lease Agreement and to make the necessary annual appropriations for all
such Lease Payments and Additional Payments. The covenants on the part of the District herein
contained constitute duties imposed by law and it is the duty of officials of the District vested with
the authority to execute the terms of this Lease Agreement to take such action and do such things as
are required by law in the performance of the official duty of such officials to enable the District to
carry out and perform the covenants and agreements in this Lease Agreement agreed to be carried out
and performed by the District.

(g) Allocation of Lease Payments. All Lease Payments received shall be applied
first to the interest components of the Lease Payments due hereunder, then to the principal
components of the Lease Payments due hereunder, but no such application of any payments that are
less than the total rental due and owing shall be deemed a waiver of any default hereunder.

(h) No Offsets. Notwithstanding any dispute between the Corporation, or
Assignee as the Corporation’s assignee, and the District, the District shall make all Lease Payments
when due without deduction or offset of any kind and shall not withhold any Lease Payments
pending the final resolution of such dispute.

(1) Assignment Agreement. The District understands and agrees that all Lease
Payments have been assigned by the Corporation to the Assignee under the Assignment Agreement
executed concurrently herewith, and the District hereby consents to such assignment. The
Corporation hereby directs the District, and the District hereby agrees, to pay to the Assignee (or to
its assignees as directed pursuant to Section 7.4 hereof) all payments payable by the District under
this Section 4.3 and all amounts payable by the District under Article IX. Lease Payments shall be
paid to the Assignee in accordance with wire instructions provided by the Assignee from time to

time.

Section4.4.  Quiet Enjoyment. Throughout the Term of this Lease Agreement, the
Corporation will provide the District with quiet use and enjoyment of the Property and the District
will peaceably and quietly have and hold and enjoy the Property, without suit, trouble or hindrance
from the Corporation, except as expressly set forth in this Lease Agreement. The Corporation will, at
the request of the District and at the District’s cost, join in any legal action in which the District
asserts its right to such possession and enjoyment to the extent the Corporation may lawfully do so.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation and the Assignee have the right to inspect the
Property as provided in Sections 5.13(c) and 7.2.

Section 4.5.  Title. At all times during the Term of this Lease Agreement, the District shall
hold title to the Property, including all additions which comprise fixtures, repairs, replacements or

13



modifications thereto, subject to Permitted Encumbrances and subject to the provisions of Section
7.2.

Upon the termination of this Lease Agreement (other than under Section 8.2(b) hereof), all
right, title and interest of the Corporation in and to the Property shall be transferred to and vested in
the District. Upon the payment in full of all Lease Payments allocable to the Property, or upon the
deposit by the District of security for such Lease Payments as provided in Section 9.3, all right, title
and interest of the Corporation in and to the Property shall be transferred to and vested in the District.
The Corporation agrees to take any and all steps and execute and record any and all documents
reasonably required by the District to consummate any such transfer.

Section 4.6.  Release of Excess Property. The District may, at any time and from time to
time, release any portion of the Property (the “Released Property”) from the Lease, with the prior
written consent of the Assignee, which consent shall be at the Assignee’s sole discretion, and upon
satisfaction of all of the following requirements which are conditions precedent to such release:

(a) The District shall certify to the Corporation and the Assignee that no Event of
Default has occurred and is continuing, and no event giving rise to an abatement of Lease Payments
under Section 6.3 has occurred or is continuing with respect to the Property to be remaining
following release of the Released Property;

(b) The District shall file with the Corporation and the Assignee, and cause to be
recorded in the office of the San Luis Obispo County Recorder, an amendment to this Lease
Agreement which deletes the Released Property from the description of the Property;

(©) The District shall file with the Corporation and the Assignee a written
certificate of the District stating the District’s determination that the estimated value of the real
property which will remain leased under this Lease Agreement following such release is at least
equal to the original principal components of the Lease Payments and upon request of the Assignee,
the District shall provide to the Assignee additional information and documents to evidence the value
of the remaining portion of the Property;

(d) The District shall file with the Corporation and the Assignee a written
certificate of the District stating the District’s determination that the estimated fair rental value, for
each remaining Rental Period and in the aggregate, of the Property remaining after release of the
Released Property is at least equal to the remaining Lease Payments for each remaining Rental
Period and in the aggregate;

(e) The District shall furnish the Corporation and the Assignee with a written
opinion of Bond Counsel stating that the release of the Released Property does not cause the interest
components of the Lease Payments to become includable in gross income for purposes of federal
income taxation or to become subject to personal income taxation by the State; and

H The District shall file with the Corporation and the Assignee such other
information, documents and instruments as the Corporation or the Assignee shall reasonably request,
including (if requested by the Assignee) evidence of the insurable value of the Property to be
remaining following release of the Released Property, indicating that such value is in excess of the
then unpaid principal component of the Lease Payments and such endorsements to the title policy
delivered on the Closing Date.

14



Upon the satisfaction of all such conditions precedent, the Term of this Lease Agreement will
thereupon end as to the Released Property. The District is not entitled to any reduction, diminution,
extension or other modification of the Lease Payments whatsoever as a result of such release. The
Corporation and the District shall execute, deliver and cause to be recorded all documents required to
discharge this Lease Agreement of record against the Released Property.

Section 4.7.  Substitution of Property. (a) In the event of damage or destruction of the
Property due to earthquake or other uninsured casualty for which rental interruption insurance is not
available or in the event that following the condemnation of all or a portion of the Property the fair
rental value of the Property remaining after such condemnation is less than the remaining Lease
Payments due under this Lease Agreement, the District shall substitute under the Site Lease and this
Lease Agreement one or more parcels of unimpaired and unencumbered real property, the fair rental
value of which, for each remaining Rental Period and in the aggregate, shall be at least equal to the
remaining unpaid principal components of the Lease Payments hereunder.

(b) If for any reason the District is unable to so substitute real property for the
Property with a fair rental value at least equal to the remaining unpaid principal components of the
Lease Payments hereunder, the District shall use its best efforts to obtain other financing in an
amount necessary to prepay the principal component of the Lease Payments not supported by the fair
rental value of the substituted property, if any.

() The District, with Assignee’s prior written consent, which consent shall be at
the Assignee’s sole discretion, has the option at any time and from time to time, to substitute other
real property (the “Substitute Property”) for the Property or any portion thereof (the “Former
Property”), upon satisfaction of all of the following requirements which are hereby declared to be
conditions precedent to such substitution:

(1) No Event of Default has occurred and is continuing.

(ii) The District has filed with the Corporation and the Assignee, and
caused to be recorded in the office of the San Luis Obispo County Recorder sufficient
memorialization of an amendment hereof which adds the legal description of the Substitute
Property to Exhibit A and deletes therefrom the legal description of the Former Property.

(iii)  The District has obtained an ALTA policy of title insurance insuring
the District’s leasehold estate hereunder in the Substitute Property, subject only to Permitted
Encumbrances, in an amount at least equal to the remaining Lease Payments.

(iv)  The District has certified in writing to the Corporation and the
Assignee that the Substitute Property serves the public purposes of the District and
constitutes property which the District is permitted to lease under the laws of the State of
California, and has been determined to be essential to the proper, efficient and economic
operation of the District and to serve an essential governmental function of the District.

V) The Substitute Property does not cause the District to violate any of
its covenants, representations and warranties made herein.

(vi)  The District has filed with the Corporation and the Assignee a written
certificate of the District or other written evidence stating that (i) the value of the Property

15



after such substitution is at least equal to the remaining unpaid principal components of the
Lease Payments, (ii) the fair rental of the Property after such substitution is at least equal to
the Lease Payments thereafter coming due and payable, and (iii) the useful life of the
Substitute Property at least extends to September ____, 2041.

(vii) The District shall furnish the Corporation and the Assignee with a
written opinion of Bond Counsel stating that the Substitute Property does not cause the
interest components of the Lease Payments to become includable in gross income for
purposes of federal income taxation or to become subject to personal income taxation by the

State.

Upon the satisfaction of all such conditions precedent, the Term of this Lease Agreement will
thereupon end as to the Former Property and commence as to the Substitute Property, and all
references to the Former Property will apply with full force and effect to the Substitute Property.
The District is not entitled to any reduction, diminution, extension or other modification of the Lease
Payments whatsoever as a result of any substitution of property under this Section. The Corporation
and the District will execute, deliver and cause to be recorded all documents required to discharge the
Site Lease, this Lease Agreement and the Assignment Agreement of record against the Former
Property and to cause the Substitute Property to become subject to all of the terms and conditions of
the Site Lease, this Lease Agreement and the Assignment Agreement.

ARTICLE V
MAINTENANCE; TAXES; INSURANCE; AND OTHER MATTERS

Section 5.1.  Maintenance, Utilities. Taxes and Assessments. Throughout the Term of this
Lease Agreement, as part of the consideration for the rental of the Property, all improvement, repair
and maintenance of the Property are the sole responsibility of the District and the District will
maintain the Property in good condition. The District will pay for or otherwise arrange for the
payment of all utility services supplied to the Property, which may include, without limitation, janitor
service, security, power, gas, telephone, light, heating, water and all other utility services, and shall
pay for or otherwise arrange for the payment of the cost of the repair and replacement of the Property
resulting from ordinary wear and tear or want of care on the part of the District or any assignee or
sublessee thereof. In exchange for the Lease Payments herein provided, the Corporation agrees to
provide only the Property, as hereinbefore more specifically set forth. The District waives the
benefits of subsections 1 and 2 of Section 1932, Section 1933(4) and Sections 1941 and 1942 of the
California Civil Code, but such waiver does not limit any of the rights of the District under the terms
of this Lease Agreement.

The District will pay or cause to be paid all taxes and assessments of any type or nature, if
any, charged to the Corporation or the District affecting the Property or the respective interests or
estates therein; provided that with respect to special assessments or other governmental charges that
may lawfully be paid in installments over a period of years, the District is obligated to pay only such
installments as are required to be paid during the Term of this Lease Agreement as and when the
same become due.

The District may, at the District’s expense and in its name, in good faith contest any such
taxes, assessments, utility and other charges and, in the event of any such contest, may permit the
taxes, assessments or other charges so contested to remain unpaid during the period of such contest
and any appeal therefrom unless the Corporation shall notify the District that, in its reasonable

16



opinion, by nonpayment of any such items the interest of the Corporation in the Property will be
materially endangered or the Property or any part thereof will be subject to loss or forfeiture, in
which event the District will promptly pay such taxes, assessments or charges or provide the
Corporation with full security against any loss which may result from nonpayment, in form
satisfactory to the Corporation. The District shall promptly notify the Assignee of any tax,
assessment, utility or other charge it elects to contest.

Section 5.2. Modification of Property. The District has the right, at its own expense, to
make additions, modifications and improvements to the Property or any portion thereof. All
additions, modifications and improvements to the Property will thereafter comprise part of the
Property and become subject to the provisions of this Lease Agreement. Such additions,
modifications and improvements may not in any way damage the Property, prevent the District’s
beneficial use of the property, or cause the Property to be used for purposes other than those
authorized under the provisions of state and federal law; and the Property, upon completion of any
additions, modifications and improvements made thereto under this Section, must be of a value
which is not substantially less than the value thereof immediately prior to the making of such
additions, modifications and improvements.

Section 5.3. Commercial General Liability Insurance. The District shall maintain or cause
to be maintained throughout the Term of this Lease Agreement a standard commercial general
lability insurance policy or policies in protection of the District, the Assignee and their respective
members, officers, agents, employees and assigns, and shall name the Assignee as an additional
insured. Said policy or policies shall provide for indemnification of said parties against direct or
contingent loss or liability for damages for bodily and personal injury, death or property damage
occasioned by reason of the operation of the Property. Such policy or policies must provide coverage
with limits and subject to such deductibles as the District shall deem adequate and prudent, and in all
events in form and amount (including any deductibles) satisfactory to the Assignee. Such insurance
may be maintained as part of or in conjunction with any other insurance coverage carried by the
District (including, with Assignee’s prior written consent, a self-insurance program), and may be
maintained in whole or in part in the form of the participation by the District in a joint powers
authority or other program providing pooled insurance. The District will apply the proceeds of such
liability insurance toward extinguishment or satisfaction of the liability with respect to which such
proceeds have been paid.

Section 5.4.  Casualty Insurance. The District will procure and maintain, or cause to be
procured and maintained, throughout the Term of this Lease Agreement, casualty insurance against
loss or damage to all buildings situated on the Property and owned by the District, in an amount at
Jeast equal to the greater of the replacement value of the insured buildings and the aggregate
principal amount of the Lease Payments outstanding, with a lender’s loss payable endorsement in
favor of the Assignee. Such insurance must, as nearly as practicable, cover loss or damage by all
“special form” perils. Earthquake insurance shall only be carried if available from reputable insurers
at a reasonable cost as determined by the District Manager of the District. Such insurance shall be
subject to a deductible of not to exceed $1,000. Such insurance may be maintained as part of or in
conjunction with any other insurance coverage carried by the District (including, with the Assignee’s
prior written consent, a self-insurance program), and may be maintained in whole or in part in the
form of the participation by the District in a joint powers authority or other program providing
pooled insurance. The District will apply the Net Proceeds of such insurance as provided in Section
6.2.

17



Section 5.5.  Rental Interruption Insurance. The District will procure and maintain, or
cause to be procured and maintained, throughout the Term of this Lease Agreement, rental
interruption or use and occupancy insurance to cover loss, total or partial, of the use of the Property
and the improvements situated thereon as a result of any of the hazards covered in the insurance
required by Section 5.4, in an amount at least equal to the maximum Lease Payments coming due and
payable during any future 24 month period. Such insurance may be maintained as part of or in
conjunction with any other insurance coverage carried by the District, and may be maintained in
whole or in part in the form of the participation by the District in a joint powers authority or other
program providing pooled insurance; provided that such rental interruption insurance shall not be
self-insured by the District. The District will apply the Net Proceeds of such insurance towards the
payment of the Lease Payments allocable to the insured improvements as the same become due and

payable.

Section 5.6. Worker’s Compensation Insurance. If required by applicable California law,
the District shall carry worker’s compensation insurance covering all employees on, in, near or about
the Property and, upon request, shall furnish to the Corporation certificates evidencing such coverage
throughout the Term of this Lease Agreement. Such insurance may be maintained as part of or in
conjunction with any other insurance coverage carried by the District (including a self-insurance
program), and may be maintained in whole or in part in the form of the participation by the District
in a joint powers authority or other program providing pooled insurance.

Section 5.7.  Recordation Hereof: Title Insurance. On or before the Closing Date, the
District shall, at its expense, (a) cause this Lease Agreement, the Site Lease and the Assignment
Agreement, or a memorandum hereof or thereof in form and substance approved by Bond Counsel,
to be recorded in the office of the San Luis Obispo County Recorder with respect to the Property, and
(b) obtain a CLTA or ALTA title insurance policy insuring the Assignee’s interests in the leasehold
estate established under the Site Lease and hereunder in the Property, subject only to Permitted
Encumbrances, in an amount equal to the original principal components of the Lease Payments. The
District will apply the Net Proceeds of such insurance as provided in Section 6.2.

Section 5.8.  Insurance Net Proceeds: Form of Policies. All insurance policies (or riders)
required by this Article V and provided by third party insurance carriers shall be taken out and
maintained with responsible insurance companies organized under the laws of one of the states of the
United States and qualified to do business in the State, and shall contain a provision that the insurer
shall not cancel or revise coverage thereunder without giving written notice to the insured parties at
least ten days before the cancellation or revision becomes effective. Each insurance policy or rider
required by Sections 5.3, 5.4 and 5.5 and provided by third party insurance carriers shall name the
District and the Assignee as insured parties and the Assignee as loss payee and shall include a
lender’s loss payable endorsement for the benefit of the Assignee. In the case of coverage pursuant
to Section 5.3, the Corporation and the Assignee shall be added as additional insureds. Prior to the
Closing Date, the District will deposit with the Assignee policies (and riders and endorsements, if
applicable) evidencing any such insurance procured by it, or a certificate or certificates of the
respective insurers stating that such insurance is in full force and effect. Before the expiration of any
such policy (or rider), the District will furnish to the Assignee evidence that the policy has been
renewed or replaced by another policy conforming to the provisions of this Article V unless such
insurance is no longer obtainable, in which event the District shall notify the Assignee of such fact.

Section 5.9.  Installation of District’s Personal Property. The District may at any time and
from time to time, in its sole discretion and at its own expense, install or permit to be installed other

18



items of equipment or other personal property in or upon the Property. All such items shall remain
the sole property of the District, in which the Corporation has no interest, and may be modified or
removed by the District at any time. The District must repair and restore any and all damage to the
Property resulting from the installation, modification or removal of any such items. Nothing in this
Lease Agreement prevents the District from purchasing or leasing items to be installed under this
Section under a lease or conditional sale agreement, or subject to a vendor’s lien or security
agreement, as security for the unpaid portion of the purchase price thereof, provided that no such lien
or security interest may attach to any part of the Property.

Section 5.10. Liens. The District will not, directly or indirectly, create, incur, assume or
suffer to exist any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim on or with respect to the
Property, other than as herein contemplated and except for such encumbrances as the District
certifies in writing to the Assignee do not materially and adversely affect the leasehold estate in the
Property hereunder and for which the Assignee provides its prior written approval, which approval
shall be at Assignee’s sole discretion. Except as expressly provided in this Article V, the District will
promptly, at its own expense, take such action as may be necessary to duly discharge or remove any
such mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim, for which it is responsible, if the same
shall arise at any time. The District will reimburse the Assignee for any expense incurred by it in
order to discharge or remove any such mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim.

Section 5.11. Advances. If the District fails to perform any of its obligations under this
Article V, the Corporation may take such action as may be necessary to cure such failure, including
the advancement of money, and the District shall be obligated to repay all such advances as
additional rental hereunder, with interest at the rate set forth in Section 4.3(d).

Section 5.12. District Consent to Assignment Agreement. The Corporation’s rights under
this Lease Agreement (excluding the right to receive notices, the right to reimbursement of costs and
to indemnification), including the right to receive and enforce payment of the Lease Payments, and
the Site Lease, are being assigned to the Assignee pursuant to the Assignment Agreement. The
District hereby consents to such assignment and to any additional assignment of such rights by the
Assignee or its assignees. The District agrees to execute all documents, including notices of
assignment and chattel mortgages or financing statements, which may be reasonably requested by the
Assignee or its assignees to protect their interests in the Property and in this Lease Agreement.

Section 5.13. Environmental Covenants.

(a) Compliance with Laws; No Hazardous Substances. The District will comply
with all Applicable Environmental Laws with respect to the Property and will not use, store,
generate, treat, transport, or dispose of any Hazardous Substance thereon or in a manner that would
cause any Hazardous Substance to later flow, migrate, leak, leach, or otherwise come to rest on or in

the Property.

(b) Notification of Assignee. The District will transmit copies of all notices,
orders, or statements received from any governmental entity concerning violations or asserted
violations of Applicable Environmental Laws with respect to the Property and any operations
conducted thereon or any conditions existing thereon to the Assignee, and the District will notify the
Assignee in writing immediately of any release, discharge, spill, or deposit of any Hazardous
Substance that has occurred or is occurring that in any way affects or threatens to affect the Property,

19



or the people, structures, or other property thereon, provided that no such notification shall create any
liability or obligation on the part of the Assignee.

(c) Access for Inspection. The District will permit the Assignee, its agents, or
any experts designated by the Assignee to have full access to the Property during reasonable business
hours for purposes of such independent investigation of compliance with all Applicable
Environmental Laws, provided that the Assignee has no obligation to do so, or any liability for any
failure to do so, or any liability should it do so.

ARTICLE VI
EMINENT DOMAIN; USE OF NET PROCEEDS

Section 6.1.  Eminent Domain. If all of the Property shall be taken permanently under the
power of eminent domain or sold to a governmental entity threatening to exercise the power of
eminent domain, the Term of this Lease Agreement shall cease as of the day possession shall be so
taken. If less than all of the Property shall be taken permanently, or if all of the Property or any part
thereof shall be taken temporarily under the power of eminent domain, (1) this Lease Agreement
shall continue in full force and effect and shall not be terminated by virtue of such taking and the
parties waive the benefit of any law to the contrary, and (2) there shall be a partial abatement of
Lease Payments in an amount equal to the application of the Net Proceeds of any eminent domain
award to the prepayment of the Lease Payments hereunder, in an amount to be agreed upon by the
District and the Assignee such that the resulting Lease Payments represent fair consideration for the
use and occupancy of the remaining usable portion of the Property.

Section 6.2.  Application of Net Proceeds.

(a) From Insurance Award.

(1) Any Net Proceeds of insurance against damage to or destruction of
any part of the Property collected by the District in the event of any such damage or
destruction shall be deposited by the District promptly upon receipt thereof in a special fund
with the Assignee designated as the “Insurance and Condemnation Fund.”

(ii) Within ninety (90) days following the date of such deposit, the
District shall determine and notify the Corporation and the Assignee in writing of its
determination either (A) that the replacement, repair, restoration, modification or
improvement of the Property is not economically feasible or in the best interest of the District
and the Net Proceeds, together with other moneys available therefor, are sufficient to cause
the prepayment of the principal components of all unpaid Lease Payments pursuant to
Section 9.2 hereof, or (B) that all or a portion of such Net Proceeds are to be applied to the
prompt replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the damaged or
destroyed portions of the Property and the fair rental value of the Property following such
repair, restoration, replacement, modification or improvement will at least equal the unpaid
principal component of the Lease Payments.

(iii)  In the event the District’s determination is as set forth in clause (A) of
subparagraph (ii) above, such Net Proceeds shall be promptly applied to the prepayment of
the unpaid principal component of the Lease Payments and other amounts pursuant to
Section 9.2 of this Lease Agreement; provided, however, that in the event of damage or

20



destruction of the Property in full, such Net Proceeds may be so applied only if sufficient,
together with other moneys available therefor, to cause the prepayment of the principal
components of all unpaid Lease Payments, all accrued and unpaid interest, and all other costs
related to such prepayments pursuant to Section 9.2 of this Lease Agreement and otherwise
such Net Proceeds shall be applied to the prompt replacement, repair, restoration,
modification or improvement of the Property; provided further, however, that in the event of
damage or destruction of the Property in part, such Net Proceeds may be applied to the
prepayment of the unpaid principal component of the Lease Payments only if the resulting
Lease Payments following such prepayment from Net Proceeds represent fair consideration
for the remaining portions of the Property and otherwise such Net Proceeds shall be applied
to the prompt replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the Property,
evidenced by a certificate signed by a District Representative.

(iv)  In the event the District’s determination is as set forth in clause (B) of
subparagraph (ii) above, such Net Proceeds shall be applied to the prompt replacement,
repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the damaged or destroyed portions of the
Property by the District, and until the Property has been restored to its prior condition, the
District shall not place any lien or encumbrance on the Property that is senior to this Lease
Agreement without the prior written consent of the Assignee, at its sole discretion.

(b) From Eminent Domain Award. If all or any part of the Property shall be
taken by eminent domain proceedings (or sold to a government threatening to exercise the power of
eminent domain) the Net Proceeds therefrom shall be deposited by the District in the Insurance and
Condemnation Fund and shall be applied and disbursed as follows:

(1) If the District has given written notice to the Corporation and the
Assignee of its determination that (A) such eminent domain proceedings have not materially
affected the operation of the Property or the ability of the District to meet any of its
obligations with respect to the Property under this Lease Agreement, and (B) such proceeds
are not needed for repair or rehabilitation of the Property, the District shall so certify to the
Corporation and the Assignee, and the District shall credit such proceeds towards the
prepayment of the Lease Payments pursuant to Section 9.2 of this Lease Agreement.

(ii) If the District has given written notice to the Corporation and the
Assignee of its determination that (A) such eminent domain proceedings have not materially
affected the operation of the Property or the ability of the District to meet any of its
obligations with respect to the Property under this Lease Agreement, and (B) such proceeds
are needed for repair, rehabilitation or replacement of the Property, the District shall so
certify to the Corporation and the Assignee, and the District shall apply such amounts for
such repair or rehabilitation.

(iii)  If (A) less than all of the Property shall have been taken in such
eminent domain proceedings or sold to a government threatening the use of eminent domain
powers, and if the District has given written notice to the Corporation and the Assignee of its
determination that such eminent domain proceedings have materially affected the operation
of the Property or the ability of the District to meet any of its obligations with respect to the
Property under the Lease Agreement or (B) all of the Property shall have been taken in such
eminent domain proceedings, then the District shall credit such proceeds towards the
prepayment of the Lease Payments pursuant to Section 9.2 of this Lease Agreement.

21



(iv)  In making any determination under this Section 6.2(b), the District
may, but shall not be required to, obtain at its expense, the report of an independent engineer
or other independent professional consultant, a copy of which shall be filed with the
Corporation and the Assignee. Any such determination by the District shall be final.

() From Title Insurance. The Net Proceeds from a title insurance award shall be
deposited by the District in the Insurance and Condemnation Fund and credited towards the
prepayment of Lease Payments required to be paid pursuant to Section 9.2 of this Lease Agreement.

Section 6.3.  Abatement of Lease Payments in the Event of Damage or Destruction. Lease
Payments shall be abated during any period in which, by reason of damage or destruction, there is
substantial interference with the use and occupancy by the District of the Property or any portion
thereof to the extent to be agreed upon by the District and the Assignee. The parties agree that the
amounts of the Lease Payments under such circumstances shall not be less than the amounts of the
unpaid Lease Payments as are then set forth in Exhibit B, unless such unpaid amounts are determined
to be greater than the fair rental value of the portions of the Property not damaged or destroyed,
based upon an appropriate method of valuation, in which event the Lease Payments shall be abated
such that they represent said fair rental value. Such abatement shall continue for the period
commencing with such damage or destruction and ending with the substantial completion of the
work of repair or reconstruction as evidenced by a Certificate of a District Representative to the
Corporation and the Assignee. In the event of any such damage or destruction, this Lease Agreement
shall continue in full force and effect and the District waives any right to terminate this Lease
Agreement by virtue of any such damage and destruction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, there shall
be no abatement of Lease Payments under this Section 6.3 to the extent that (a) the proceeds of rental
interruption insurance, or (b) amounts in the Insurance and Condemnation Fund are available to pay
Lease Payments which would otherwise be abated under this Section 6.3, it being hereby declared
that such proceeds and amounts constitute special funds for the payment of the Lease Payments.

ARTICLE VII
OTHER COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT

Section 7.1.  Disclaimer of Warranties. THE CORPORATION MAKES NO
AGREEMENT, WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS
TO THE VALUE, DESIGN, CONDITION, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY
PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR FITNESS FOR THE USE CONTEMPLATED BY THE DISTRICT
OF THE PROPERTY OR ANY PORTION THEREOF, OR ANY OTHER REPRESENTATION
OR WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY OR ANY PORTION THEREOF. THE
DISTRICT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE DISTRICT LEASES THE PROPERTY AS-IS, IT
BEING AGREED THAT ALL OF THE AFOREMENTIONED RISKS ARE TO BE BORNE BY
THE DISTRICT. In no event is the Corporation liable for incidental, indirect, special or
consequential damages, in connection with or arising out of this Lease Agreement for the existence,
furnishing, functioning or use of the Property by the District.

Section 7.2.  Access to the Property: Grant and Conveyance of Right of Entry. The
District agrees that the Corporation, and the Corporation’s successors or assigns, has the right at all
reasonable times, following at least 48 hours written notice provided to the District, to enter upon and
to examine and inspect (to the extent permitted by law and public policy) the Property or any part
thereof. The District further agrees that the Corporation, and the Corporation’s successors or assigns
shall have such rights of access to the Property or any component thereof, following at least 48 hours

22



written notice provided to the District, as may be reasonably necessary to cause the proper
maintenance of the Property if the District fails to perform its obligations hereunder. Neither the
Corporation nor any of its assigns has any obligation to cause such proper maintenance.

The District further grants, conveys and confirms to the Corporation, for the use, benefit and
enjoyment of the Corporation, its successors in interest to the Property, including the Assignee, and
its sublessees, and their respective employees, invitees, agents, independent contractors, patrons,
customers, guests and members of the public visiting the Property, a right of entry which shall be
irrevocable for the Term of this Lease Agreement over, across and under the property of the District
adjacent to the Property to and from the Property for the purpose of: (a) ingress, egress, passage or
access to and from the Property by pedestrian or vehicular traffic; (b) installation, maintenance and
replacement of utility wires, cables, conduits and pipes; and (c) other purposes and uses necessary or
desirable for access to and from and for operation and maintenance of the Property.

Section 7.3.  Release and Indemnification Covenants. The District hereby indemnifies the
Corporation, the Assignee and their respective directors, officers, agents, employees, successors and
assigns against all claims, losses and damages, including legal fees and expenses, arising out of (a)
the use, maintenance, condition or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Property
by the District or the District’s employees, agents, contractors, invitees or licensees, (b) any breach or
default on the part of the District in the performance of any of its obligations under this Lease
Agreement, (c) any negligence or willful misconduct of the District or of any of its agents,
contractors, servants, employees or licensees with respect to the Property, (d) any intentional
misconduct or negligence of any sublessee of the District with respect to the Property, (e) the
acquisition, construction, improvement and equipping of the Property, (f) the clean-up of any
Hazardous Substances or toxic wastes from the Property, or (g) any claim alleging violation of any
Applicable Environmental Laws, or the authorization of payment of the costs thereof. No
indemnification is made under this Section 7.3 or elsewhere in this Lease Agreement for willful
misconduct or gross negligence under this Lease Agreement by the Corporation, the Assignee, or
their respective officers, agents, employees, successors or assigns. The indemnification hereunder
shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding the full payment of all obligations under this
Lease Agreement or the termination of the Term of this Lease Agreement for any reason. The
District and the Corporation each agree to promptly give notice to each other and the Assignee of any
claim or liability hereby indemnified against following learning thereof.

Section 7.4.  Assignment Agreement by the Corporation. The Corporation’s rights, title
and interests under this Lease Agreement, including the right to receive and enforce payment of the
Lease Payments to be made by the District hereunder, have been assigned to the Assignee; provided
that the Corporation’s rights to indemnification and payment or reimbursement for any costs or
expenses hereunder have been retained by the Corporation to the extent such rights accrue to the
Corporation and shall have been assigned to the Assignee to the extent such rights accrue to the
Assignee. The District hereby consents to such assignment. Whenever in this Lease Agreement any
reference is made to the Corporation, such reference shall be deemed to refer to the Assignee
(including its assignees).

The Assignee may make additional assignments of its rights, title and interests herein;
provided such assignment is to (i) an “accredited investor” within the meaning of Regulation D
promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, or (ii) a “qualified institutional buyer” within the
meaning of Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and is in
compliance with all applicable securities laws, but no such assignment will be effective as against the

23



District unless and until the Assignee has filed with the District at least five (5) Business Days’ prior
written notice thereof and an executed copy of an investor’s letter addressed to the District and the
Corporation substantially in the form of the letter delivered by the Assignee on the Closing Date.
The District shall pay all Lease Payments hereunder to the Assignee, as provided in Section 4.3(i)
hereof, or under the written direction of the assignee named in the most recent assignment or notice
of assignment filed with the District. During the Term of this Lease Agreement, the District will
keep a complete and accurate record of all such notices of assignment.

Section 7.5.  Assignment Agreement and Subleasing by the District. This Lease
Agreement may not be assigned, mortgaged, pledged or transferred by the District. The District may
sublease the Property, or any portion thereof, with the prior written consent of the Assignee, at the
Assignee’s sole discretion, subject to all of the following conditions:

(a) This Lease Agreement and the obligation of the District to make Lease
Payments hereunder shall remain obligations of the District, and any sublease shall be subject and
subordinate to this Lease Agreement.

(b) The District shall, within 30 days after the delivery thereof, furnish or cause
to be furnished to the Corporation and the Assignee a true and complete copy of such sublease.

() No such sublease by the District may cause the Property to be used for a
purpose other than as may be authorized under the provisions of the laws of the State.

(d) The District shall furnish the Corporation and the Assignee with a written
opinion of Bond Counsel stating that such sublease does not cause the interest components of the
Lease Payments to become includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation or to
become subject to personal income taxation by the State.

(e) Any such sublease shall be subject and subordinate in all respects to the Site
Lease and this Lease Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in connection with any sublease entered into for financing purposes,
the principal component of the then remaining Lease Payments plus the principal component of the
sublease payments shall not exceed the fair market value of the Property.

Section 7.6. Amendment of Lease Agreement. This Lease Agreement may be amended
with the prior written consent of the Corporation and the Assignee (at the Assignee’s sole discretion)
provided such amendment does not, in the Assignee’s sole judgment, adversely affect the Assignee.

Section 7.7. Tax Covenants. The District shall not take any action or permit to be taken
any action within its control which would cause or which, with the passage of time if not cured
would cause, the interest components of the Lease Payments to become includable in gross income
for federal income tax purposes. To that end, the District hereby makes the following specific

covenants:

)] The District hereby covenants that it shall not make or permit any use of the
proceeds of this Lease Agreement that may cause the Lease Agreement to be “arbitrage bonds”
within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

24



(b) The District covenants that the proceeds of the Lease Agreement will not be
used so as to cause the proceeds on the Lease Agreement to satisfy the private business tests of
Section 141(b) of the Code or the private loan financing test of Section 141(c) of the Code.

() The District covenants not to take any action or permit or suffer any action to
be taken if the result of the same would be to cause the Lease Agreement to be “federally
guaranteed” within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code.

(d) The District represents and covenants that it, together with its subordinate
entities, has not and will not issue during the calendar year 2021 obligations (other than private
activity bonds (except qualified 501(c)(3) bonds) as defined in Section 145 of the Code) the interest
on which is exempt from federal income tax under Section 103 of the Code which, when aggregated
with all obligations the interest on which is exempt from federal income tax under Section 103 of the
Code, will exceed an aggregate principal amount of $10,000,000.

Section 7.8.  Financial Statements. Within two hundred seventy (270) days following the
end of each Fiscal Year of the District during the Term of this Lease Agreement, the District will
provide the Assignee with a copy of its audited financial statements for such Fiscal Year. Such
audited financial statements shall include the District’s audited financial statements, including such
information as is required by applicable Government Accounting Standards Board pronouncements
and applicable State law. Within thirty (30) days following the approval of the District’s budget, the
District will provide the Assignee with a copy of said budget. Additionally, the District shall provide
the Assignee with timely notice of any updates from the State regarding any State investigations,
material litigation and notices of default. The District hereby agrees to provide the Assignee with
such other information as may be reasonably requested by the Assignee.

Section 7.9.  Records and Accounts. The District covenants and agrees that it shall keep
proper books of record and accounts of its operations, in which complete and correct entries shall be
made of all transactions relating to the District. Said books and records shall at all reasonable times
be subject to the inspection of the Assignee upon 72 hours’ prior notice.

Section 7.10. Observance of Laws and Regulations. The District will well and truly keep,
observe and perform or cause to be kept, observed and performed all valid and lawful obligations or
regulations now or hereafter imposed on it by contract, or prescribed by any law of the United States,
or of the State, or by any officer, board or commission having jurisdiction or control, as a condition
of the continued enjoyment of any and every right, privilege or franchise now owned or hereafter
acquired and enjoyed by the District, including the District’s right to exist and carry on business as a
community services district, to the end that such rights, privileges and franchises shall be maintained
and preserved, and shall not become abandoned, forfeited or in any manner impaired.

Section 7.11. Notices. During the Term of this Lease Agreement, the District shall provide
to the Assignee:

(a) immediate notice by telephone, promptly confirmed in writing, of any event,
action or failure to take any action which constitutes an Event of Default under this Lease
Agreement, together with a detailed statement by a District Representative of the steps being taken
by the District to cure the effect of such Event of Default.

25



(b) within ten (10) days of knowledge by the District written notice of any
Material Litigation or Material Adverse Effect, or any investigation, inquiry or similar proceeding by
any Governmental Authority.

(©) with reasonable promptness, such other information respecting the District,
and the operations, affairs and financial condition of the District as the Assignee may from time to
time reasonably request.

ARTICLE Vi1
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 8.1.  Events of Default Defined. Any one or more of the following events
constitutes an Event of Default hereunder:

(a) Failure by the District to pay any Lease Payment or other payment required to
be paid hereunder at the time specified herein.

(b) Failure by the District to observe and perform any covenant, condition or
agreement on its part to be observed or performed hereunder, other than as referred to in the
preceding clause (a) of this Section, for a period of 30 days after written notice specifying such
failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given to the District by the Assignee. However, if
in the reasonable opinion of the District the failure stated in the notice can be corrected, but not
within such 30-day period, the Corporation and the Assignee shall not unreasonably withhold their
consent to an extension of such time (for a period not to exceed 60 days) if corrective action is
instituted by the District within such 30-day period and diligently pursued until the default is
corrected.

© The filing by the District of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or failure by
the District promptly to lift any execution, garnishment or attachment, or adjudication of the District
as a bankrupt, or assignment by the District for the benefit of creditors, or the entry by the District
into an agreement of composition with creditors, or the approval by a court of competent jurisdiction
of a petition applicable to the District in any proceedings instituted under the provisions of the
Federal Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or under any similar federal or State act now existing or
which may hereafter be enacted.

(d Any statement, representation or warranty of a material nature made by the
District in or pursuant to this Lease Agreement or its execution, delivery or performance shall have
been false, incorrect, misleading or breached in any material respect on the date when made.

(e) Any default occurs under any other agreement for borrowing money, lease
financing of property or otherwise receiving credit under which the District is an obligor, if such
default arises under any other agreement for borrowing money, lease financing of property or
provision of credit provided by the Assignee or any affiliate of the Assignee.

§9) Any default by the District to observe any material covenant, condition or
agreement on its part to be observed or performed under the Site Lease.

(2) Any court of competent jurisdiction shall find or rule that the Site Lease or
this Lease Agreement is not valid or binding against the District.

26



(h) Any Material Adverse Effect shall exist.

Section 8.2. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default has happened and is
continuing, the Corporation may exercise any and all remedies available under law or granted under
this Lease Agreement; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, there
shall be no right under any circumstances to accelerate the Lease Payments or otherwise declare any
Lease Payments not then in default to be immediately due and payable. Each and every covenant
hereof to be kept and performed by the District is expressly made a condition and upon the breach
thereof the Corporation may exercise any and all rights granted hereunder; provided, that no
termination of this Lease Agreement shall be effected either by operation of law or acts of the parties
hereto, except only in the manner herein expressly provided. Upon the occurrence and during the
continuance of any Event of Default, the Corporation may exercise any one or more of the following

remedies:

(a) Enforcement of Payments Without Termination. If the Corporation does not
elect to terminate this Lease Agreement in the manner hereinafter provided for in subparagraph (b)
hereof, the District agrees to and shall remain liable for the payment of all Lease Payments and the
performance of all conditions herein contained and shall reimburse the Corporation for any
deficiency arising out of the re-leasing of the Property, or, if the Corporation is unable to re-lease the
Property, then for the full amount of all Lease Payments to the end of the Term of this Lease
Agreement, but said Lease Payments and/or deficiency shall be payable only at the same time and in
the same manner as hereinabove provided for the payment of Lease Payments hereunder,
notwithstanding such entry or re-entry by the Corporation or any suit in unlawful detainer, or
otherwise, brought by the Corporation for the purpose of effecting such re-entry or obtaining
possession of the Property or the exercise of any other remedy by the Corporation. The District
hereby irrevocably appoints the Corporation as the agent and attorney-in-fact of the District to enter
upon and re-lease the Property upon the occurrence and continuation of an Event of Default and to
remove all personal property whatsoever situated upon the Property, to place such property in storage
or other suitable place in San Luis Obispo County for the account of and at the expense of the
District, and the District hereby exempts and agrees to hold harmless the Corporation from any costs,
loss or damage whatsoever arising or occasioned by any such entry upon and re-leasing of the
Property and the removal and storage of such property by the Corporation or its duly authorized
agents in accordance with the provisions herein contained. The District agrees that the terms of this
Lease Agreement constitute full and sufficient notice of the right of the Corporation to re-lease the
Property in the event of such re-entry without effecting a surrender of this Lease Agreement, and
further agrees that no acts of the Corporation in effecting such re-leasing shall constitute a surrender
or termination of this Lease Agreement irrespective of the term for which such re-leasing is made or
the terms and conditions of such re-leasing, or otherwise, but that, on the contrary, in the event of
such default by the District the right to terminate this Lease Agreement shall vest in the Corporation
to be effected in the sole and exclusive manner hereinafter provided for in subparagraph (b) hereof.
The District agrees to surrender and quit possession of the Property upon demand of the Corporation
for the purpose of enabling the Property to be re-let under this paragraph. Any rental obtained by the
Corporation in excess of the sum of Lease Payments plus costs and expenses incurred by the
Corporation for its services in re-leasing the Property shall be paid to the District.

(b) Termination of Lease. If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing
hereunder, the Corporation at its option may terminate this Lease Agreement and re-lease all or any
portion of the Property, subject to the Site Lease. If the Corporation terminates this Lease
Agreement at its option and in the manner hereinafter provided due to a default by the District (and

27



notwithstanding any re-entry upon the Property by the Corporation in any manner whatsoever or the
re-leasing of the Property), the District nevertheless agrees to pay to the Corporation all costs, loss or
damages howsoever arising or occurring payable at the same time and in the same manner as is
herein provided in the case of payment of Lease Payments and Additional Payments. Any surplus
received by the Corporation from such re-leasing shall be applied by the Corporation to Lease
Payments due under this Lease Agreement. Neither notice to pay rent or to deliver up possession of
the premises given under law nor any proceeding in unlawful detainer taken by the Corporation shall
of itself operate to terminate this Lease Agreement, and no termination of this Lease Agreement on
account of default by the District shall be or become effective by operation of law, or otherwise,
unless and until the Corporation shall have given written notice to the District of the election on the
part of the Corporation to terminate this Lease Agreement. The District covenants and agrees that no
surrender of the Property, or of the remainder of the Term hereof or any termination of this Lease
Agreement shall be valid in any manner or for any purpose whatsoever unless stated or accepted by
the Corporation by such written notice.

(c) Proceedings at Law or In Equity. If an Event of Default occurs and continues
hereunder, the Corporation may take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or
desirable to collect the amounts then due and thereafter to become due hereunder or to enforce any
other of its rights hereunder.

(d) Remedies under the Site Lease. If an Event of Default occurs and continues
hereunder, the Corporation may exercise its rights under the Site Lease.

Section 8.3. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the
Corporation is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in
addition to every other remedy given under this Lease Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law
or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon the occurrence of
any Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver
thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be
deemed expedient. In order to entitle the Corporation to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this
Article VIII it shall not be necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be required in
this Article VIII or by law.

Section 8.4.  Agreement to Pav Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. If any party to this Lease
Agreement defaults under any of the provisions hereof and the non-defaulting party should employ
attorneys (including in-house legal counsel) or incur other expenses for the collection of moneys or
the enforcement or performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of the
defaulting party herein contained, the defaulting party agrees that it will on demand therefor pay to
the non-defaulting party the reasonable fees of such attorneys (including allocable costs and expenses
of in-house legal counsel, if any) and such other expenses so incurred by the non-defaulting party.

Section 8.5. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. If any agreement contained
in this Lease Agreement is breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other party, such
waiver is limited to the particular breach so waived and will not be deemed to waive any other breach
hereunder.

Section 8.6.  Assignee to Exercise Rights. Such rights and remedies as are given to the
Corporation under this Article VIII have been assigned by the Corporation to the Assignee, to which

28



assignment the District hereby consents. Such rights and remedies shall be exercised solely by the
Assignee.

ARTICLE IX
PREPAYMENT OF LEASE PAYMENTS

Section 9.1.  Optional Prepayment. The District may prepay, commencing on any Lease
Payment Date on or after September ___, 2029, with 30 days written notice, any of the remaining
Lease Payments in whole or in part, from any available source of funds at a prepayment price equal
to the principal component of the Lease Payments to be redeemed, together with a 1% prepayment
premium thereon, plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment.

Section 9.2. Mandatory Prepayment From Net Proceeds of Insurance or Eminent Domain.
The District shall be obligated to prepay the unpaid principal components of the Lease Payments in

whole or in part in such order of prepayment as shall be selected by the District on any date, together
with any accrued and unpaid interest, a prepayment premium, if applicable, and any other costs
related to such prepayment, from and to the extent of any proceeds of insurance award or
condemnation award with respect to the Property to be used for such purpose under Section 6.2. The
District and the Corporation hereby agree that such proceeds, to the extent remaining after payment
of any delinquent Lease Payments, shall be credited towards the District’s obligations under this
Section 9.2.

Section 9.3.  Security Deposit. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease
Agreement, the District may on any date secure the payment of the Lease Payments in whole or in
part by depositing with the Corporation or a fiduciary reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation, in
trust, an amount of cash, which shall be held in a segregated trust or escrow fund under a trust or
escrow agreement that is in form and content acceptable to the Corporation, which cash so held is
either (a) sufficient to pay such Lease Payments, including the principal and interest components
thereof, in accordance with the Lease Payment schedule set forth in Exhibit B, or (b) invested in
whole in non-callable Federal Securities maturing not later than the dates such funds will be required
to make Lease Payments or any prepayment in an amount which is sufficient, in the opinion of an
independent certified public accountant (which opinion must be in form and substance, and with such
an accountant, acceptable to the Corporation and addressed and delivered to the Corporation),
together with interest to accrue thereon and without reinvestment and together with any cash which is
so deposited, to pay such Lease Payments when due under Section 4.3(a) or when due on any
optional prepayment date under Section 9.1, as the District instructs at the time of said deposit;
provided, however, that at or prior to the date on which any such security deposit is established, the
District shall deliver to the Corporation an opinion of Bond Counsel (in form and substance
acceptable to the Corporation) to the effect that any such security deposit will not adversely affect the
excludability of the interest component of Lease Payments from gross income of the Assignee for
federal income tax purposes. In the event of a security deposit under this Section with respect to all
unpaid Lease Payments, (i) the Term of this Lease Agreement shall continue, (ii) all obligations of
the District under this Lease Agreement, and all security provided by this Lease Agreement for said
obligations, shall thereupon cease and terminate, excepting only (A) the obligation of the District to
make, or cause to be made, all of the Lease Payments from such security deposit and, to the extent of
any deficiency, as rent payable from other legally available funds of the District, and (B) the release
and indemnification obligations of the District under Section 7.3, and (iii) under Section 4.5, the
Corporation’s leasehold interest in the Property will vest in the District on the date of said deposit
automatically and without further action by the District or the Corporation. The District hereby

29



grants a first priority security interest in and the lien on said security deposit and all proceeds thereof
in favor of the Corporation. Said security deposit shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a special
fund for the payment of Lease Payments in accordance with the provisions of this Lease Agreement
and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Lease Payments therefrom shall not be subject
to abatement under Section 6.03 hereof to the extent payable from the funds held by the Corporation
or the fiduciary as described in the first sentence of this Section 9.3.

ARTICLE X
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.1. Notices. Any notice, request, complaint, demand or other communication
under this Lease Agreement shall be given by first class mail or personal delivery to the party entitled
thereto at its address set forth below, or by facsimile transmission or other form of
telecommunication, at its number set forth below. Notice shall be effective either (a) upon
transmission by facsimile transmission or other form of telecommunication, (b) 48 hours after
deposit in the United States of America first class mail, postage prepaid, or (¢) in the case of personal
delivery to any person, upon actual receipt. The Corporation, the District and the Assignee may, by
written notice to the. other parties, from time to time modify the address or number to which
communications are to be given hereunder.

If to the District: Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street; PO Box 309
Avila Beach, CA 93424
Attention: District Manager
Phone: (805) 595-2664

If to the Corporation: Municipal Finance Corporation
2945 Townsgate Road, Suite 200
Westlake Village, CA 91361
Attention: President
Phone: (805) 719-1236

If to the Assignee: CN Financing, Inc.
555 South Flower Street, 21% Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071
Attention: Credit Management
Phone: (213) 673-9013

Section 10.2. Binding Effect. This Lease Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding
upon the Corporation, the District and their respective successors and assigns. The Assignee is
hereby made a third party beneficiary hereunder with all rights of a third party beneficiary.

Section 10.3. Severability. If any provision of this Lease Agreement is held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding will not invalidate or render
unenforceable any other provision hereof.

30



Section 10.4. Net-net-net Lease. This Lease Agreement is a “net-net-net lease” and the
District hereby agrees that the Lease Payments are an absolute net return to the Corporation, free and
clear of any expenses, charges or set-offs whatsoever.

Section 10.5. Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The Corporation and the
District agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be
executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments as may
reasonably be required for correcting any inadequate or incorrect description of the Property hereby
leased or intended so to be or for carrying out the expressed intention of this Lease Agreement.

Section 10.6. Waiver of Personal Liability. No member, officer, agent or employee of the
District or the Corporation shall be individually or personally liable for the payment of Lease
Payments; but nothing herein contained shall relieve any such member, officer, agent or employee
from the performance of any official duly provided by law.

Section 10.7. Execution in Counterparts. This Lease Agreement may be executed in
several counterparts, each of which is an original and all of which constitutes one and the same
instrument.

Section 10.8. Applicable Law. This Lease Agreement is governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 10.9. Captions. The captions or headings in this Lease Agreement are for
convenience only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or
section of this Lease Agreement.

Section 10.10. Waiver of Jury Trial: Agreement for Judicial Reference. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, each of the District and the Corporation hereby waives its right to trial by jury in
any action, proceeding and/or hearing on any matter whatsoever arising out of, or in any way
connected with, this Agreement or any related documents, or the enforcement of any remedy under
any law, statute, or regulation.

To the extent the foregoing waiver of a jury trial is unenforceable under applicable California
law, each of the District and the Corporation agrees to refer, for a complete and final adjudication,
any and all issues of fact or law involved in any litigation or proceeding (including all discovery and
law and motion matters, pretrial motions, trial matter and post-trial motions up to and including final
judgment), brought to resolve any dispute (whether based on contract, tort or otherwise) between the
parties hereto arising out of, in connection with or otherwise related or incidental to this Agreement
to a judicial referee who shall be appointed under a general reference pursuant to California Code of
Civil Procedure Section 638, which referee’s decision will stand as the decision of the court. Such
judgment will be entered on the referee’s statement of judgment in the same manner as if the action
had been tried by the court. The parties shall select a single neutral referee, who shall be a retired
state or federal judge with at least five years of judicial experience in civil matters; provided that the
event the parties cannot agree upon a referee, the referee will be appointed by the court.

31



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation and the District have caused this Lease
Agreement to be executed in their respective names by their duly authorized officers, all as of the
date first above written.

MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION

By:

Stefan Morton
Vice President

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

By:

President of the Board



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

The land referred to in this Lease Agreement is situated in the County of San Luis Obispo,
State of California, and is described as follows:

A-1



EXHIBIT B

SCHEDULE OF LEASE PAYMENTS

Lease Payment Principal Interest Total Lease
Date Component Component'” Payment

Total

B-1



PROJECT FUND AGREEMENT

This Project Fund Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of September 1, 2021, is among
MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION, a California corporation (the “Corporation”), AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of California (the “District”) and
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (the “Custodian”).

Reference is made to that certain Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 2021 between the
Corporation and the District (the “Lease”), covering the financing of a certain project described therein (the
“Project™). It is a requirement of the Lease that the funds for the acquisition and construction of the Project be
deposited with the Custodian hereunder for the purpose of providing a mechanism for the application of such
amounts to the payment of Project costs. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined
shall have the respective meanings given such terms in the Lease.

The parties agree as follows:

1. Creation of Project Fund.

(a) There is hereby created an account to be known as the “Avila Beach Community
Services District Project Fund” (the “Project Fund™) to be held by the Custodian for the purposes stated herein,
for the benefit of the Corporation and the District, to be held, disbursed and returned in accordance with the
terms hereof. On the Closing Date, the District has caused the amount of $3,000,000.00 to be transferred to the
Custodian for deposit into the Project Fund.

(b) The Custodian shall invest and reinvest moneys on deposit in the Project Fund in
Qualified Investments in accordance with written instructions received from the District. The District shall be
solely responsible for ascertaining that all proposed investments and reinvestments are Qualified Investments
and that they comply with federal, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances governing investment of
such funds and for providing appropriate notice to the Custodian for the reinvestment of any maturing
investment. Accordingly, neither the Custodian nor the Corporation shall be responsible for any liability, cost,
expense, loss or claim of any kind, directly or indirectly arising out of or related to the investment or
reinvestment of all or any portion of the moneys on deposit in the Project Fund, and the District agrees to and
does hereby release and hold harmless the Custodian and the Corporation from any such liability, cost,
expenses, loss or claim. Interest on the Project Fund shall become part of the Project Fund, and gains and
losses on the investment of the moneys on deposit in the Project Fund shall be bomne by the Project Fund. For
purposes of this agreement, “Qualified Investments” means any investments which meet the requirements of
Section 53601 of the California Government Code. The custodian is hereby authorized and directed to invest
and re-invest all amounts in the Project Fund in the U.S. Bank Money Market Deposit Account further
described in Schedule 2 attached hereto.

© Unless the Project Fund is earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of
paragraph (d) below, amounts in the Project Fund shall be disbursed by the Custodian in payment of amounts
described in Section 2 hereof upon receipt of written authorization(s) from the Corporation, as is more fully
described in Section 2 hereof. If the amounts in the Project Fund are insufficient to pay such amounts, the
District shall be solely responsible for the balance of the funds needed to complete the acquisition and
construction of the Project. Any moneys remaining in the Project Fund after September 30, 2021 (the
“Acquisition and Construction Period™) shall be applied as provided in Section 4 hereof.

(d) The Project Fund shall be terminated at the earliest of (i) the final distribution of
amounts in the Project Fund or (ii) written notice given by the Corporation of the occurrence of a default or
termination of the Lease.



(e) The Custodian may act in reliance upon any writing or instrument or signature which
it, in good faith, believes to be genuine and may assume the validity and accuracy of any statement or
assertion contained in such a writing or instrument. The Custodian shall not be liable in any manner for the
sufficiency or correctness as to form, manner of execution, or validity of any instrument nor as to the identity,
authority, or right of any person executing the same; and its duties hereunder shall be limited to the receipt of
such moneys, instruments or other documents received by it as the Custodian, and for the disposition of the
same in accordance herewith.

® Unless the Custodian is guilty of gross negligence or willful misconduct with regard to
its duties hereunder, the District agrees to and does hereby release and indemnify the Custodian and hold it
harmless from any and all claims, liabilities, losses, actions, suits or proceedings at law or in equity, or any
other expense, fees or charges of any character or nature, which it may incur or with which it may be
threatened by reason of its acting as Custodian under this agreement; and in connection therewith, does to the
extent permitted by law indemnify the Custodian against any and all expenses; including reasonable attorneys’
fees and the cost of defending any action, suit or proceeding or resisting any claim.

(2) If the District and the Corporation shall be in disagreement about the interpretation of
the Lease, or about the rights and obligations, or the propriety of any action contemplated by the Custodian
hereunder, the Custodian may, but shall not be required to, file an appropriate civil action to resolve the
disagreement. The Custodian shall be reimbursed by the losing party in such civil litigationBisiriet for all
costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, in connection with such civil action, and shall be fully protected in
suspending all or part of its activities under the Lease until a final judgment in such action is received. If the
Custodian is a losing party. it shall reimburse the District for the District’s reasonable attorneys’ fees and shall
be liable for any damage caused by Custodian suspending all or part of its activities under the Lease.

(h) The Custodian, the District. and the Corporation may consult with counsel of its own
choice and shall have full and complete authorization and protection with the opinion of such counsel. The
Custodian shall otherwise not be liable for any mistakes of fact or errors of judgment, or for any acts or
omissions of any kind unless caused by its willful misconduct.

(1) In the event of civil litigation, tThe Distriet-losing party shall reimburse the Custedian
prevailing party for all reasonable costs and expenses, including those of the Custedian’s-prevailing party’s
attorneys, agents and employees incurred, including with respect to the Custodian those-f reasonable costs and
expenses incurred for extraordinary administration of the Project Fund and the performance of the Custodian’s
powers and duties hereunder in connection with any Event of Default under the Lease, or in connection with
any dispute between the Corporation and the District concerning the Project Fund.

2. Acquisition and Construction of Project.

(a) Acquisition and Construction Contracts. The District will arrange for, supervise and
provide for, or cause to be supervised and provided for, the acquisition and construction of the Project, with
moneys available in the Project Fund. The District represents the estimated costs of the Project are within the
funds estimated to be available therefor, and the Corporation makes no warranty or representation with respect
thereto. The Corporation shall have no liability under any of the acquisition or construction contracts. The
District shall obtain all necessary permits and approvals, if any, for the acquisition, construction, equipping
and installation of the Project, and the operation and maintenance thereof.

(b) Authorized Project Fund Disbursements. Disbursements from the Project Fund shall be
made for the purpose of paying (including the reimbursement to the District for advances from its own funds
to accomplish the purposes hereinafter described) the cost of acquiring and constructing the Project.




(c) Requisition Procedure. No disbursement from the Project Fund shall be made unless
and until the Corporation has approved such requisition. Prior to disbursement from the Project Fund there
shall be filed with the Custodian a requisition for such payment in the form of Disbursement Request attached
hereto as Schedule 1, stating each amount to be paid and the name of the person, firm or the Corporation to
whom payment thereof is due. Each such requisition shall be signed by an authorized representative of the
District (an “Authorized Representative”) and by the Corporation. The District shall provide to the
Corporation a Certificate of Completion along with the final Disbursement Request.

3. Deposit to Project Fund. Upon satisfaction of the conditions specified in the Lease, the
Corporation will cause the Lease Proceeds to be deposited in the Project Fund. The District agrees to pay any
costs with respect to the Project in excess of amounts available therefor in the Project Fund.

4. Excessive Moneys in the Project Fund. Following the final disbursement from the Project Fund
at the end of the Acquisition and Construction Period, or termination of the Project Fund as otherwise
provided herein, the Custodian shall, upon written instruction from the Corporation transfer any remainder
from the Project Fund to the Corporation or its assignee (or to the District at the Corporation’s written
direction) for application to amounts owed under the Lease in accordance with Section 6 of the Lease.

5. Security Interest. The Custodian and the District acknowledge and agree that the Project Fund
and all proceeds thereof are being held by Custodian for disbursement or return as set forth herein. The
District hereby grants to the Corporation a first priority perfected security interest in the Project Fund, and all
proceeds thereof, and all investments made with any amounts in the Project Fund. If the Project Fund, or any
part thereof, is converted to investments as set forth in this agreement, such investments shall be made in the
name of Custodian and the Custodian hereby agrees to hold such investments as custodian for the Corporation
so that the Corporation is deemed to have possession of such investments for the purpose of perfecting the
Corporation’s security interest. Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any of the Custodian’s
rights as a securities intermediary under Uniform Commercial Code Section 9-206. None of the provisions of
this Agreement shall require the Custodian to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise to incur any liability,
financial or otherwise, in the performance of any of its duties under this Agreement or in the exercise of any of
its rights or powers under this Agreement.

6. Control of Project Fund. In order to perfect the Corporation’s security interest by means of
control in (i) the Project Fund established hereunder, (ii) all securities entitlements, investment property and
other financial assets now or hereafter credited to the Project Fund, (iii) all of the District’s rights in respect of
the Project Fund, such securities entitlements, investment property and other financial assets, and (iv) all
products, proceeds and revenues of and from any of the foregoing personal property (collectively, the
“Collateral”), the Corporation, the District and Custodian further agree as follows:

(a) All terms used in this Section 6 which are defined in the Commercial Code of the State
of California (the “Commercial Code”) but are not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned
to such terms in the Commercial Code, as in effect on the date of this Agreement.

(b) The Custodian will comply with all entitlement orders originated by the Corporation
with respect to the Collateral, or any portion of the Collateral, without further consent by the District.

(©) As of the date hereof, the Custodian hereby represents and warrants (a) that the records
of Custodian show that the District is the sole owner of the Collateral, (b) that the Custodian has not been
served with any notice of levy or received any notice of any security interest in or other claim to the Collateral,
or any portion of the Collateral, other than the Corporation’s claim pursuant to this Agreement, and (c) that the
Custodian is not presently obligated to accept any entitlement order from any person with respect to the
Collateral, except for entitlement orders that the Custodian is obligated to accept from the Corporation under



this Agreement and entitlement orders that the Custodian, subject to the provisions of paragraph (¢) below, is
obligated to accept from the District.

(d) Without the prior written consent of the Corporation, the Custodian will not enter into
any agreement by which the Custodian agrees to comply with any entitlement order of any person other than
the Corporation or, subject to the provisions of paragraph (e) below, the District, with respect to any portion or
all of the Collateral. The Custodian shall promptly notify the Corporation if any person requests the Custodian
to enter into any such agreement or otherwise asserts or seeks to assert a lien, encumbrance or adverse claim
against any portion or all of the Collateral.

© Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph (e) and subject to Section 1(b) hereof,
the Custodian may allow the District to effect sales, trades, transfers and exchanges of Collateral within the
Project Fund, but will not, without the prior written consent of the Corporation, allow the District to withdraw
any Collateral from the Project Fund. The Custodian acknowledges that the Corporation reserves the right, by
delivery of written notice to the Custodian, to prohibit the District from effecting any withdrawals (including
withdrawals of ordinary cash dividends and interest income), sales, trades, transfers or exchanges of any
Collateral held in the Project Fund. Further, the Custodian hereby agrees to comply with any and all written
instructions delivered by the Corporation to the Custodian (once it has had a reasonable opportunity to comply
therewith) and has no obligation to, and will not, investigate the reason for any action taken by the
Corporation, the amount of any obligations of the District to the Corporation, the validity of any of the
Corporation’s claims against or agreements with the District, the existence of any defaults under such
agreements, or any other matter.

® The District hereby irrevocably authorizes Custodian to comply with all instructions
and entitlement orders delivered by the Corporation to Custodian.

(2) The Custodian will not attempt to assert control, and does not claim and will not accept
any security or other interest in, any part of the Collateral, and the Custodian will not exercise, enforce or
attempt to enforce any right of setoff against the Collateral, or otherwise charge or deduct from the Collateral
any amount whatsoever.

(h) The Custodian and the District hereby agree that any property held in the Project Fund
shall be treated as a financial asset under such section of the Commercial Code as corresponds with Section 8-
102 of the Uniform Commercial Code, notwithstanding any contrary provision of any other agreement to
which the Custodian may be a party.

(i) The Custodian is hereby authorized and instructed, and hereby agrees, to send to the
Corporation at its address set forth in Section 7 below, concurrently with the sending thereof to the District,
duplicate copies of any and all monthly Project Fund statements or reports issued or sent to the District with
respect to the Project Fund.

7. The Custodian.

(a) If, at any time, (i) there shall exist any dispute with respect to the holding or disposition
of all or any portion of the Project Fund or any other obligations of the Custodian hereunder, (ii) the Custodian
is unable to determine its sole satisfaction, the proper disposition of all or any portion of funds held or
hereunder or the Custodian’s proper actions with respect to its obligations hereunder, or (iii) the Custodian has
not been replaced within 30 days of the furnishing by the Custodian of a notice of termination, then the
Custodian may, in its sole discretion, take either or both of the following actions:



(A) suspend the performance of any of its obligations (including without limitation any
disbursement obligations) under this Agreement until such dispute or uncertainty shall be resolved to the sole
satisfaction of the Custodian or until a successor custodian shall have been appointed.

B) petition (by means of an interpleader action or any other appropriate method) any court
for instructions with respect to such dispute or uncertainty, and to the extent required or permitted by law, pay
into such court, for holding and disposition in accordance with the instructions of such court, all funds held
hereunder, after deduction and payment to the Custodian of all fees and expenses (including court costs and
attorneys’ fees) payable to, incurred by, or expected to be incurred by the Custodian in connection with the
performance of its duties and the exercise of its rights hereunder.

The Custodian shall have no liability to any person or entity with respect to any such suspension of
performance or disbursement into court.

(b) All parties hereto acknowledge that the Custodian is not a fiduciary with respect to any
asset or as to any of the parties hereto. The Custodian shall have no duty to make any evaluation or to advise
anyone of the prudence, suitability, or propriety of action or proposed action in any particular transaction
involving an asset or the suitability or propriety of retaining any particular investment as an asset. The
Custodian shall have no duty to review, question, approve, or make inquiries as to any investment directions
received under this Agreement. The Custodian shall be under no duty to review the securities or other property
held in any account with respect to prudence or diversification. The Custodian shall not be liable for any loss
or diminution of assets by reason of investment experience or for its actions taken in reliance upon a direction
received under this Agreement. The Custodian shall have no duty to monitor or otherwise investigate the
actions or omissions of any party hereto or any of their respective agents. The Custodian shall have no
responsibility for the accuracy of asset valuations quoted by outside services or sources. The Custodian shall
only be responsible for the performance of such duties as are expressly set forth in this Agreement and no
implied covenants, duties, responsibilities, representations, warranties, or obligations shall be read into this
Agreement against the Custodian. The Custodian shall have no duty to act as trustee of any assets held
hereunder. The Custodian shall have no duty to act as investment manager of any assets held hereunder. The
Custodian shall have no duty to render investment advice with respect to any assets held hereunder. The
Custodian shall have no duty to determine, monitor, or collect any contributions to any fund held hereunder or
monitor compliance with any applicable funding requirements. The Custodian shall have no duty to maintain
or defend any legal proceeding in the absence of indemnification, to the Custodian’s satisfaction, against all
expenses and liabilities which it may sustain by reason thereof. The Custodian shall have no duty to inspect or
execute any contract, declaration of trust, lease, loan agreement, note, offering memorandum, subscription
agreement, or other instrument which may establish rights to income, principal, or other distributions on any
asset. The Custodian shall have no duty to collect any income, principal, or other distribution due and payable
on any asset if the asset is in default or if payment is refused after due demand. The Custodian shall have no
duty to question whether any direction received under this agreement is prudent or contrary to applicable law;
to solicit directions; or to question whether any direction received under this Agreement is unreliable or has
been compromised, such as by identity theft. The Custodian shall not be liable for a failure to take an action
required under this Agreement in the event and to the extent that the taking of the action is prevented or
delayed by war (whether declared or not and including existing wars), revolutions, insurrection, riot, civil
commotion, acts of God, accident, fire, explosion, stoppage of labor, strikes or other differences with
employees, laws, regulations, orders or other acts of any governmental authority or any other cause
whatsoever beyond its reasonable control; nor shall any such failure or delay give any party hereto the right to
terminate this Agreement.

(c) Custodian Fees to be paid by the District as agreed on Schedule 3



8. Term of Agreement.  Subject to Section 1(e), and with the exception of the covenants
in Section 1(g), which shall continue until payment in full of all fees and expenses due to the Custodian, this
Agreement shall remain in effect until the earlier of: (A) the District delivers a written statement to the
Custodian indicating that all applicable amounts to be paid have been remitted, (B) this Agreement is amended
or terminated in writing by the parties hereto, or (C) disbursement by the Custodian of all monies held by it
hereunder.

9. Miscellaneous. This Agreement may not be amended except in writing signed by all
parties hereto. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
to be an original instrument and each shall have the force and effect of an original and all of which together
constitute, and shall be deemed to constitute, one and the same instrument. Notices hereunder shall be made in
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when personally delivered or when deposited in the mail,
first class postage prepaid, or delivered to an express carrier, charges prepaid, or sent by facsimile with
electronic confirmation, addressed to each party at its address below:

If to the Corporation: Municipal Finance Corporation
2945 Townsgate Road, Suite 200
Westlake Village, CA 91361
Attn: President

If to the District: Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street; PO Box 309
Avila Beach, CA 93424
Attn: District Manager

If to Custodian: U.S. Bank National Association
633 West Fifth Street, 24™ Floor
LM-CA-T24T
Los Angeles, CA 90071
Attn: Ilse Vlach

THE PARTIES HERETO WAIVE THEIR RESPECTIVE RIGHTS TO A JURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM
OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED UPON OR ARISING OUT OF, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, THIS
AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE RELATED DOCUMENTS, ANY DEALINGS RELATING TO THE
SUBJECT MATTER OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND/OR THE RELATIONSHIP THAT IS BEING ESTABLISHED
HEREUNDER. THE SCOPE OF THIS WAIVER IS INTENDED TO BE ALL ENCOMPASSING OF ANY
AND ALL DISPUTES THAT MAY BE FILED IN ANY COURT (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION,
CONTRACT CLAIMS, TORT CLAIMS, BREACH OF DUTY CLAIMS AND ALL OTHER COMMON
LAW AND STATUTORY CLAIMS). THIS WAIVER IS IRREVOCABLE, MEANING THAT IT MAY
NOT BE MODIFIED EITHER ORALLY OR IN WRITING, AND THIS WAIVER SHALL APPLY TO
ANY SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS, RENEWALS, SUPPLEMENTS OR MODIFICATIONS TO THIS
AGREEMENT, ANY RELATED DOCUMENTS, OR TO ANY OTHER DOCUMENTS OR
AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT OR
ANY RELATED TRANSACTIONS, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE
FILED AS A WRITTEN CONSENT TO A TRIAL BY THE COURT.

To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, Federal law
requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify, and record information that identifies each person who
opens an account. For a non-individual person such as a business entity, a charity, a trust, or other legal entity
the Filing Agent may require documentation to verify its customer’s formation and existence as a legal entity.



The Filing Agent may also require financial statements, licenses, identification and authorization documents
from individuals claiming authority to represent the entity or other relevant documentation.



In Witness Whereof, the parties have executed this Project Fund Agreement as of the date first above
written.

MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT

By: By:

Title: Title:

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By:

Title:




SCHEDULE 1

FORM OF DISBURSEMENT REQUEST

Re:  Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 2021 by and between Municipal Finance Corporation and
Avila Beach Community Services District (the “Lease™)

In accordance with the terms of the Project Fund Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2021 (the
“Project Fund Agreement”) by and among Municipal Finance Corporation (the “Corporation”), Avila Beach
Community Services District (“the District”) and U.S. Bank National Association (the “Custodian”), the
undersigned hereby requests the Custodian pay the following persons the following amounts from the Project
Fund created under the Project Fund Agreement (the ‘“Project Fund”) for the following purposes.

Payee’s Name and Address | Invoice Number | Dollar Amount Purpose

The undersigned hereby certifies as follows:

(i) An obligation in the stated amount has been incurred by the District, and the same is a proper
charge against the Project Fund for costs relating to the Project identified in the Lease and has not been paid.
Attached hereto is the original invoice with respect to such obligation.

(ii) The undersigned, as Authorized Representative, has no notice of any vendor’s, mechanic’s or
other liens or rights to liens, chatte]l mortgages, conditional sales contracts or security interest which should be
satisfied or discharged before such payment is made.

(iii)  This requisition contains no item representing payment on account, or any retained percentages
which the District is, at the date hereof, entitled to retain.

(iv)  The Site is insured in accordance with the Lease.

) No Event of Default, and no event which with notice or lapse of time, or both, would become
an Event of Default, under the Lease has occurred and is continuing at the date hereof.

(vi)  The disbursement shall occur during the Acquisition and Construction Period set forth in this
Agreement.



(vii) No material adverse change in the District’s financial condition shall have occurred since the
date of the Lease.

Dated:

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

By:

Authorized Representative

Disbursement of funds from the Project
Fund in accordance with the foregoing
Disbursement Request hereby is authorized

MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION

By:
Title: Authorized Representative




SCHEDULE 2

F-2004.1-1.

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
MONEY MARKET ACCOUNT AUTHORIZATION FORM
DESCRIPTION AND TERMS

The U.S. Bank Money Market account is a U.S. Bank National Association (“U.S. Bank”) interest-bearing
money market deposit account designed to meet the needs of U.S. Bank’s Corporate Trust Services Escrow
Group and other Corporate Trust customers of U.S. Bank. Selection of this investment includes authorization

to place funds on deposit and invest with U.S. Bank.

U.S. Bank uses the daily balance method to calculate interest on this account (actual/365 or 366). This method
applies a daily periodic rate to the principal balance in the account each day. Interest is accrued daily and
credited monthly to the account. Interest rates are determined at U.S. Bank’s discretion, and may be tiered by

customer deposit amount.

The owner of the account is U.S. Bank as agent for its corporate trust customers. U.S. Bank’s corporate trust
department performs all account deposits and withdrawals. Deposit accounts are FDIC Insured per depositor,

as determined under FDIC Regulations, up to applicable FDIC limits.

U.S. BANK, WHEN ACTING AS AN INDENTURE TRUSTEE OR IN A SIMILAR CAPACITY, IS NOT
REQUIRED TO REGISTER AS A MUNICIPAL ADVISOR WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION FOR PURPOSES OF COMPLYING WITH THE DODD-FRANK WALL STREET
REFORM & CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT. INVESTMENT ADVICE, IF NEEDED, SHOULD BE
OBTAINED FROM YOUR FINANCIAL ADVISOR.

AUTOMATIC AUTHORIZATION

In the absence of specific written direction to the contrary, U.S. Bank is hereby directed to invest and reinvest
proceeds and other available moneys in the U.S. Bank Money Market Account. The U.S. Bank Money Market
Account is a permitted investment under the operative documents and this authorization is the permanent
direction for investment of the moneys until notified in writing of alternate instructions



SCHEDULE 3

Services as
Custodian For Avila Beach Community Services District

CTS01010A Acceptance Fee The acceptance fee includes the administrative review $1,000.00
of documents, initial set-up of the account, and other reasonably required
services up to and including the closing. This is a one-time, non-
refundable fee, payable at closing.

CTS04050 Custodian Annual fee for the standard custodian services associated $1,200.00
with the administration of the account. Administration fees are payable

in advance.

Direct Out of Pocket Expenses Reimbursement of expenses associated At Cost
with the performance of our duties, including but not limited to
publications, legal counsel after the initial close, travel expenses and

filing fees.

Extraordinary Services Extraordinary Services are duties or
responsibilities of an unusual nature, including termination, but not
provided for in the governing documents or otherwise set forth in this
schedule. A reasonable charge will be assessed based on the nature of the
services and the responsibility involved. At our option, these charges will
be billed at a flat fee or at our hourly rate then in effect.

Account approval is subject to review and qualification. Fees are subject to change at our
discretion and upon written notice. Fees paid in advance will not be prorated. The fees set forth
above and any subsequent modifications thereof are part of your agreement. Finalization of the
transaction constitutes agreement to the above fee schedule, including agreement to any
subsequent changes upon proper written notice. In the event your transaction is not finalized, any
related out-of-pocket expenses will be billed to you directly. Absent your written instructions to
sweep or otherwise invest, all sums in your account will remain uninvested and no accrued
interest or other compensation will be credited to the account. Payment of fees constitutes
acceptance of the terms and conditions set forth.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT PROCEDURES FOR OPENING A NEW ACCOUNT:
To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, Federal
law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify and record information that identifies each
person who opens an account. For a non-individual person such as a business entity, a charity, a
Trust or other legal entity we will ask for documentation to verify its formation and existence as a
legal entity. We may also ask to see financial statements, licenses, identification and authorization
documents from individuals claiming authority to represent the entity or other relevant
documentation.



AFTER RECORDATION RETURN TO:

Municipal Finance Corporation
2945 Townsgate Road, Suite 200
Westlake Village, CA 91361
Attention: President

THIS TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM CALIFORNIA DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX
PURSUANT TO SECTION 11929 OF THE CALIFORNIA REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE.
THIS DOCUMENT IS EXEMPT FROM RECORDING FEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 27383
OF THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE.

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE AGREEMENT

This Memorandum of Lease Agreement (this “Memorandum of Lease Agreement”), is
entered into as of September 1, 2021, between the MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION, a
corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, as lessor (the
“Corporation”), and the AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a community
services district organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, as
lessee (the “District”), who agree as follows:

Section 1. The Lease. The District leases from the Corporation, and the Corporation leases
to the District, certain real property described in Section 2 hereof, and the improvements situated
upon said real property, upon the terms and conditions, and for the term, more fully set forth in the
Lease Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2021, between the Corporation, as lessor, and the
District, as lessee (the “Lease Agreement”), all of the provisions of which are hereby incorporated
into this Memorandum of Lease Agreement by reference.

Section 2. Leased Premises; Term. The Corporation leases, lets and demises unto the
District and the District leases, hires and takes from the Corporation, that certain parcel of real
property situated in San Luis Obispo County, State of California, more particularly described in
Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (collectively, the “Site”), and those certain
improvements on the Site (the “Facility”). The Lease Agreement is for a term commencing on the
date of recordation of this Memorandum of Lease Agreement and ending on September ___, 2041, or
such earlier or later date on which the Lease Payments (as defined in the Lease Agreement) are paid
in full or provision has been made for such payment in accordance with the Lease Agreement.

Section 3. Assignment of Lessor’s Rights Under Lease Agreement; No Merger of Title.
The parties hereto acknowledge that pursuant to the Assignment Agreement, dated as of September
1, 2021, between the Corporation and CN Financing, Inc., and its successors and assigns (the
“Assignee”), recorded concurrently herewith, the Corporation has assigned, transferred and delivered
to the Assignee, all of its rights, title and interest in, to and under the Site Lease (as defined in the
Lease Agreement) and the Lease Agreement.



Section 4. Provisions Binding on Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provisions of the
Lease Agreement relating to assignment and subletting, the Lease Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall be binding upon the Corporation and the District and their respective successors

and assigns, including the Assignee.

Section 5. Purpose of Memorandum. This Memorandum of Lease Agreement is prepared
for the purpose of recordation, and it in no way modifies the provisions of the Lease Agreement.

Section 6. Execution. This Memorandum of Lease Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same

instrument.

Section 7. State Law. This Memorandum of Lease shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Memorandum of Lease
Agreement to be executed in its corporate name by its duly authorized officer; and the District has
caused this Memorandum of Lease Agreement to be executed in its name by its duly authorized
officer, as of the date first above written.

MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION

By:

Stefan Morton
Vice President

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

By:

President of the Board



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF )
On before me, , Notary Public,

personally appeared

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument
and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon
behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State
of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Place Notary Seal Above

Signature of Notary Public




CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTYOF )

On ~ before me, _ , Notary Public,
personally appeared ,

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument
and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon
behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State
of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.
WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Place Notary Seal Above

Signature of Notary Public




EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

The land referred to in this Memorandum of Lease is situated in the County of San Luis
Obispo, State of California, and is described as follows:



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the Memorandum of Lease,
dated as of September 1, 2021, from the Municipal Finance Corporation (the “Corporation”) as
lessor, to the Avila Beach Community Services District (the “District”), as lessee, is hereby accepted
by the undersigned officer on behalf of the District, pursuant to authority conferred by resolution of
the District Board adopted on August 10, 2021, and the District consents to recordation thereof by its
duly authorized officer.

Dated: ,2021

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

President of the Board



AFTER RECORDATION PLEASE RETURN TO:

Municipal Finance Corporation
2945 Townsgate Road, Suite 200
Westlake Village, CA 91361
Attention: President

THIS TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM CALIFORNIA DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX
PURSUANT TO SECTION 11929 OF THE CALIFORNIA REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE.
THIS DOCUMENT IS EXEMPT FROM RECORDING FEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 27383
OF THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE.

SITE LEASE

Dated as of September 1, 2021

between the

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

and

MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION




SITE LEASE

THIS SITE LEASE (the “Site Lease™), dated as of September 1, 2021, is between the AVILA
BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a community services district organized and
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the “District”), as lessor, and the
MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION, a corporation duly organized and existing under the
laws of the State of California (the “Corporation™), as lessee;

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to this Site Lease, the District proposes to lease certain real property
situated in the County of San Luis Obispo, State of California, more particularly described in Exhibit
A attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Site”), and those certain improvements thereon (the
“Facility” and, with the Site, the “Property™), to the Corporation, all for the purpose of assisting the
District in financing the acquisition, construction and installation of certain improvements to the
Property consisting of wastewater treatment plant improvements (the “Project”);

WHEREAS, the Corporation proposes to lease the Property back to the District pursuant to
that certain Lease Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2021, a memorandum of which is recorded
concurrently herewith (the “Lease Agreement”) and to assign all of its rights, title and interest in, to
and under this Site Lease and the Lease Agreement, including its right to receive lease payments
under the Lease Agreement (the “Lease Payments™), its right to enforce payment of the Lease
Payments and otherwise to enforce its interest and rights under the Lease Agreement in the event of a
default thereunder by the District, to CN Financing, Inc., a California corporation, including its
successors and assigns (the “Assignee™) pursuant to that certain Assignment Agreement, dated as of
September 1, 2021, between the Corporation and the Assignee, and recorded concurrently herewith;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY MUTUALLY AGREED, as follows:

Section 1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this Site Lease
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Lease Agreement.

Section 2. Site Lease. The District hereby leases to the Corporation and the Corporation
hereby leases from the District, on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the Property.

Section 3. Term. The term of this Site Lease shall commence on the Closing Date, as defined
in the Lease Agreement, and shall end on September ___, 2041, unless such term is extended or
sooner terminated as hereinafter provided. If, on September __, 2041, the aggregate amount of
Lease Payments (as defined in and as payable under the Lease Agreement) shall not have been paid
by reason of abatement, default or otherwise, or provision shall not have been made for their
payment in accordance with the Lease Agreement, then the term of this Site Lease shall be extended
until such Lease Payments shall be fully paid or provision made for such payment, but in no event
later than September ____, 2051. If, prior to September ___, 2041, all Lease Payments shall be fully
paid or provision made for such payment in accordance with the Lease Agreement, the term of this

Site Lease shall end.

Section 4. Advance Rental Payment. The District agrees to lease the Property to the
Corporation in consideration of the payment by the Corporation of an advance rental payment of




$3,020,000.00. The District and the Corporation agree that by reason of the assignment of the Lease
Payments to the Assignee under and pursuant to the Assignment Agreement, the advance rental
payment referenced in the preceding sentence shall be deemed to have been paid.

Section 5. Purpose. The Corporation shall use the Property solely for the purpose of leasing
the Property to the District pursuant to the Lease Agreement and for such purposes as may be
incidental thereto; provided, however, that in the event of default by the District under the Lease
Agreement, the Corporation and its assigns may exercise the remedies provided in the Lease

Agreement.

Section 6. District’s Interest in the Property. The District covenants that it is the owner in fee
of the Property.

Section 7. Assignments and Subleases. Unless the District shall be in default under the Lease
Agreement, the Corporation may not assign its rights under this Site Lease or sublet the Property,
except as provided in the Lease Agreement and the Assignment Agreement, without the written
consent of the District and the Assignee. If the District is in default under the Lease Agreement, the
Assignee (including its successors and assigns under the Lease Agreement) may fully and freely
assign and sublease the Property or any portion thereof, subject to this Site Lease.

Section 8. Right of Entry. The District reserves the right for any of its duly authorized
representatives to enter upon the Property at any reasonable time to inspect the same or to make any
repairs, improvements or changes necessary for the preservation thereof.

Section 9. Termination. The Corporation agrees, upon the termination of this Site Lease, to
quit and surrender the Property in the same good order and condition as the same were in at the time
of commencement of the term hereunder, reasonable wear and tear excepted, and agrees that any
permanent improvements and structures existing upon the Site at the time of the termination of this
Site Lease shall remain thereon and title thereto shall vest in the District.

Section 10. Default. In the event the Corporation shall be in default in the performance of
any obligation on its part to be performed under the terms of this Site Lease, which default continues
for thirty (30) days following notice and demand for correction thereof to the Corporation, the
District may exercise any and all remedies granted by law, except that no merger of this Site Lease
and of the Lease Agreement shall be deemed to occur as a result thereof and the District shall have
no right to terminate this Site Lease as a remedy for such default. Notwithstanding the foregoing, so
long as the Lease Agreement remains in effect, the District will continue to pay the Lease Payments
to the Assignee. In the event of the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Lease Agreement,
the Corporation may (i) exercise the remedies provided in the Lease Agreement, (ii) use the Property
for any lawful purpose, subject to any applicable legal limitations or restrictions, and (iii) exercise all

options provided herein.

Section 11. Quiet Enjoyment. The Corporation, at all times during the term of this Site
Lease, shall peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy all of the Property subject to the provisions
of the Lease Agreement.

Section 12. Waiver of Personal Liability. All liabilities under this Site Lease on the part of
the Corporation are solely liabilities of the Corporation and the District hereby releases each and
every board member, director, officer, employee and agent of the Corporation of and from any




personal or individual liability under this Site Lease. No board member, director, officer, employee
or agent of the Corporation shall at any time or under any circumstances be individually or
personally liable under this Site Lease for anything done or omitted to be done by the Corporation

hereunder.

Section 13. Taxes. All assessments of any kind or character and all taxes, including
possessory interest taxes, levied or assessed upon the Property or the Corporation’s interest in the
Property created by this Site Lease (including both land and improvements) will be paid by the
District in accordance with the Lease Agreement.

Section 14. Eminent Domain. In the event the whole or any part of the Property is taken by
eminent domain proceedings, the interest of the Corporation shall be recognized and is hereby
determined to be the amount of the then unpaid principal component of the Lease Payments, any then
unpaid interest component of the Lease Payments and any premium due with respect to the
prepayment of Lease Payments to the date such amounts are remitted to the Corporation or its
assignee, and, subject to the provisions of the Lease Agreement, the balance of the award, if any,
shall be paid to the District. The District hereby waives, to the extent permitted by law, any and all
rights that it has or may hereafter have to acquire the interest of the Corporation in and to the
Property through the eminent domain powers of the District. However, the District hereby agrees, to
the extent permitted by law, that the compensation to be paid in any condemnation proceedings
brought by or on behalf of the District with respect to the Property shall be in an amount not less than
the total unpaid principal component of Lease Payments, the interest component of Lease Payments
accrued to the date of payment of all Lease Payments and any premium due with respect to the
prepayment of Lease Payments under the Lease Agreement.

Section 15. Use of the Proceeds. The District and the Corporation hereby agree that the lease
to the Corporation of the District’s right and interest in the Property pursuant to Section 2 serves the
public purposes of the District.

Section 16. Partial Invalidity. If any one or more of the terms, provisions, covenants or
conditions of this Site Lease shall, to any extent, be declared invalid, unenforceable, void or voidable
for any reason whatsoever by a court of competent jurisdiction, the finding, order or decree of which
becomes final, none of the remaining terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Site Lease
shall be affected thereby, and each provision of this Site Lease shall be valid and enforceable to the
fullest extent permitted by law.

Section 17. Notices. All notices, statements, demands, consents, approvals, authorizations,
offers, designations, requests or other communications hereunder by either party to the other shall be
in writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other party if delivered personally or if
mailed by United States registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, at the addresses set
forth in the Lease Agreement, or to such other addresses as the respective parties may from time to
time designate by notice in writing.

Section 18. Binding Effect. This Site Lease shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding
upon the District and the Corporation and their respective successors and assigns. The Assignee is
hereby made a third party beneficiary hereunder with all rights of a third party beneficiary.

Section 19. Amendment. This Site Lease may not be amended except as permitted under the
Lease Agreement.



Section 20. Section Headings. All section headings contained herein are for convenience of
reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Site Lease.

Section 21. Applicable Law. This Site Lease shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California applicable to contracts made and performed in

California.

Section 22. No Merger. Neither this Site Lease, the Lease Agreement nor any provisions
hereof or thereof shall be construed to effect a merger of the title of the District to the Property under
this Site Lease and the District’s leasehold interest therein under the Lease Agreement.

Section 23. Execution in Counterparts. This Site Lease may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all together shall constitute but one

and the same instrument.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District and the Corporation have caused this Site Lease to be
executed by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized, all as of the day and year first above
written.

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

By:

President of the Board

MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION

By:

Stefan Morton
Vice President



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF )

On before me, , Notary Public,
personally appeared R

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument
and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon
behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State
of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.
WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Place Notary Seal Above

Signature of Notary Public




CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF )
On before me, , Notary Public,

personally appeared 5

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument
and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon
behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State
of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Place Notary Seal Above

Signature of Notary Public




EXHIBIT A
DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

The land referred to in this Site Lease is situated in the County of San Luis Obispo, State of
California, and is described as follows:



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the Site Lease, dated as of
September 1, 2021, from the Avila Beach Community Services District, as lessor (the “District”), to
the Municipal Finance Corporation (the “Corporation™), as lessee, is hereby accepted by the
undersigned officer on behalf of the Corporation, pursuant to authority conferred by the Board of
Directors of the Corporation adopted on August 10, 2021, and the lessee consents to recordation

thereof by its duly authorized officer.

Dated: [ ], 2021

MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION

By:

Authorized Representative






AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors ’
)

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Managér {’J‘/J

DATE: August 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Request from Avila Valley Advisory Committee (AVAC) to use the District
Office Board Room for Committee and Regular Monthly Meetings

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the Board of Directors receive the Staff Report and Provide Direction to

Staff

Discussion:

Representatives from the Avila Valley Advisory Committee contacted District staff with a
request for AVAC to use the District office Board Room for their regular monthly meetings
and committee meetings as needed. Prior to COVID, the monthly AVAC meetings were
held at the PG&E Energy Education Center on Ontario Road. Apparently that facility is no
longer available, and AVAC is looking for a new meeting location. Staff understands that
AVAC has also talked with the representatives from the Avila Beach Community Center for
use of their facility.

The AVAC regular meetings are generally held on the 2" Monday of the month, from 7:00 —
9:00 PM. Prior to COVID, there was generally 35 — 45 persons in attendance at the regular
meetings that included approximately 15 council members (and alternates), approximately 12
agency staff members (County Planning, Public Works, Parks, Cal Fire, Sheriff, Highway
Patrol and the County Supervisor) and a number of public members. The District Board
Room has an approved capacity of approximately 45 persons based on the square footage of
the meeting room.

Issues for the Board to consider include but are not necessarily limited to: The District
Board meeting room is not currently being used at the time of the regular AVAC meetings;
Committee meetings appear to be generally during day time hours that don’t conflict with
existing District operations; District staff do not regularly attend the AVAC meetings, so
logistics to open and close up the meeting room would need to be addressed; District
confidential records and files will need to be secured; There will be an increased liability
exposure by having additional meetings at the District offices and does the District’s existing
insurance liability policy cover claims from agencies other than the CSD; the restroom and
other public areas should be cleaned after each use; If the Board chooses to allow use of the
Board Room, should the District require a fee for such use?






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors o
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Mana_gerd 44
DATE: August 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Avila Community Plan

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the Board of Directors receive the Staff Report and Provide Direction

to Staff

Discussion:

In early May 2021, the San Luis Obispo County Planning Department circulated the draft
Avila Community Plan and requested comments by August 13, 2021. On August 5,
2021, the County held a Workshop to provide an overview of the Public Review Draft of
the Plan, including key changes and proposed Planning Area Standards. The Avila
Beach CSD Board of Directors were provided a copy of the draft plan in June and were
encouraged to review the Plan and provide their comments to staff and/or provide their
comments at the August 10™, 2021 Regular Board meeting.

The purpose of this item is to provide an opportunity for Board members to provide their
comments on the Plan, reach consensus on the comments and consolidate the comments so
that staff can submit the comments to the County Planning Department by Friday August 13.



PUBLIC UWORKSHOP #3
Public Review Braf?

Come join us for a virtual workshop which will
provide an overview of the Public Review Draft of
the Avila Community Plan, including key changes
and proposed Planning Area Standards.

Thursday, Zoom Meeting
August Sth (please use
6:00pm—8:00 pm the link below)

For any questions, please contact Planning and Building at 805-787-5198
or email asingewald@co-slo-ca-us-

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, all workshops will be hosted virtually.
Please join the Zoom Meeting virtually at https://bit-ly/3hAHcqa
or by phone +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
+] 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

Thank you in advance for your attendance and participation in this process!



AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors <~
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manag@z’%”
DATE: August 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Preliminary Intent to Serve Request: Gardner Project, 498 Front Street, Multi-Use
project with 4 residential Condominiums on the 2™ floor and 3 or 4 Commercial
spaces on the ground floor and 10 parking spaces in the basement. APNs 076-
216-014 and 076-216-021

Recommendation:
Receive Staff Report; Conditionally Approve the Preliminary Intent to Serve Request

Funding:
The applicant provided a check # 1009, dated May 28, 2021, in the amount of $1,000 for the

application processing fee as described in Resolution No. 97-2 for processing an “Intent to
Serve” letter review. In addition the applicant has provided an Engineering and Inspection
Agreement to cover any additional District costs for review and processing of the Will Serve
Application

Discussion:

Attached for Board consideration is a Preliminary Will Serve Application dated May 24, 2021,
from Mr. John Gardner owner of the subject property. The applicant is requesting water and
sewer service for the existing vacant lot at 498 Front Street. The applicant is requesting service
for the multi-use development of the project: 4 residential condominiums on the 2™ floor and 3
or 4 Commercial spaces on the ground floor and 10 parking spaces in the basement.

Staff is in the process of preparing an estimated Connection Fee worksheet for the proposed
project. The Connection Fee estimate will be based on project engineering and architectural
drawings submitted by the applicants and applying the fees from Resolution No. 2013-08,
adopted by the Board in December 2013.

Staff recommends approval of Preliminary Will Serve Application. The District’s existing water
and sewer systems have the capacity to provide the requested level of service.



Avila Beach Community Services District
PRELIMINARY WILL SERVE APPLICATION

1. Owner Name:

2. Business Address:

B Mailing Address:

4. Phone Number (e-mail)
5.

6.

7.

Agent’'s Name:
Mailing Address:
Phone Number & e-mail

8. Assessor's Parcel Numbers:

9. Project’s Location:

10. SLO County Planning
Department Development #

11. Number of Residential Units
and the number of Bedrooms

12. Type of Use:

0 Single Family Residence

J Subdivision
0O Commercial
X Multi-use Description:

Type:
O Remodel

John M. Gardner

490 or 498 Front St, Avila Beach, CA 93424
6413 Furlong Road, McLean, VA 22101
805-668-9288 (avilalight@yahoo.com)

lan McCarville, Land Use Planner, Kirk Consulting
8830 Morro Road, Atascadero, CA 93422
805.461.5765 (lan@kirk-consulting.net)

APN 076-216-014 and APN 076-216-021
Cormner of Front & San Francisco Streets in Avila Beach, CA

Land Use Permit Application to be filed in June, 2021
Unit 1 - Studio Unit #2 - Two bedrooms
Unit 3 - Two bedrooms Unit #4 - One Bedroom
0 Multi-Family

00 Duplex 00 Triplex

4 residential condominiums on the 2™ floor

3 (or 4) commercial condominiums on the ground floor
10 parking spaces in the basement

Condominiums

13. Applications for multi-use projects, commercial projects, projects that exceed two (2) residential
units, or multi-family projects will not be approved until the following have been submitted to the

District for its review:

r. Two (2) separate sets of site plans that show the approximate square footage of each unit,
the site topography and an estimate of the number of water fixtures to serve each unit in the

project;
and

s. An engineer or architect's estimate of monthly water and sewer demand (in gallons per

month) for the project.

14. The Applicant agrees that in accordance with generally accepted construction practices, Applicant
shall assume sole and complete responsibility for the condition of the job site during the course of the
project, including the safety of persons and property; that this requirement shall apply continuously
and not be limited to normal working hours; and the Applicant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the
District and District's agents, employees and consultants harmless from any and all claims, demands,
damages, costs, expenses (including attorney’s fees) judgements or liabilities arising out of the
performance or attempted performance of the work on this project; except those claims, demands,
damages, costs, expenses (including attorney’s fees) judgements or liabilities resulting from the
negligence or willful misconduct of the District.

Nothing in the foregoing indemnity provision shall be construed to require Applicant to
indemnify District against any responsibility or liability or contravention of Civil Code §2782.
The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the Avila Beach Community Services District
Application for District Service Policy and Guidelines (attached).

Date: 5_’/2-'.'//2-/
’

bz

John M. Gardner

Owner:




Avila Beach Community Services District
PRELIMINARY WILL SERVE APPLICATION

PRELIMINARY WILL SERVE TIME LINE

Preliminary Will Serve expires 24 months after issuance.

Upon request by the applicant, a 12-month extension to the PWS may be granted by the District
The applicant shall request a Final Will Serve prior to the expiration of the Preliminary Will Serve

Final Will Serve expires one year after issuance



Avila Beach Community Services District
PRELIMINARY WILL SERVE APPLICATION

ENGINEERING CHECKING AND INSPECTION AGREEMENT

Whereas, John M. Gardner, of the County of San Luis Obispo, State of California, hereinafter
referred to as “Applicant”, has applied for and received, preliminary approval of 4808498 Front Street,
(hereinafter “Project”) from the Avila Beach Community Services District, a political sub-division of the
County of San Luis Obispo, hereinafter referred to as the “District”, o3

NOW THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 2 day of

. 2043 by and between the Applicant and District;

WITNESSETH:

1. The Applicant shall reimburse the District for the cost of checking the subdivision map, the
project improvement plans, and the cost of inspection of any such improvements by the District’s staff
and agents. For all services rendered by District staff, the Applicant shall be charged and pay to the
District the actual costs. The District shall invoice the Applicant for such plans checking and/or
inspection costs, if any; and amounts unpaid thirty days from the date of the District's invoice shall
bear interest at the rate of 1% percent per month beginning thirty days after the date of said invoice.

2. Permission in hereby granted to the District, or its authorized agent, to enter upon the land
which is the subject of the Project for the purpose of inspection of any and/or all work to be done
under the agreement.

3. The Applicant shall employ and Engineer of Work to provide inspection during the course of
construction, to certify to the District that the improvements were installed in accordance with
approved plans, and to submit as built plans to the District. If the Engineer of Work is other than the
designing engineer or is replaced during the course of construction, the District shall be notified in
writing; and each such engineer of work shall certify as to their respective involvement. The District
may make such additional inspections as is deemed necessary and shall be available to review field
conditions and/or proposed changes with the Engineer of Work.

4. It is understood and agreed by the between the Parties hereto that this agreement shall bind
the heirs, executors, administrators’ successors and assigns of the respective Parties to this
agreement.

5. The Applicant shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the District, its officers, agents
and employees from any and all claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses, or liability occasioned
by the performance or attempted performance of the provisions hereof, or in any way arising out of
the Agreement, including, but not limited to, inverse condemnation, equitable relief, or any wrongful
act or any negligent act or omission to act on the part of the Applicant or of agents, employees, or
independent contractors directly responsible to the Applicant, providing further than the foregoing
shall apply to any wrongful acts, or any actively or passively negligent acts or omissions to act,
committed jointly or concurrently by the Applicant, the Applicant’s agents, employees, or independent
contractors. Nothing contained in the foregoing indemnity provisions shall be construed to require the
Applicant to indemnify the District against any responsibility or liability in contravention of Section
2782 of the Civil Code.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Applicant has hereunto set his hand and the District has caused
these presents to be signed and its corporate seal hereto affixed by its duly sworn and authorized
officers the day and year first herein above written

g &

Applicant:
John M. Gardner
Billing Address: 6413 Furlong Road, McLean, VA 22101
Phone: - 805-668-9288
Email: avilalight@yahoo.com

General Manager:
Avila Beach Community Services District Bradley Hagemann




AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors N
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager' /"
DATE: August 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Consider Nominating a Director to fill the vacant Special District’s alternate
position to serve on the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste
Management Authority (IWMA) Board of Directors.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the Board of Directors receive the Staff Report and Provide Direction to

Staff

Discussion:

On May 21, 2021, the Integrated Waste Management Authority (IWMA) issued a letter
noting that Robert Enns is currently serving as the Special Districts representative to the
IWMA Board of Directors, but there is not an alternate appointed to the position. The
IWMA letter states that apparently there is no formal process established to elect an alternate

to the Special District position.

Marshall Ochylski, the president of the local chapter of the California Special Districts
Association sent out an email on July 31, requesting nominations for alternate representative
position. Nominations are due no later than September 15 and if there is more than one
nomination, then voting will take place with ballots due no later than October 31.

The purpose of this item is to provide an opportunity for the Board of Directors to seek
nominations and if someone is interested in the position and if so, taking an action to
formally nominate them for the Special Districts alternate position on the IWMA Board of
Directors. The May 21, 2021 IWMA letter and the July 31, 2021 email from Mr. Ochylski is
attached to this staff report.



Robert Enns - President,
Special Districts

Charles Bourbeau - Vice President,
City of Atascadero

Keith Storton - Past President Vacated,
City of Arroyo Grande

Karen Bright,
City of Grover Beach

Jeff Heller,
City of Morro Bay

John Hamon,
City of Paso Robles

Scott Newton,
City of Pismo Beach

Jan Marx,
City of San Luis Obispo

Debbie Arnold - Supervisor,
San Luis Obispo County Dist. 5

Lynn Compton - Supervisor,
San Luls Obispo County Dist. 4

Bruce Gibson - Supervisor,
San Luis Obispo County Dist. 2

Dawn Ortiz-Legg - Supervisor,
San Luis Obispo County Dist. 3

John Peschong - Supervisor,
San Luis Obispo County Dist. 1

IWMA Staff
Brooks Stayer,
Executive Director

Patti Toews,
Program Director

Kelly York,
Program Manager

Barbara Aspernelson,
Accountant

Cheryl Price,
Clerk of the Board

Jeffrey Minnery
Legal Counse!

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY
INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Connecting the Community to Waste Solutions

San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority
870 Osos Street

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401

805-782-8530

May 21, 2021

Dear Authorized District of the IWMA,

The Authorized Districts patticipate in the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste
Management Authority (*TWMA?”) pursuant to a Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA”) (a copy
of which is enclosed with this Correspondence). Pursuant to Section 2.B. of the MOA, the
appointment of one (1) Authorized District’s representative and one (1) alternate were to be
made following procedures “to be established” after the execution of the MOA. 1t has come to
the attention of the IWMA Executive Committee that the appointed process has historically
occurred in coordination with other local agency appointments administered by the local chapter
of the California Special Districts Association (“SLO CSDA™). However, the IWNMA is aware
of no formal procedures adopted and/or approved by the Authorized Districts if such procedures
were even established. Currently, the Authorized District’s are represented by Robert Enns,
Board President of the Cayucos Sanitary District. Yet at this time, there is no alternate
representative appointed and the position is vacant. The IWMA has recently been contacted

by at least two elected officials servicing member agencies that have expressed interest in
appointment to the Authorized Districts alternate position.

The IWMA Executive Committee has directed staff to inform your agency of the current
vacancy and the apparent lack of formal process. If the Authorized District’s desire to continue
coordination with the SLO CSDA, we suggest you contact the SLO CSDA directly. The local
President of the SLO CSDA is Marshall Ochylski and his contact information is provided below.

Marshall Ochylski

Los Osos Community Services District
2122 9th St #102

Los Osos, CA 93402

Phone: (805)-528-9370

If you have any questions in regards to this correspondence, please contact the IWMA directly.
Best regards,

Brooks Stayer
Executive Director

Enclosure: Memorandum of Agreement
cc IWMA Executive Committee Members: Charles Bourbeau, Robert Enns, Keith Storton



8/4/2021 Gmail - CSD's IWMA Alternate Representative

N' Gmall Bradley Hagemann <hagemann.associates@gmail.com>

CSD's IWMA Alternate Representative

1 message

Marshall Ochylski <mochylski@slolegal.com> Sat, Jul 31, 2021 at 5:12 PM

To: Bradley Hagemann <hagemann.associates@gmail.com>, Kristi Dibbern <avilacsd@gmail.com=,
"cvesd3094@gmail.com” <cvesd3094@gmail.com>, "jweigold@cambriacsd.org” <jweigold@cambriacsd.org>,
"csteidel@cambriacsd.org" <csteidel@cambriacsd.org>, "hdodson@cambriacsd.org" <hdodson@cambriacsd.org>,
"kdean@cambriacsd.org" <kdean@cambriacsd.org>, "mbland@cambriacsd.org" <mbland@cambriacsd.org>,
“rkoon@cayucossd.org" <rkoon@cayucossd.org>, "ggood@cayucossd.org” <ggood@cayucossd.org>,
"gm@groundsquirrelhollowcsd.org" <gm@groundsquirrelhollowcsd.org>, "scott@heritageranchesd.ca.gov”
<scott@heritageranchcsd.ca.gov>, Kristen Gelos <kristen@heritageranchcsd.ca.gov>, Ron Munds
<rmunds@losososcsd.org>, Laura Durban <ldurban@losososcsd.org>, "miglesias@ncsd.ca.gov” <miglesias@ncsd.ca.gov>,
"will@oceanocsd.org” <will@oceanocsd.org>, Carey Casciola <Carey@oceanocsd.org>, "nicole@oceanocsd.org"
<nicole@oceanocsd.org>, "tamara.parent@sanmiguelcsd.org” <tamara.parent@sanmiguelcsd.org>,
"ashley.sangster@sanmiguelcsd.org" <ashley.sangster@sanmiguelcsd.org>, "admin@sansimeoncsd.org"
<admin@sansimeoncsd.org>, "jbriltz@templetoncsd.org"” <jbriltz@templetoncsd.org>, Jeffrey Minnery
<jminnery@ammcglaw.com>

Cc: Marshall Ochylski <mochylski@slolegal.com>

All

After we received the letter eatlier this week from the Integrated Waste Management Authority regarding the CSD’s representatives
on the INMA Board, your Board of Directors met to discuss implementing the process we have in place for selecting our
representatives to the IWMA, and in particular the current vacant alternate representative position.

As a result, we are requesting nominations for the alternate representative from the Community Service Districts which have solid
waste powers. If you are receiving this email, then you are one of those District with those solid waste powers and are eligible to vote.

The alternate representative will serve until her/his current term expires at the end of 2022.

The timeframe is that nominations are due no later than September 15th which will allow each of the Board of Directors of these
Districts the opportunity to meet and discuss this matter. If you choose a nominee please include her/his full name and a brief
statement (no more than one page) either from your Board or the nominee of her/his qualification and why she/he should be elected.
Please email it directly to me and do not copy all.

If there is more than one nomination, then voting will take place with ballots due no later than October 31st.

Please contact me directly if you have any questions.

Thank you.

Marshall E. Ochylski,
Attorney at Law

The Law Office of Marshall E. Ochylski
Mailing Address: Post Office Box 6701
Los Osos, California 93412-6701

Telephone: 805-544-4546 (Direct Line)

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=a6c9a9703b&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1 706847665677591918%7Cmsg-{%3A1706847665677 ...

1/2






